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DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

THIS REPORT INCLUDES "FORWARD-LOOKING STATMENTS" WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE SECURITIES ACT OF
1933, AS AMENDED, AND THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACTFO1934, AS AMENDED. ALL STATEMENTS OTHER THAN
STATEMENTS OF HISTORICAL FACTS INCLUDED IN THIS REPRT, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, STATEMENTS
REGARDING THE REGISTRANT'S FUTURE FINANCIAL POSITI, BUSINESS STRATEGY, BUDGETS, PROJECTED COSTS A
PLANS AND OBJECTIVES OF MANAGEMENT FOR FUTURE OPERFONS, ARE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. IN
ADDITION, FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS GENERALLY CANBE IDENTIFIED BY THE USE OF FORWARD-LOOKING
TERMINOLOGY SUCH AS "MAY", "WILL", "EXPECT", "INTEND", "ESTIMATE", "ANTICIPATE", "BELIEVE", OR "CONTINUE"
OR THE NEGATIVE THEREOF OR SIMILAR TERMINOLOGY. ALHOUGH THE REGISTRANT BELIEVES THAT THE
EXPECTATIONS REFLECTED IN SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STAMENTS ARE REASONABLE, IT CAN GIVE NO
ASSURANCE THAT SUCH EXPECTATIONS WILL PROVE TO BEA@RRECT. IMPORTANT FACTORS THAT COULD CAUSE
ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THE REGISRANT'S EXPECTATIONS ARE DISCLOSED IN THIS REPORT
UNDER THE CAPTION "RISK FACTORS" BEGINNING ON PAG& AS WELL AS IN MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION &
ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERTIONS ON, AND INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE TO,
PAGES 6 THROUGH 38 OF THE COMPANY'S ANNUAL REPOREXHIBIT 13 TO THIS FORM 10-K). ALL SUBSEQUENT
WRITTEN AND ORAL FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ATTRIBUABLE TO THE REGISTRANT, OR PERSONS ACTING ON
ITS BEHALF, ARE EXPRESSLY QUALIFIED IN THEIR ENTIREY BY SUCH CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS. THE REGISTRANT
ASSUMES NO DUTY TO UPDATE OR REVISE ITS FORWARD-LBING STATEMENTS BASED ON CHANGES IN INTERNAL
ESTIMATES OR EXPECTATIONS OR OTHERWISE.
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HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of th
Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2006
PART |
ltem 1. BUSINESS

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company"),swacorporated under the laws of the State of Datevon February 3, 1940, and is
successor to a business originally organized ir0198e Company is primarily engaged in contradtidg of oil and gas wells for others. The
contract drilling business accounts for almosbathe Company's operating revenues. The Compaalgdsengaged in the ownership,
development, and operation of commercial real estat

The Company is organized into two sepasptrating entities, contract drilling and real est8oth businesses operate independently of
the other through wholly owned subsidiaries. Opegadlecentralization is balanced by a centralizedrfce division, which handles all
accounting, information technology, budgeting, asite, cash management, and related activities.

The Company's contract drilling businessosiposed of three reportable business segmer8sidnd drilling, U.S. offshore platform
drilling and international drilling. The CompanysS. land drilling is conducted primarily in Oklaha, Texas, Wyoming, Colorado,
Louisiana, Mississippi, and New Mexico, and offghémom platforms in the Gulf of Mexico and CalifeanThe Company also operated in
eight international locations during fiscal 200&nézuela, Ecuador, Colombia, Argentina, Boliviay&tqrial Guinea, Tunisia, and Chile. In
addition, the Company provided drilling consultegyvices for one customer in Russia.

The Company's real estate investmentsoaegdd in Tulsa, Oklahoma, where the Company niastts executive offices.

Prior to October 1, 2002, the Company wasaged in the exploration, production and salewde oil and natural gas business
("exploration and production business"). During#is2002, the Company transferred the assets abilities of its exploration and producti
business to its wholly owned subsidiary, Cimareri§y Co. On September 30, 2002, the Company digéribthe common stock of Cimarex
Energy Co. to the Company's stockholders and caagpke merger of Key Production Company, Inc. witubsidiary of Cimarex Energy C
As a result of this transaction, Cimarex Energy i@@ame a separate publicly-traded company tha¢dwnd operated the exploration and
production business. The Company does not own amymon stock of Cimarex Energy Co.

CONTRACT DRILLING

The Company believes that it is one ofrttegor land and offshore platform drilling contrastin the western hemisphere. Operating
principally in North and South America, the Compapgcializes in shallow to deep drilling in oil agals producing basins of the United
States and in drilling for oil and gas in interoatl locations. In the United States, the Companyd its customers primarily from the major
oil companies and the larger independent oil congzamn South America, the Company's current custsrinclude the Venezuelan state
petroleum company and major international oil comgs.

In fiscal 2006, the Company received appnately 57 percent of its consolidated operatingereies from the Company's ten largest
contract drilling customers. BP plc, ExxonMobil @oration, and Petroleos de Venezuela S.A. (respgti"BP", "ExxonMobil" and
"PDVSA"), including their affiliates, are the Commes three largest contract drilling customers. Tlenpany performs drilling services for
BP and ExxonMobil on a world-wide basis and PDV8&A/enezuela. Revenues from drilling services perfat for BP, ExxonMobil and
PDVSA in fiscal 2006 accounted for approximatelypktcent, 7 percent and 7 percent, respectiveltheoCompany's consolidated operating
revenues for the same period.

The Company provides drilling rigs, equipmgersonnel, and camps on a contract basis. Beggiees are provided so that the
Company's customers may explore for and developnailgas from onshore areas and from fixed plagptansion-leg platforms and spars in
offshore areas. Each of the drilling rigs considtengines, drawworks, a mast, pumps, blowout prere, a drillstring, and related
equipment. The intended well depth and the drilBitg conditions are the principal factors thaed®ine




the size and type of rig most suitable for a paléicdrilling job. A land drilling rig may be moveidom location to location without
modification to the rig. A helicopter rig is oneatlcan be disassembled into component part loadppbximately 4,000-20,000 pounds and
transported to remote locations by helicopter, canlgne, or other means. A platform rig is spealficdesigned to perform drilling operatic
upon a particular platform. While a platform rig yrtze moved from its original platform, significagpense is incurred to modify a platform
rig for operation on each subsequent platform.duitéon to traditional platform rigs, the Companyevates self-moving platform drilling rigs
and drilling rigs to be used on tension-leg platferand spars. The self-moving rig is designed tmbeed without the use of expensive
derrick barges. The tension-leg platforms and saltwsv drilling operations to be conducted in mageper water than traditional fixed
platforms.

During fiscal 1998, the Company put to warkew generation of six highly mobile/depth fldgitand drilling rigs (individually the
"FlexRig®"). The FlexRig has been able to signifitg reduce average rig move times compared toairdepthrated traditional land rigs.
addition, the FlexRig allows a greater depth fl@itipof between 8,000 to 18,000 feet and provigesater operating efficiency. The original
six rigs were designated as FlexRigl rigs. Subsetyyehe Company built and completed 12 new Flg@Rigs. During fiscal 2001, the
Company announced that it would build an additi@tmhew FlexRigs. These new rigs, known as "FleSRigere the next generation of
FlexRigs which incorporated new drilling technolagyyd new environmental and safety design. Thisaesign included integrated top drive,
AC electric drive, hydraulic BOP handling systemdtaulic tubular make-up and break-out systemt sphiwn and traveling blocks and an
enlarged drill floor that enables simultaneous cagiwities. All 25 of these FlexRig3s were comptkby June of 2003. Subsequently, the
Company constructed seven more FlexRig3s at arozippate cost of $11.2 million each. Constructiortt@se rigs was completed by March
of 2004.

During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006, the Qamy entered into separate drilling contracts W8texploration and production companies to
build and operate a total of 73 new FlexRigs (amease from the 66 new FlexRigs previously annadingef the 73 FlexRigs, 19 are
FlexRig3s and 54 are FlexRig4s (described belovidh e exception of one contract, each of thdidglcontracts provides for a minimum
fixed contract term of at least three years, wiiliidg services to be performed on a daywork caatibasis. This 73 rig new-build project
represents the single largest rig constructiongetap the Company's history.

Labor cost increases and labor shortagbstim fabrication and rig-up services resultecangé part from Hurricanes Katrina and Rita.
The hurricaneelated damage significantly affected the Compapwjtscipal fabricator of rig components and causggroduction delays ar
increased rig costs. Consequently, the Company etetp24 FlexRigs during fiscal 2006 rather tharoitiginal estimate of 30 rigs, and the
level of capital investment estimated for the cortton of the previously announced 66 FlexRigseased by an average of 16 percent per
rig from the original estimate. Delivery schedubéshe new rigs were pushed back to such a depegédate-delivery contractual liquidated
damage payments were incurred and are expectaditmibrred for most of the remaining rigs. Howevke, incurred and projected liquidated
damage payments had, and are expected to havenahimipact on revenues and margins.

All 73 FlexRigs are expected to be compuldtg the end of calendar 2007. The total FlexRigstaction cost is expected to approximate
$1.1 billion, or approximately $15 million per FReig.

While the new FlexRig3s are similar to @@mpany's existing FlexRig3s, the FlexRig4s arégiesl to efficiently drill more shallow
depth wells of between 4,000 and 14,000 feet. TaeRig4 design includes a trailerized version arstfidding version, which incorporate
new environmental and safety design. This new deisigudes a pipe handling system which allowsripéo be operated by a reduced crew
and eliminates the need for a casing stabber imts.

While the trailerized version provides foore efficient well site to well site rig movesetbkidding version allows for drilling of up to
wells from a single pad which will result in reddoenvironmental impact. The effective use of tedbgyis important to the maintenance of
our competitive position within the drilling indugt As a result of the importance of technologytw business, we expect to continue to
develop technology internally.




The Company's drilling contracts are olgdithrough competitive bidding or as a result afat@tions with customers, and sometimes
cover multi-well and multi-year projects. Each ling rig operates under a separate drilling contf@aring fiscal 2006, all drilling services
were performed on a "daywork" contract basis, unddch the Company charges a fixed rate per day thie price determined by the
location, depth and complexity of the well to béleld, operating conditions, the duration of thetact, and the competitive forces of the
market. The Company has previously performed cotgran a combination "footage" and "daywork" basigjer which the Company char
a fixed rate per foot of hole drilled to a stategptth, usually no deeper than 15,000 feet, andedl fiate per day for the remainder of the hole.
Contracts performed on a "footage" basis involgeeater element of risk to the contractor thanalaracts performed on a "daywork" basis.
Also, the Company has previously accepted "turnkeyitracts under which the Company charges a ixed to deliver a hole to a stated
depth and agrees to furnish services such asgestining, and casing the hole which are not ndsntidne on a "footage" basis. "Turnkey"
contracts entail varying degrees of risk greatantthe usual "footage" contract. The Company didaoept any "footage" or "turnkey"
contracts during fiscal years 2004 through 200@& Tbhmpany believes that under current market ciondit'footage" and "turnkey" contract
rates do not adequately compensate contractothdaadded risks. The duration of the Company'tirdyitontracts are "well-to-well" or for a
fixed term. "Well-to-well" contracts are cancelablghe option of either party upon the completiddrilling at any one site. Fixed-term
contracts customarily provide for termination & glection of the customer, with an "early termorapayment” to be paid to the contractc
a contract is terminated prior to the expirationhaf fixed term. However, under certain limiteccaimstances such as destruction of a drilling
rig, bankruptcy, sustained unacceptable performagadbe Company, or late delivery of a rig beyoedain grace and/or liquidated damage
periods, no early termination payment would be paithe Company.

Excluding the fixed term contracts coverihg 73 FlexRig new-build project, the Company Badigs under fixed term contracts as of
the end of September 2006. While the durationHes¢ current fixed-term contracts are for six maottiree year periods, some fixed-term
and well-to-well contracts are expected to be camd for longer periods than the original termswieleer, the contracting parties have no
legal obligation to extend the contracts. Contrgetserally contain renewal or extension provisiexarcisable at the option of the custome
prices mutually agreeable to the Company and teomer. In most instances contracts provide foitaél payments for mobilization and
demobilization.

U.S. LAND DRILLING

At the end of September, 2006, 2005 andi 2@ Company had 110, 91 and 87 respectiveligs ¢dnd rigs available for work in the
United States. The total number of rigs owned atethd of fiscal 2006 increased by a net of 19frig® the end of fiscal 2005. The change
from fiscal 2005 to fiscal 2006 resulted from oigemoving back from the Company's internationa¢fland one rig moving to the Compar
international fleet during fiscal year 2006, théesaf one conventional rig in March of 2006, andri2@v FlexRigs placed into service. Three
additional FlexRigs were completed as of SepterBbeR006 and were ready for delivery. The CompadySs land operations contributed
approximately 68 percent of the Company's constaitlaperating revenues during fiscal 2006, compatitdtdapproximately 66 percent of
consolidated operating revenues during fiscal 20@tbapproximately 59 percent of consolidated operatvenues during fiscal 2004. Rig
utilization in fiscal 2006 was approximately 99 gamt, up from approximately 94 percent in fiscad20The Company's fleet of FlexRigs and
highly mobile rigs maintained an average utilizataf approximately 100 percent during fiscal 200d@lerithe Company's conventional rigs
had an average utilization rate of approximatelyp8gcent. A rig is considered to be utilized whieis bperated or being moved, assembled or
dismantled under contract. At the close of fisc0&, 109 land rigs were working out of 110 avakafiys.
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U.S. OFFSHORE PLATFORM DRILLING

The Company's offshore platform operatiomstributed approximately 11 percent of the Comfmognsolidated operating revenues
during fiscal 2006 and 2005, compared with appraxety 14 percent of consolidated operating revenueisig fiscal 2004. Rig utilization in
fiscal 2006 was approximately 69 percent, up fr@praximately 53 percent in fiscal 2005. At the efdhis fiscal year, the Company had
seven of its nine offshore platform rigs (excludRig 201) under contract and continued to work umdanagement contracts for two
customer-owned rigs. Revenues from drilling servigerformed for the Company's largest offshorefquiat drilling customer totaled
approximately 58 percent of U.S. offshore platfeemenues during fiscal 2006.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, the Camyp signed an option agreement to sell two offshigie If the option is exercised, the sale is
expected to be completed in the second quartés@dlf2007. The two rigs have been classified astaseld for sale in the Company's
Consolidated Financial Statements and as suclexateded from the number of owned rigs at the €r2D66.

The Company's offshore platform Rig 201tanged significant damage from Hurricane Katrin2@95. The Company anticipates Rig
201 returning to service during fiscal 2007. Thewias insured at a value that approximated replanéoost.

INTERNATIONAL DRILLING
General

The Company's international drilling op@mas began in 1958 with the acquisition of Sinc@ikr Company's drilling rigs in Venezuela.
Helmerich & Payne de Venezuela, C.A., a wholly o&sabsidiary of the Company, is one of the leadirijing contractors in Venezuela.
Beginning in 1972, with the introduction of itsdirhelicopter rig, the Company expanded into otlain American countries.

The Company's international operations rdouted approximately 21 percent of the Compangtssolidated operating revenues during
fiscal 2006, compared with approximately 22 pera#rdonsolidated operating revenues during fis@8i®2and approximately 25 percent of
consolidated operating revenues during fiscal 280g utilization in fiscal 2006 was 90 percent,fupm 77 percent in fiscal 2005.

Venezuela

Venezuelan operations continue to be afsignt part of the Company's operations. Durirggél 2006, the Company moved a
conventional rig to the United States, reducingribeount to 11 in Venezuela. The Company worl@dlie Venezuelan state petroleum
company, PDVSA, during fiscal 2006 and revenuesaftiois work accounted for approximately 33 peradribternational operating revenu
Revenues generated from Venezuelan drilling opmratcontributed approximately 7 percent ($84.6iam)l of the Company's consolidated
operating revenues during 2006, compared with aqmetely 8 percent ($66.8 million) of consolidatggkrating revenues during fiscal 2005
and 10 percent ($56.3 million) of consolidated apieg revenues during 2004. The Company had tenwagking in Venezuela at the end of
fiscal 2006.

The Company's rig utilization rate in Venela increased from approximately 72 percent duisul 2005 to approximately 83 percent
in fiscal 2006. The Company expects to return aferig back to work during the first quarter afdal 2007. At this time, the Company is
unable to predict future fluctuations in its utdtion rates.

Ecuador

At the end of fiscal 2006, the Company ogveght rigs in Ecuador. The Company's utilizatiate was 100 percent during fiscal 2006,
up from approximately 97 percent in fiscal 2005v&aies generated by Ecuadorian drilling operatimméributed approximately 7 percent
($88.7 million) of the Company's consolidated ofiagarevenues during fiscal 2006, as compared athroximately 8 percent
($60.9 million) of consolidated operating revendasng fiscal 2005 and approximately 7 percent ($48illion) of consolidated operating
revenues during fiscal 2004. Revenues from drilegvices performed for the Company's largest austén Ecuador totaled approximately
3 percent of consolidated




operating revenues and approximately 14 perceimt@fational operating revenues during fiscal 2006 Ecuadorian drilling contracts are
primarily with large international oil companies.

Other Locations

In addition to its operations in Venezustal Ecuador, at the end of fiscal 2006, the Compamed three rigs in Argentina, two rigs in
Colombia and one rig each in Bolivia, Chile, andnibia.

At the end of November 2006, three rigsamgorking in Argentina, and Tunisia, Chile and Bi@ieach had one rig working.

During fiscal 2006, the Company continupérations under a management contract for a customeed platform rig located offshore
Equatorial Guinea. Also, during the fiscal yeag @ompany completed a drilling consulting servioastract in Russia.

REAL ESTATE OPERATIONS

The Company's real estate operations ardumed exclusively within the metropolitan area afsa, Oklahoma. Its major holding is
Utica Square Shopping Center, consisting of 15rsd¢p#uildings, with parking and other common féie# covering an area of approximal
30 acres. Utica Square contains approximately 88lusable square feet, composed of retail spa8&®018 usable square feet, office space
of 38,785 usable square feet, storage space dd Gigible square feet and common area space ofblisaBle square feet. The Company's
real estate operations occupy approximately 4,fid@re feet of general office and storage spacdmiitie shopping center. Occupancy in the
shopping center increased from 91 percent in fis08b to 92 percent in fiscal 2006.

At the end of the 2006 fiscal year, the @anmy owned 11 of a total of 73 units in The Yorkipw 16-story luxury residential
condominium with approximately 150,940 square &diving area located on a six-acre tract adjaterndtica Square Shopping Center.
Seven of the Company's units are currently leased.

The Company owns and leases to third gantiglti-tenant warehouse space. Three warehoussenkas Space Center, each containing
approximately 165,000 square feet of net leasgidees are situated in the southeast part of Talgeeantersection of two major limited-
access highways. Present occupancy is approximé®ghercent, which is down from approximately 8gcpat one year ago. The decrease in
occupancy is due to the loss of two tenants. Thag2amy also owns approximately 1.5 acres of undgesldand lying adjacent to such
warehouses.

Southpark is an undeveloped tract of lanéted in a high growth area of southeast Tulsasaaditable for mixed commercial and light
industrial use. At the end of fiscal 2006, the Campowned approximately 218 acres in Southparkisting of approximately 205 acres of
undeveloped real estate and approximately 13 aénmasilti-tenant warehouse area. The warehouseisii@eown as Space Center East and
consists of two warehouses, one containing apprabdiy 90,000 square feet and the other containpgoeximately 112,500 square feet.
Occupancy decreased to approximately 76 perce@@6 from approximately 89 percent in fiscal 200& ¢b the loss of one tenant. The
Company believes that a high quality office parkhvperipheral commercial, office/warehouse, antkhsites, is the best development usi
the remaining land. The Company has contracted aviitofessional engineering and planning firm &pgare a topographic survey and
preliminary site engineering plan to aid in the pbke future development of Southpark.

The Company owns a five-building compleltethTandem Business Park. The property is locatfdcent to and east of the Space
Center East facility and contains approximatelyagires, with approximately 88,084 square feet fi€@fvarehouse space. Occupancy has
decreased from approximately 76 percent in 20@poximately 72 percent during fiscal 2006 duthtoloss of one tenant. The Company
also owns a 12-building complex, consisting of agpnately 204,600 square feet of office/warehoysses, called Tulsa Business Park. The
property is located south and east of the SpacéeCHrility, separated by a city street, and cmstapproximately 12 acres. During fiscal
2006, occupancy increased from approximately 68querto approximately 74 percent due to the additioone new tenant.
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The Company owns two service center prageelbcated adjacent to arterial streets in soeittral Tulsa. The first, called Maxim Cent
consists of one office/warehouse building contajrapproximately 40,800 square feet and is locatedpproximately 2.5 acres. During fiscal
2006, occupancy has increased to approximatelye6dept from approximately 56 percent due to thetaaidof one tenant. The second,
called Maxim Place, consists of one office/wareledmsilding containing approximately 33,750 squaet fand is located on approximately
2.25 acres. During fiscal 2006, occupancy remaimathanged at approximately 63 percent. The Comgaifiigite disaster recovery center
occupies approximately 3,517 square feet of officd computer equipment space in this property.

The Company also owns approximately 8.483@s of vacant land, which was the site of itsnfarheadquarters. No development plans
for the site are pending.

FINANCIAL

Information relating to revenues, totaleisaind operating income or loss by business segmey be found on, and is incorporated by
reference to, pages 70 through 74 of the Compa@myisial Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K).

EMPLOYEES

The Company had 4,302 employees withirlLthited States (eight of which were part-time empks) and 1,403 employees in
international operations as of September 30, 2006.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Information relating to the Company's intraddress and the Company's SEC filings mayuredfon, and is incorporated by reference
to, page 76 of the Company's Annual Report (ExHiBito this Form 10-K).

Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

In addition to the risk factors discussestwhere in this Report, the Company cautionsttiefollowing "Risk Factors" could affect its
actual results in the future.

1. Competition
Competition in the Contract Drilling Business

The contract drilling business is highlynrgetitive. Competition in contract drilling involsesuch factors as price, rig availability,
efficiency, condition of equipment, reputation, ceng safety, and customer relations. Competigorimarily on a regional basis and may
vary significantly by region at any particular timeand drilling rigs can be readily moved from aegion to another in response to changs
levels of activity, and an oversupply of rigs iryaegion may result, leading to increased price petition.

Although many contracts for drilling seregcare awarded based solely on price, the Compaspden successful in establishing long-
term relationships with certain customers whichenallowed the Company to secure drilling work etfesugh the Company may not have
been the lowest bidder for such work. The Compas/dontinued to attempt to differentiate its sexsibased upon its engineering design
expertise, operational efficiency, and safety amdrenmental awareness. This strategy is less @feeavhen lower demand for drilling
services intensifies price competition and makesate difficult or impossible to compete on anyibagher than price. Also, future
improvements in operational efficiency and safgtyhe Company's competitors could negatively affeetCompany's ability to differentiate
its services.

Competition in the Real Estate Business

The Company has numerous competitors imthié-tenant leasing business. The size and filgdapacity of these competitors range
from one property sole proprietors to large intéorel corporations. The primary competitive fastarclude price, location, and
configuration of space. The Company's competitivgitfpn is enhanced by the location of its progsitits financial capability and the long-
term




ownership of its properties. However, many compgetihave financial resources greater than the Coyngad have more contemporary
facilities.

2. Operating and Weather Risks

The drilling operations of the Company subject to the many hazards inherent in the busjiesluding inclement weather, blowouts
and well fires. These hazards could cause persojnay, suspend drilling operations, seriously dgmar destroy the equipment involved,
cause substantial damage to producing formatiodgtensurrounding areas. The Company's offshotéopta drilling operations are also
subject to potentially greater environmental lidpjladverse sea conditions and platform damagiestruction due to collision with aircraft
marine vessels. Specifically, the Company opersggsral platform rigs in the Gulf of Mexico. ThelGaf Mexico experiences hurricanes
and other extreme weather conditions on a frego@sis. Damage caused by high winds and turbulests®suld potentially curtail operations
on such platform rigs for significant periods ahé until the damage can be repaired. Moreover, gitka Company's platform rigs are not
directly damaged by such storms, the Company mpgréence disruptions in operations due to damagegstomer platforms and other
related facilities in the area. Until 2005, the Qamy's platform operation had not been materidfgcted by adverse weather. In August of
2005, platform Rig 201 sustained significant huamie damage. This rig is not expected to returrotmal drilling operations until fiscal 20C

The Company's new-build rig assembly fgcik located near the Houston, Texas ship chaisd, the Company's principal fabricator
and other vendors are located in the Gulf Coasbredpue to their location, these facilities ar@pesed to potentially greater hurricane
damage.

3. Fixed Term Contract Risk

Fixed term drilling contracts customarilppide for termination at the election of the cusés, with an "early termination payment" to
be paid to the Company if a contract is termingeéadlr to the expiration of the fixed term. Howevender certain limited circumstances, such
as destruction of a drilling rig, bankruptcy, sustal unacceptable performance by the Companyt@dklivery of a rig beyond certain grace
and/or liquidated damage periods, no early terriingtayment would be paid to the Company.

4. Indemnification and Insurance Coverage

The Company has insurance coverage for oelmepsive general liability, automobile liabilityprker's compensation, employer's
liability, and property damage. Generally, dedueskare $1 million or $2 million per occurrencepeeding on whether a claim occurs inside
or outside of the United States. The Company miaistzertain other insurance coverages with $5 emltieductibles. Insurance is purchased
over these deductibles to reduce the Company'ssex@do catastrophic events. In fiscal 2006, then@any obtained property insurance for
85 percent of the aggregate estimated replacenoshbtits rigs in excess of a $1 million dedudildf loss levels exceed a set percentage of
excess property premium in fiscal 2006, then them@any would share in losses up to a maximum of Btom The Company self-insured
the remaining 15 percent of such rig value inclgdieductibles. No insurance is carried againstdd&arnings or business interruption. The
Company is unable to obtain significant amountimsfirance to cover risks of underground resenainage; however, the Company is
generally indemnified under its drilling contraétsm this risk.

The Company retains a significant portibitoexpected losses under its worker's compemsagieneral, and automobile liability
programs. The Company records estimates for indwugstanding liabilities for unresolved workerssrpensation, general liability claims
and for claims that are incurred but not reporiestimates are based on historic experience ardtitat methods that the Company believes
are reliable. Nonetheless, insurance estimategdeatertain assumptions and management judgmeyatsldirg the frequency and severity of
claims, claim development, and settlement practidesinticipated changes in these factors may pecdaterially different amounts of
expense that would be reported under these programs

The majority of the Company's insurancelieen purchased through fiscal 2007. Multiple lwames in the Gulf of Mexico during
August and September of 2005 continued to haveersémpact on the availability and price of then@pany's rig property coverage for
2007. As a result, the Company




transferred only 80 percent of its rig property @qre in excess of a $1 million per occurrence délole to third party insurers. Insurance
coverage for named storms in the Gulf of Mexical# limited to a net aggregate of $60 million. &surance can be given that all or a
portion of the Company's coverage will not be cdadeduring fiscal 2007 or that insurance coveraglecontinue to be available at rates
considered reasonable. No assurance can be giaethéhCompany's insurance and indemnificatiomgements will adequately protect it
against all liabilities that could result from thazards of its drilling operations. Incurring &bllay for which the Company is not fully insurt
or indemnified could materially affect the Compamgsults of operations.

5. Availability of Equipment and Supplies

The contract drilling business is highl\cligal. During periods of increased demand for caettdrilling services, delays in delivery and
shortages of drilling equipment and supplies casuncThese risks are intensified during periodsmitte industry experiences significant
new drilling rig construction or refurbishment.

6. Limited Number of Vendors

Certain key rig components are either paseld from or fabricated by a single or limited nemdf vendors, and the Company has no
long-term contracts with many of these vendors.r@iges could occur in these essential componemtsadan interruption of supply or
increased demands in the industry. If the Compaay unable to procure certain of such rig componéntuld be required to reduce its rig
construction or other operations, which could haveaterial adverse effect on the Company's busifieascial condition and results of
operations.

If the Company's principal fabricator, lte@don the Texas Gulf Coast, was unable or unwilllmcontinue fabricating rig components,
then the Company would have to transfer this wortither acceptable fabricators. This transfer coesdlt in significant delay in the
completion of new FlexRigs. Any significant inteption in the fabrication of rig components could/&@@ material adverse impact on the
Company's business, financial condition, and resaflbperations.

7. Thinly Capitalized Vendors

Certain key rig components are obtainechfuendors that are, in some cases, thinly capitd)imdependent companies that generate
significant portions of their business from the Qxamy or from a small group of companies in the gnérdustry. These vendors may be
disproportionately affected by any loss of busir@sisy any downturn in the energy industry. Therefalisruptions in rig component delive
may occur, and such disruptions and terminationdddoave a material adverse effect on the Compdmugimess, financial condition, or
results of operations.

8. Volatility of Oil and Gas Prices

The Company's operations can be materdifcted by low oil and gas prices. The Companjelek that any significant reduction in
and gas prices could depress the level of explorathd production activity and result in a corresfing decline in demand for the Compau
services. Worldwide military, political and econangivents, including initiatives by the OrganizatafrPetroleum Exporting Countries, may
affect both the demand for, and the supply ofand gas. Fluctuations during the last few yeathéndemand and supply of oil and gas have
contributed to, and are likely to continue to cidnite to, price volatility. Any prolonged reductiomdemand for the Company's services ¢
have a material and adverse effect on the Company.

9. International Uncertainties and Local Laws

International operations are subject tdadempolitical, economic, and other uncertainties encountered in U.S. operations, including
increased risks of terrorism, kidnapping of empksjeexpropriation of equipment as well as expraiprieof a particular oil company
operator's property and drilling rights, taxatimligies, foreign exchange restrictions, currendg fauctuations, and general hazards
associated with foreign sovereignty over certagaarn which operations are conducted. There camo lssurance that there will not be
changes in local laws, regulations, and adminisgaequirements or the interpretation thereof Whiould have a material adverse effect on
the profitability of the Company's operations ortba ability of the Company to continue operationsertain areas.
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Because of the impact of local laws, thenBany's future operations in certain areas mayhducted through entities in which local
citizens own interests and through entities (iniclgdoint ventures) in which the Company holds oalgninority interest, or pursuant to
arrangements under which the Company conducts tiqesainder contract to local entities. While thengpany believes that neither
operating through such entities nor pursuant th sutangements would have a material adverse effettie Company's operations or
revenues, there can be no assurance that the Cgmjiaim all cases be able to structure or restute its operations to conform to local law
(or the administration thereof) on terms acceptédbthe Company.

Venezuela continues to experience signifipmlitical, economic and social instability. lmetevent that extended labor strikes occur or
turmoil increases, the Company could experiencetafes in labor and/or material and supplies necgds operate some or all of its
Venezuelan drilling rigs, thereby causing an adveféect on the Company.

During the mid-1970s, the Venezuelan gomremt nationalized the exploration and productiosifiess. At the present time it appears
the Venezuelan government will not nationalizedbetract drilling business. Any such nationalizatamuld result in the Company's loss of
all or a portion of its assets and business in Yeek.

Although the Company attempts to minimize potential impact of such risks by operating orenthan one geographical area, during
fiscal 2006, approximately 21 percent of the Conyfsaoconsolidated operating revenues were genefiaedthe international contract drillir
business. Approximately 91 percent of the inteorati operating revenues were from operations irttSAmerica and approximately
76 percent of South American operating revenueg 'wvem Venezuela and Ecuador.

10. Currency Risk
General

Contracts for work in foreign countries geally provide for payment in United States dollascept for amounts required to meet local
expenses. However, government owned petroleum coiegpare more frequently requesting that a greatgportion of these payments be
made in local currencies. Based upon current inftion, the Company believes that exposure to peldosses from currency devaluation is
minimal in Colombia, Bolivia, Equatorial Guinea, il€h and Tunisia. In those countries, all receieatdnd payments are currently in U.S.
dollars. Cash balances are kept at a minimum wémslsts in reducing exposure.

Argentina

In 2002, Argentina suffered a 60 percenatligation of the peso. As a consequence, the Coymgaured agreements with its customers
that limited the portion of the accounts receivahk was paid in pesos with the balance of suchuwatts receivable paid in U.S. dollars. The
Company experienced $.3 million in Argentina cucielosses in fiscal 2006.

Venezuela

The Company is exposed to risks of curredeyaluation in Venezuela primarily as a resubalivar receivable balances and bolivar
cash balances. In Venezuela, approximately 60 peafeghe Company's billings are in U.S. dollarsl @9 percent are in the local currency,
the bolivar. The significance of this arrangemerthat even though the dollar-based invoices mayalxkin bolivares, the Company,
historically, has usually been able to converttibivares into U.S. dollars in a timely manner &émgs avoid, in large measure, devaluation
losses pertaining to the dollar-based invoices. él@®, this arrangement is effective only in theemlog of exchange controls. In
January 2003, the Venezuelan government put ifidcteéxchange controls that fixed the exchangeamatkalso prohibited the Company, as
well as other companies, from converting the boliméo U.S. dollars through the Central Bank.

As part of the exchange controls regulatiba Venezuelan government provided a mechanismhigh companies could request
conversion of bolivares into U.S. dollars. In corapte with such regulations, the Company, in Oatah@003, submitted a request to the
Venezuelan government seeking permission to diddernings, which would convert 14 billion bolivaiato U.S. dollars. In January 2004,
the Venezuelan government approved the Compargtese to convert bolivar cash balances to U.S.
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dollars and allowed the remittance of $8.8 millldrs. dollars as dividends to the U.S. based paférig. was the first dividend remitted under
the new regulation. On January 16, 2006, a dividgb.5 million U.S. dollars was remitted to theSUbased parent. As a consequence, the
Company's exposure to currency devaluation has tesiuted by these amounts.

On August 18, 2006, the Company made agiidic with the Venezuelan government requestingaigroval to convert bolivar cash
balances to U.S. dollars. Upon approval from theézeielan government, the Company's Venezuelandsabswill remit approximately
$9.3 million as a dividend to its U.S. based parémis reducing the Company's exposure to currdaggluation.

As stated above, the Company is exposegke of currency devaluation in Venezuela prinyagis a result of bolivar receivable balar
and bolivar cash balances. As a result of a 12epedevaluation of the bolivar during fiscal 200 Company experienced total devaluation
losses of $0.6 million during that same period.

Past devaluation losses may not be refledtf the actual potential for future devaluatiosdes. Even though Venezuela continues to
operate under the exchange controls in place antféinezuelan bolivar exchange rate has remained ik 2150 bolivares to one U.S. dollar
since the devaluation in March 2005, the exact arhand timing of devaluation is uncertain. While @ompany is unable to predict future
devaluation in Venezuela, if fiscal 2007 activigyéls are similar to fiscal 2006, and if a 10 petde 20 percent devaluation were to occur,
the Company could experience potential currencyaldetion losses ranging from approximately $1.3iamlto $2.8 million.

In late August 2003, the Venezuelan stateofeum company agreed, on a prospective bagimyt@ portion of the Company's dollar-
based invoices in U.S. dollars. Were this agreenteand, the Company would again receive these patgnn bolivares and thus increase
bolivar cash balances and exposure to devaluation.

11. Increased Receivables in Venezuela

The Company derives its revenue in Venezfrem PDVSA, the Venezuelan state-owned petroleampany. At the end of fiscal 2006,
the Company had a net receivable from PDVSA of exprately $45 million, of which approximately $16lion was 90 days old or older.
At December 1, 2006, such receivable balance hadased to approximately $66 million, of which apgmately $40 million was 90 days
old or older. The aggregate receivable amount 6fiiBlion approximates the historical high for tBempany's receivables in Venezuela.
Company continues to communicate with PDVSA regeydihe settlement of the outstanding receivables.

While the collection of the receivableglifficult and time consuming due to PDVSA policasd procedures, the Company, at this time,
has no reason to believe the amounts will not lig phstorically, PDVSA payments on accounts reabie have, by traditional business
measurements, been slower than those of othegfooeistomers of the Company. However, the faildife[@VSA to make payments on
outstanding receivables, or a continued increadis thelay in making payments could have a matadakrse effect on the Company's
financial condition and results of operations.

In order to establish a source of localtency to meet current obligations in Venezuelavaobs, the Company is borrowing in the form
of short-term notes from two local banks in Vendaad the market interest rates designated by dinésh

12. Government Regulation and Environmental Ris&

Many aspects of the Company's operatioasalject to government regulation, including thedating to drilling practices and methc
and the level of taxation. In addition, the Unittstes and various other countries have enviroraheggulations which affect drilling
operations. Drilling contractors may be liable i@mages resulting from pollution. Under United &ategulations, drilling contractors must
establish financial responsibility to cover potahtiability for pollution of offshore waters. Geradly, the Company is indemnified under
drilling contracts from liability arising from paltion, except in certain cases of surface pollutldowever, the enforceability of
indemnification provisions in foreign countries mag questionable.

The Company believes that it is in subsshisbmpliance with all legislation and regulaticaffecting its operations in the drilling of oil
and gas wells and in controlling the discharge a$tes. To date, compliance has not materially egftethe capital expenditures, earnings, or
competitive position of the
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Company, although these measures may add to tkeafadrilling operations. Additional legislatiom cegulation may reasonably be
anticipated, and the effect thereof on operati@mnot be predicted.

13. Interest Rate Risk

The Company has a $200 million intermediaten unsecured debt obligation with staged magsrirom August 2007 to August 2014,
with varying fixed interest rates for each matusgries. There was $200 million outstanding at&aper 30, 2006, of which $25 million is
due in 2007 and the remaining $175 million is d0e2through 2014. The average interest rate duhi@gext four years on this debt is
6.4 percent, after which it increases to 6.5 percHme fair value of this debt at September 30,62@@s approximately $209 million.

At September 30, 2006, the Company hadaocepa committed unsecured line of credit tota$s§ million with no outstanding
borrowings. The Company, as of September 30, 2086 )etters of credit totaling $16.4 million outsténg against such line of credit. The
Company's line of credit interest rate is based IBOR plus 87.5 to 112.5 basis points or prime rsiid5 to 150 basis points based on the
Company's EBITDA to net debt ratio. As the Compdrgws on this line of credit, it is subject to theerest rates prevailing during the term
at which the Company had outstanding borrowings.

In December 2006, the Company expects tier émto a five-year $400 million senior unsecuceedit facility. Borrowings under this
credit facility will be subject to floating interemates. If the Company enters into this senioeanged credit facility then the existing $50
million unsecured line of credit will be reduced®® million.

Interest rates could rise for various r@asa the future and increase the Company's totatést expense, depending upon the amount
borrowed against the credit line.

14. Equity Price Risk

At September 30, 2006, the Company hadtigtio of available-for-sale securities with adabmarket value of $336.1 million. These
securities are subject to a wide variety of markédted risks that could substantially reduce ordase the market value of the Company's
holdings. Except for the Company's holdings in Addd@ceanics, Inc. and investments in limited pastnips carried at cost, the portfolio is
recorded at fair value on its balance sheet witinges in unrealized after-tax value reflected édbuity section of its balance sheet. Any
reduction in market value would have an impactren@ompany's debt ratio and financial strength.

15. Reliance on Small Number of Customers

In fiscal 2006, the Company received apjmaxely 57 percent of its consolidated operatingereies from the Company's ten largest
contract drilling customers and approximately 2Ecpat of its consolidated operating revenues froaenGompany's three largest customers
(including their affiliates). The Company believbat its relationship with all of these customargdod; however, the loss of one or more of
its larger customers would have a material adveifeet on the Company's results of operations.

16. Key Personnel

The Company utilizes highly skilled persehim operating and supporting its businessedmeg of high utilization, it can be difficult to
find qualified individuals. Although to date the i@pany's operations have not been materially affielsyecompetition for personnel, an
inability to obtain a sufficient number of qualifigpersonnel could materially impact the Comparsgsiits of operations.

17. Changes in Technologies

Although the Company takes measures torerthat it uses advanced oil and natural gasmiliechnology, changes in technology or
improvements in competitors' equipment could malkeQ@ompany's equipment less competitive or recuigngficant capital investments to
keep its equipment competitive.

18. Concentration of Credit

The concentration of the Company's custerrethe energy industry could cause them to bdasimaffected by changes in industry
conditions and, as a result, could impact the Camgaexposure to credit risk. The Company cannfer @fssurances that losses due to
uncollectible receivables will be consistent wikpectations.

tem 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

The Company has received no written commegarding its periodic or current reports from staff of the Securities and Exchange
Commission that were issued 180 days or more piegdide end of its 2006 fiscal year and that remairesolved
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Item 2. PROPERTIES
CONTRACT DRILLING

The following table sets forth certain infation concerning the Company's U.S. drilling @gsof September 30, 2006:

Location Rig Optimum Depth Rig Type Drawworks: Horsepower
FLEXRIGS
TEXAS 164 18,00( SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 165 18,00( SCR (FlexRig1 1,50(C
TEXAS 16€ 18,00( SCR (FlexRig1 1,50(C
TEXAS 167 18,00( SCR (FlexRig1 1,50(C
TEXAS 16¢€ 18,00( SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 16¢ 18,00( SCR (FlexRigl 1,50(
TEXAS 17¢ 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
WYOMING 17¢ 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
WYOMING 18C 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(C
OKLAHOMA 181 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(C
TEXAS 182 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(C
TEXAS 18 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 184 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18E 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 18€ 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(
TEXAS 187 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(C
TEXAS 18¢€ 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(C
OKLAHOMA 18¢ 18,00( SCR (FlexRig2 1,50(C
TEXAS 21C 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 211 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 212 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 21z 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 214 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
COLORADO 21F 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
TEXAS 21€ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
TEXAS 217 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 21€ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 21¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22C 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
LOUISIANA 221 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
TEXAS 222 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
TEXAS 22¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
TEXAS 224 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 228 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22€ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
TEXAS 2217 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 22¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
TEXAS 22¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
TEXAS 23C 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
TEXAS 231 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 232 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
TEXAS 232 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
TEXAS 234 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 23t 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
TEXAS 23€ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
TEXAS 237 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C
TEXAS 23¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
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COLORADO 23¢ 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(C

TEXAS 24C 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
WYOMING 241 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 247 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
TEXAS 24E 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50(
COLORADO 271 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 272 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 277 14,00 AC FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 274 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 27E 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 27€ 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 277 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 27¢ 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
NEW MEXICO 281 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
NEW MEXICO 282 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
NEW MEXICO 282 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
WYOMING 284 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 28t 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 28€ 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
WYOMING 287 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 28¢ 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 28¢ 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 29¢ 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
COLORADO 291 8,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,15(
TEXAS 292 14,00( AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(
TEXAS 294 14,00 AC (FlexRig4) 1,50(

HIGHLY MOBILE RIGS

OKLAHOMA 14C 10,00¢( Mechanica 90C
OKLAHOMA 15¢ 10,00( SCR 90C
TEXAS 15€ 12,00( Mechanica 1,20C
WYOMING 15¢ 12,00( Mechanica 1,20(
OKLAHOMA 141 14,00( Mechanica 1,20C
TEXAS 142 14,00( Mechanica 1,20(C
LOUISIANA 143 14,00( Mechanica 1,20C
TEXAS 14E 14,00( Mechanica 1,20(
TEXAS 15& 14,00( SCR 1,20(
TEXAS 14¢€ 16,00( SCR 1,20(
TEXAS 147 16,00( SCR 1,20C
WYOMING 154 16,00( SCR 1,50(

CONVENTIONAL RIGS

TEXAS 11C 12,00( SCR 70C
OKLAHOMA 96 16,00( SCR 1,00(C
TEXAS 11€ 16,00( SCR 1,20(C
OKLAHOMA 11¢ 16,00( SCR 1,20C
TEXAS 12C 16,00( SCR 1,20(
TEXAS 171 16,00( SCR 1,00(
WYOMING 172 16,00( Mechanica 1,00(
TEXAS 122 16,00( SCR 1,70C
OKLAHOMA 162 18,00( SCR 1,50(
LOUISIANA 79 20,00( SCR 2,00(
TEXAS 80 20,00( SCR 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 89 20,00( SCR 1,50(
OKLAHOMA 92 20,00( SCR 1,50(
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OKLAHOMA 94 20,00( SCR

OKLAHOMA 98 20,00( SCR
TEXAS 97 26,00( SCR
LOUISIANA 98 26,00( SCR
TEXAS 137 26,00( SCR
TEXAS 14¢ 26,00( SCR
TEXAS 14¢ 26,00( SCR
LOUISIANA 72 30,00( SCR
OKLAHOMA 73 30,00( SCR
TEXAS 12t 30,00( SCR
LOUISIANA 134 30,00( SCR
MISSISSIPP] 13€ 30,00( SCR
TEXAS 157 30,00( SCR
LOUISIANA 161 30,00( SCR
LOUISIANA 163 30,00( SCR

OFFSHORE PLATFORM RIGS

GULF OF MEXICO 203 20,00( Self-Erecting
GULF OF MEXICO 20& 20,00( Tensior-leg
LOUISIANA 20€ 20,00( Self-Erecting
GULF OF MEXICO 10C 30,00¢( Conventiona
GULF OF MEXICO 10E 30,00( Conventiona
GULF OF MEXICO 107 30,00( Conventiona
GULF OF MEXICO 201 30,00( Tensior-leg
GULF OF MEXICO 202 30,00¢( Tensior-leg
GULF OF MEXICO 204 30,00( Tensior-leg

1,50(
1,50C
2,00¢
2,00¢
2,00¢
2,00¢
2,00(
3,00¢
3,00(
3,00¢
3,00(¢
3,00¢
3,00(¢
3,00¢
3,00(

2,50(
2,00¢
1,50¢
3,00¢
3,00¢
3,00¢
3,00(¢
3,00¢
3,00(

The following table sets forth informatiasith respect to the utilization of the Company'$land and offshore drilling rigs for the

periods indicated:

Years ended September 30,

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
U.S. Land Rigs
Number of rigs owned at end of peri 66 83 87 91 11z
Average rig utilization rate during period | 84% 81% 87% 94% 9%
U.S. Offshore Platform Rig
Number of rigs owned at end of peri 12 12 11 11 9
Average rig utilization rate during period { 83% 51% 48% 53% 69%

(1) Arrigis considered to be utilized when it is ogedhor being moved, assembled, or dismantled ucatgract.
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The following table sets forth certain infation concerning the Company's internationalidglrigs as of September 30, 2006:

Location Rig Optimum Depth Rig Type Drawworks: Horsepower
Argentina 13¢ 30,00(+ SCR 3,00(
Argentina 17t 30,00( SCR 3,00(¢
Argentina 177 30,00( SCR 3,00(¢

Bolivia 151 30,000+ SCR 3,00(

Chile 123 26,00( SCR 2,10C
Colombia 133 30,00( SCR 3,00
Colombia 152 30,00(+ SCR 3,00(¢

Ecuadol 22 18,00( SCR (Heli Rig) 1,70C

Ecuadol 23 18,00( SCR (Heli Rig) 1,50C

Ecuadot 132 18,00¢ SCR 1,50(

Ecuadot 17¢€ 18,00( SCR 1,50(

Ecuadot 121 20,00( SCR 1,70C

Ecuadot 117 26,00( SCR 2,50(

Ecuadot 13¢ 26,00( SCR 2,50(C

Ecuadot 19C 26,00( SCR 2,00(¢

Tunisia 242 18,00( AC (FlexRig3) 1,50C
Venezuele 16C 26,00( SCR 2,00(¢
Venezuele 11¢ 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 11E 30,00( SCR 3,00(¢
Venezuele 11€ 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 127 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 12¢€ 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 12¢ 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 13E 30,00( SCR 3,00(¢
Venezuele 15C 30,00( SCR 3,00(
Venezuele 174 30,00( SCR 3,00C
Venezuele 1532 30,00+ SCR 3,00(

The following table sets forth informatiasith respect to the utilization of the Company*inational drilling rigs for the periods
indicated:

Years ended September 30,

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Number of rigs owned at end of Peri 33 32 32 26 27
Average rig utilization rate during period (1) 51% 39% 54% 7% 90%

(1) Arrig is considered to be utilized when it is ogethor being moved, assembled, or dismantled ucatgract.

2 Does not include rigs returned to the United Stidesnajor modifications and upgrades.
REAL ESTATE OPERATIONS

Sedtem 1. BUSINESS, pages 5 through 6 of this Report, which is incogaped herein by reference.
STOCK PORTFOLIO

Information required by this item regardihg stock portfolio held by the Company may benfibon, and is incorporated by reference
page 27 of the Company's Annual Report (Exhibitdlthis Form 1K) under the caption, "Management's Discussion &lsis of Financie
Condition and Results of Operations."
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Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company is subject to various clainat #rise in the ordinary course of its businesshénopinion of management, the amount of
ultimate liability with respect to these actiondlwbt materially affect the financial position stdts of operations, or liquidity of the Compa
The Company is not a party to, and none of its @ryps subject to, any material pending legal pestings.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

None.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

The following table sets forth the named ages of the Company's executive officers, togaetfith all positions and offices held with t
Company by such executive officers. Officers agetld to serve until the meeting of the Board aéEtors following the next Annual
Meeting of Stockholders and until their succes$ange been elected and have qualified or until thailier resignation or removal.

W. H. Helmerich, Ill, 85

Hans Helmerich, 48

Douglas E. Fears, £

Steven R. Mackey, 55

John W. Lindsay, 45

M. Alan Orr, 55

Chairman of the Board; Director since 1949; Chainrofthe Board since 19¢

President and Chief Executive Officer; Directorc&iri987; President and Chief Executive Officeresinc
1989

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer sinc&8

Vice President, Secretary and General Counselg&egrsince 1990; Vice President and General
Counsel since 19¢

Executive Vice President, U.S. and Internationat@pons of Helmerich & Payne International Drigin
Co. since 2006; Vice President of U.S. Land Openatof Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co.
since 199

Executive Vice President, Drilling Technology andvglopment of Helmerich & Payne International

Drilling Co. since 2006; Vice President and Chiebiheer of Helmerich & Payne International Drilling
Co. since 199;
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PART Il

tem 5. MARKET FOR THE COMPANY'S COMMON STOCK AN D RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

The principal market on which the Compargsmon stock is traded is the New York Stock Exgieaunder the symbol "HP". The hi
and low sale prices per share for the common dtorc&ach quarterly period during the past two fisesars as reported in the NYSE-
Composite Transaction quotations follow:

2005 2006
Quarter High Low High Low
First $17.08( $13.83( $32.37! $24.94!
Seconc 20.55( 15.78¢ 39.35( 30.42(
Third 23.46( 18.69( 39.95( 26.37¢
Fourth 30.56( 23.80¢ 30.45¢ 22.02(

The Registrant paid quarterly cash divideddring the past two years as shown in the foligwable:

Paid per Share Total Payment
Fiscal Fiscal
Quarter 2005 2006 2005 2006
First $.0412! $.0412! $4,165,96 $4,290,90
Seconc .0412¢ .0412¢ 4,213,59 4,333,06!
Third .0412¢ .0450( 4,226,83! 4,344,98
Fourth .0412¢ .0450( 4,259,85: 4,743,33.

The Company paid a cash dividend of $0.Qz&50share on December 1, 2006, to shareholdeesofd on November 15, 2006. Paymr
of future dividends will depend on earnings anceofiactors. All per share amounts have been adjwstea result of a two-for-one stock split
effective June 26, 2006.

As of December 5, 2006, there were 758reholders of the Company's common stock as listette transfer agent's records.
Summary of All Existing Equity Compensation Plans
The following chart sets forth informatioancerning the equity compensation plans of the @ as of September 30, 2006.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION (1)

Number of securities

Weighted- remaining available
Number of securities average exercise for future issuance
to be issued upon price of under equity
exercise of outstanding compensation plans

outstanding options, options, warrants (excluding securities

Plan Category warrants and rights and rights Reflected in column (a))
(@ (b) (©)

Equity compensation plans approved by security drsl@2) 5,618,82 $14.243i 4,000,001
Equity compensation plans not approved by sechuotger:
3 — — —
Total 5,618,82i $14.243i 4,000,001

(1) Allinformation has been adjusted as a result wi@for-one stock split effective June 26, 2006.

2) Includes the 1996 Stock Incentive Plan, the 200@kSIncentive Plan, and the 2005 Long-Term IncenENan of the Company.
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(3)  The Company does not maintain any equity compessatans that have not been approved by the stéaiso
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers.
The following table reflects purchases mddeng the 2006 fiscal year:

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES (1)

(d) Maximum
Number (or
(c) Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Shares (or Units) Value) of Shares (or
(a) Total Number of (b) Average Price Purchased as Part of Units) That May Yet
Shares (or Units) Paid Per Share (or Publicly Announced Be Purchased Under
Period Purchased Unit) Plans or Programs Plans or Programs
July -July 31, 200¢ — — — —
August ~August 31, 200t — — — —
September-September 30, 20! 1,325,201 $ 22.765¢ — 2,674,80
TOTAL 1,325,201 $ 22.765¢ — 2,674,80!

(1) The Company has a program to repurchase its Con8tauk in the open market. On December 5, 2001Ctmapany's Board of
Directors authorized a stock repurchase prograrthforepurchase of up to two (2) million sharesqadendar year, with such annual
authorization being adjusted to four (4) milliorasis due to the two-for-one stock split effectiveel 26, 2006. The repurchases may
be made using the Company's cash reserves orataiable sources. The program has no expiratiom loiat may be terminated at
any time at the Board of Directors' discretion. T@npany plans to continue making open-market @ses of its stock on an
opportunistic basis. All shares reported in thevattable were purchased in the open market otla@r ttirough a publicly announced
plan or program. No other purchases were madac¢alf2006.

ltem 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table summarizes selectedificial information and should be read in conjunttigth the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the Notes thereto and the relateddédment's Discussion & Analysis of Financial Ctiodiand Results of Operations
contained on pages 6 through 38 of the CompanymalrReport (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K). On Sapber 30, 2002, the Company spun
off Cimarex Energy Co. The historical financial aébr the business conducted by Cimarex Energyf@®002 has been reported as
discontinued operations which is not included i fike-year summary of selected financial data.p&lit share amounts have been adjusted as
a resulf of a two-for-one stock split effective 826, 2006.

Five-year Summary of Selected Financial Data

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006

(in thousands except per share amounts)

Operating revenue $ 523,41¢ $ 504,220 $ 589,05t $ 800,72t $  1,224,81
Asset Impairmen — — 51,51¢ — —
Income from continuing operatiol 53,70¢t 17,87: 4,35¢ 127,60¢ 293,85¢
Income from continuing operations per comn
share:
Basic 0.54 0.1¢ 0.04 1.2¢ 2.81
Diluted 0.5: 0.1¢ 0.04 1.28 2.71
Total asset 1,227,31. 1,417,77 1,406,84 1,663,35! 2,134,71,
Long-term deb 100,00( 200,00( 200,00( 200,00( 175,00(
Cash dividends declared per common sl 0.15¢ 0.1¢ 0.1612! 0.16¢ 0.172¢
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ltem 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Information required by this item may berfid on, and is incorporated by reference to, paghsough 38 of the Company's Annual
Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K) under the tiap "Management's Discussion & Analysis of Finah€ondition and Results of
Operations."

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE S ABOUT MARKET RISK

Information required by this item may beriid under the caption "Risk Factors" beginning agep6 of this Report and on, and is
incorporated by reference to, the following pagethe Company's Annual Report (Exhibit 13 to thigs 10-K) under Management's
Discussion & Analysis of Financial Condition andsRks of Operations and in Notes to Consolidate@diiial Statements:

Market Risk Page

» Foreign Currency Exchange Rate R 34-35
» Credit Risk 35-36
» Commodity Price Ris 36-37
* Interest Rate Ris 37
» Equity Price Risl 38

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY D ATA

Information required by this item may berid on, and is incorporated by reference to, pagesough of the Company's Annual
Report (Exhibit 13 to this Form 10-K).

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUN TANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls d&rdcedures.

As of the end of the period covered by this Anrie@port on Form 10-K, the Company's management,ruhdesupervision
and with the participation of the Company's Chigéé&utive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evated the effectiveness of
the design and operation of the Company's disatosontrols and procedures (as defined in Ruleslb8a) or 15d-15(e) under
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendedi @sptember 30, 2006. Based on that evaluatienCompany's Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer congé that:

. the Company's disclosure controls and procedusedesigned to ensure that information requirecetdibclosed by th
Company in the reports it files or submits under $ecurities Exchange Act of 1934 is recorded,gs®ed, summariz
and reported within the time periods specifiechia 8EC's rules and forms; and

. the Company's disclosure controls and proceduresatgsuch that important information flows to apprate
collection and disclosure points in a timely manaied are effective to ensure that such informasactcumulated and
communicated to the Company's management, and kmasen to the Company's Chief Executive Officer @&tdef
Financial Officer, particularly during the periocdven this Annual Report on Form 10-K was prepars@pgpropriate to
allow timely decision regarding the required discie.

b) Management's Report of Internal Caraver Financial Reporting.

Management of the Company is responsible for dstdbfy and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting
as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) untderSecurities Exchange Act of 1934. The Companigsnal control over
financial reporting is designed to provide reasdmalssurance regarding the reliability of financggorting and the preparati
of financial statements for external purposes toeatance with generally accepted accounting
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principles. The Company's internal control oveafinial reporting includes those policies and procesl that:

0] pertain to the maintenance of records that, inaralsle detail, accurately and fairly reflect trenactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(i) provide reasonable assurance that transactionse@reded as necessary to permit preparation ofifiahstatements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting iptes; and that receipts and expenditures of thegamy are being
made only in accordance with authorizations of nganaent and the Board of Directors of the Compang; a

(i)  provide reasonable assurance regarding preventimely detection of unauthorized acquisition, oselisposition of
the Company's assets that could have a materedtadf the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @étisstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectivenessutufe periods are subject to the risk that contrdy become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or that the degfreempliance with the policies or procedures rdateriorate.

Management, with the participation of the Compa@figef Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officeonducted its
evaluation of the effectiveness of internal corstrmVer financial reporting based on the framewaorkaternal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSping Organizations of the Treadway Commissidris €valuation
included review of the documentation of controlslaation of the design effectiveness of contri@sting of the operating
effectiveness of controls and a conclusion ongkiuation. Although there are inherent limitatiomshe effectiveness of any
system of internal controls over financial repagtibased on the Company's evaluation, managemsmonaluded that the
Company's internal controls over financial repaytivere effective as of September 30, 2006.

The Company's independent registered public acoayfitm that audited the Company's financial statets, Ernst & Young
LLP, has issued an attestation report on manag&rasgessment of the Company's internal contralfonancial reporting.
This report appears below.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm
Board of Directors and Shareholders of Helmerich &Payne, Inc.

We have audited management's assessmenged in the accompanying Management's Reporitefal Control over Financial
Reporting, that Helmerich & Payne, Inc. maintaiefgctive internal control over financial reportiag of September 30, 2006, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrakgdmework issued by the Committee of Sponsorirgafizations of the Treadway
Commission (the COSO criteria). Helmerich and Payme's management is responsible for maintaieiffective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of fifiecéveness of internal control over financial ogfing. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management's assessment and an opinithe @ffectiveness of the company's internal bwoiver financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withstandards of the Public Company Accounting Qgiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &amdbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is: audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management's assessment, testing ahatng the design and operating effectivenessitafrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over finanagigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttlegenerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fioai reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkstents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (8jige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsets that could have a material effect on thenfirzd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenqaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessmenHelanerich & Payne, Inc. maintained effective mtd control over financial reporting as of
September 30, 20086, is fairly stated, in all mategspects, based on the COSO criteria. Alsoyuiropinion, Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
maintained, in all material respects, effectiveingl control over financial reporting as of Septem30, 2006, based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited, in accordance wighstandards of the Public Company Accounting Oghtdoard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Helmerich & Payre,ds of September 30, 2006 and 2005, and thiedetansolidated statements of inco
shareholders' equity, and cash flows for eachetlihee years in the period ended September 36, &@¥8elmerich & Payne, Inc. and our
report dated December 7, 2006, expressed an ufigdalpinion thereon.

Ernst & Young LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
December 7, 2006
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¢) Changes in Internal Controls Overdricial Reporting

There were no changes in the Company's internatalsrover financial reporting during the Comparfgisrth fiscal quarter of 2006
that have materially affected, or are reasonakbflyito materially affect, the Company's internahtrol over financial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
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PART 1lI
Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE COMPANY

Information required under this item wittspect to Directors, audit committees, and otherlasures under Item 401 of Regulation S-K,
as well as delinquent filers pursuant to Item 4DRegulation K is incorporated by reference from the Compangfinitive Proxy Stateme
for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be heldrivh 7, 2007, to be filed with the Commission rad¢i than 120 days after September 30,
2006.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethigcaple to its CEO, CFO and Senior Financial Gffgc The text of such Code is locatec
the Company's website under "Investor Relatio@®+porate Governance." The Company's Internet addsavww.hpinc.com. The Compe
intends to disclose any amendments to or waivers fts Code of Ethics on its website.

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This information is incorporated by refezerfrom the Company's definitive Proxy Statementtie Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be held March 7, 2007, to be filed with the Comioissiot later than 120 days after September 306200

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIA L OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

This information is incorporated by refezerfrom the Company's definitive Proxy Statementtie Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be held March 7, 2007, to be filed with the Comioissiot later than 120 days after September 306200

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANS ACTIONS

This information is incorporated by refererirom the Company's definitive Proxy Statementtie Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be held March 7, 2007, to be filed with the Comioissiot later than 120 days after September 306200

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

This information is incorporated by refererirom the Company's definitive Proxy Statementtie Annual Meeting of Stockholders to
be held March 7, 2007, to be filed with the Comioissiot later than 120 days after September 306200

PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDU LES

a) 1. Financial Statemeni: The following appear in the Company's AnnuapBrt to Stockholders on the pages indicated below
and are incorporated herein by referet

Report of Independent Registered Public AccourfEing 39
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Yeare&@Eptember 30, 2006, 2005 and 2 40
Consolidated Balance Sheets at September 30, 2@DB0D5 41-42
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' EquitthfolYears Ended September 30, 2006, 2005 and 43
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Yieaded September 30, 2006, 2005 and 2 44
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements At $ejpée 30, 200t 45-75
2. Financial Statement Schedu: All schedules are omitted as inapplicableexguse the required information is contained in

the financial statements or included in the ndtesdto.
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3. Exhibits.

The following documents are included as exkitn this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Exhibitsangorated herein

are duly noted as suc

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

*10.1

*10.2

*10.3

*10.4

*10.5

*10.6

*10.7

*10.8

*10.9

*10.1C

Amended and Restated Certificate of IncorporatioHelmerich & Payne, Inc

Amended and Restated By-Laws of the Company awgpocated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Company's Form-K filed on March 2, 2006, SEC File No. (-04221.

Rights Agreement dated as of January 8, 1996, lestthee Company and The Liberty National Bank angsfrr
Company of Oklahoma City, N.A. is incorporated lietey reference to the Company's Form 8-A, dated
January 18, 1996, SEC File No. -04221.

Amendment to Rights Agreement dated December & ,288tween the Company and UMB Bank, N.A. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4 & @ompany's Form 8-K filed on December 12, 200%; Gite
No. 001-04221.

Consulting Services Agreement between W. H. Helchelil, and the Company dated March 30, 1990, is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8hef Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to theu8#es
and Exchange Commission for fiscal 1996, SEC Fde 00-04221.

Amendment to Consulting Services Agreement betwW&ehl. Helmerich, 1ll, and the Company dated
December 26, 1991

Second Amendment to Consulting Services Agreemetmtden W. H. Helmerich, 1ll, and the Company dated
September 11, 2006, is incorporated herein by eafar to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Form 8-Kdfile
September 13, 2006, SEC File No. -04221.

Supplemental Retirement Income Plan for SalarieplByees of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporatedein
by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the Company's AniiReport on Form 10-K to the Securities and Excleang
Commission for fiscal 1996, SEC File No. -04221.

Supplemental Savings Plan for Salaried Employeésetrherich and Payne, Inc. is incorporated hergin b
reference to Exhibit 10.9 to the Company's Annugpdtt on Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange
Commission for fiscal 1999, SEC File No. (-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Pmcorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 98.the
Company's Registration Statement No.-34939 on Form -8 dated September 4, 19¢

Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement for thelmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Rfan
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to therPany's Registration Statement No. 333-34939 omF2x8
dated September 4, 19¢

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement for the HelnteicPayne, Inc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plan is incogped
by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to the Company's AatiiReport on Form 10-K to the Securities and Exglean
Commission for fiscal 1997, SEC File No. (-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive PRincorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 96.the
Company's Registration Statement No.-63124 on Form -8 dated June 15, 20C

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2@16ck Incentive Plan being (i) Restricted Stockahav
Agreement, (ii) Incentive Stock Option Agreemend #iii) Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement are
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to thenpany's Registration Statement No. 333-63124 omF48
dated June 15, 200
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*10.11

*10.12

10.1

10.1¢4

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2(

*10.21

Form of Director Nonqualified Stock Option Agreerhéor the 2000 Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Stock Indent
Plan is incorporated herein by reference to ExHiBifl of the Company's Quarterly Report on FornQ1@-the
Securities and Exchange Commission for the quartded June 30, 2002, SEC File No.-04221.

Form of Change of Control Agreement for HelmericliP&yne, Inc. is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Company's Quarterly Report annf 10-Q to the Securities and Exchange Commission fc
quarter ended June 30, 2002, SEC File No-04221.

Credit Agreement, dated as of July 16, 2002, antéelgnerich & Payne International Drilling Co., Helrredh &
Payne, Inc., the several lenders from time to {akty thereto, and Bank of Oklahoma, N.A. is incwgted
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Compau@uarterly Report on Form 10-Q to the Securitieb a
Exchange Commission for the quarter ended Jun2@I2, SEC File No. 0(-04221.

First Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July?®3, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &iiRa
International Drilling Co., and Bank of OklahomaANis incorporated herein by reference to Exhlifit14 of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to the Seiesréind Exchange Commission for fiscal 2005, SHE Fi
No. 001-04221.

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement dated Map@42among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &
Payne International Drilling Co., and Bank of Oldafea, N.A. is incorporated herein by reference thikik 10.1¢
of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K toSkeurities and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2@E5Z
File No. 00:-04221.

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July24, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &z
International Drilling Co., and Bank of OklahomaANis incorporated herein by reference to Exhlifit16 of the
Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to the Seiesréind Exchange Commission for fiscal 2005, SHE Fi
No. 001-04221.

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2DP5, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &
Payne International Drilling Co., and Bank of Oldama, N.A. is incorporated herein by reference thikik 10.1
of the Company's Formr-K filed on July 13, 2005, SEC File No. (-04221.

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated July2dQ6, among Helmerich & Payne, Inc., Helmerich &ira
International Drilling Co., and Bank of OklahomaANis incorporated herein by reference to Exhlifit4 of the
Company's Form-K filed on July 11, 2006, SEC File No. (-04221.

Note Purchase Agreement dated as of August 15,,200@ng Helmerich & Payne International Drilling.C
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and various insurance carmgsais incorporated herein by reference to ExHibi0 of
the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K to theu8tes and Exchange Commission for fiscal 2002CSE
File No. 00:-04221.

Office Lease dated May 30, 2003, between K/B Fuhdnd Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is incorporated hetsy
reference to Exhibit 10.18 of the Company's AnrRgport on Form 10-K to the Securities and Exchange
Commission for fiscal 2003, SEC File No. (-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Director Deferred CompeiosaPlan is incorporated herein by reference toifikh0.1
of the Company's Forr-K filed on September 9, 2004, SEC File No. -04221.
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10.2Z

10.2¢

*10.24

*10.2€

*10.2€

*10.27

10.2¢

13.

21.

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.

*

Shareholders Agreement and Registration Rightségent dated July 19, 2004 between Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co. and Atwood Oceanics, licincorporated herein by reference to Exhikit df. the
Company's Amended Schedule 13D filed on July 204z

Underwriting Agreement dated October 13, 2004, betwHelmerich & Payne International Drilling Codan
various underwriters is incorporated herein byneriee to Exhibit 1.1 of the Company's Form 8-Kditen
October 14, 2004, SEC File No. (-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Annual Bonus Plan for ExeauOfficers is incorporated herein by refererze t
Exhibit 10.1 of the Company's Forr-K filed on December 9, 2005, SEC File No. -04221.

Advisory Services Agreement dated February 17, 2068veen Helmerich & Payne, Inc. and George Ss@ot
is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 1df.the Company's Form 8-K filed on February 210@0SEC
File No. 00:-04221.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncentivarPis incorporated herein by reference to Appehdlixto
the Company's Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A Jiediary 26, 200t

Form of Agreements for Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 20@8g-Term Incentive Plan: (i) Nonqualified Stocti®n
Agreement, (ii) Incentive Stock Option Agreememidl &iii) Restricted Stock Award Agreeme

Fabrication Contract between Helmerich & Paynerh@gonal Drilling Co. and Southeast Texas Indestrinc. i
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.thef Company's Form 8-K filed on December 7, 2@¥EC File
No. 002-04221.

The Company's Annual Report to Shareholders foafi2006.

List of Subsidiaries of the Compar

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) promulgated under the Securitiehange
Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant tm8&02 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuaot Rule 13a-14(a) promulgated under the Securitieh&nge
Act of 1934, as amended, as adopted pursuant tm8&02 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of Chief Executive Officer and Chieihancial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section(,3&
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sart-Oxley Act of 2002

Management or Compensatory Plan or Arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of SectionrlBs(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, @ompany has duly caused this Report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, théoedmy authorized:

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

By /sl HANS HELMERICH

Hans Helmerich, President and
Chief Executive Officer
Date: December 13, 20(

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this Report has beeresidpelow by the following persons on
behalf of the Company and in the capacities anthermates indicated:

By /sl WILLIAM L. ARMSTRONG By /sl GLENN A. COX

William L. Armstrong, Director
Date: December 13, 20(

Glenn A. Cox, Director
Date: December 13, 20(

By /s/ GEORGE S. DOTSON By /s/ HANS HELMERICH
George S. Dotson, Director Hans Helmerich, Director and CEO
Date: December 13, 20( Date: December 13, 20(
By /s/ W. H. HELMERICH, Il By /s/ EDWARD B. RUST, JR.
W. H. Helmerich, Ill, Director Edward B. Rust, Jr., Director
Date: December 13, 20( Date: December 13, 20(
By /s/ PAULA MARSHALL By /s/ JOHN D. ZEGLIS
Paula Marshall, Director John D. Zeglis, Director
Date: December 13, 20( Date: December 13, 20(
By /s/ DOUGLAS E. FEARS By /s/ GORDON K. HELM

Douglas E. Fears
(Principal Financial Officer)
Date: December 13, 20(
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Exhibit 3.1

AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Pursuant to Sections 242 and 245 of the Delaware @al Corporation Law

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Corporatigré)corporation organized and existing under thee@d Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware, does hereby certify as follows:

(1) The name of the Corporation is Helgte& Payne, Inc. The original certificate of inporation of the Corporation was filed with
the office of the Secretary of State of the Stét@elaware on February 3, 1940 under the name thelgch & Payne, Inc.

(2) This Amended and Restated Certificdtimcorporation was duly adopted by the Boar@®wéctors of the Corporation and its
stockholders in accordance with Sections 242 ado24he General Corporation Law of the State ofalyare.

(3) This Amended and Restated Certificditincorporation restates and integrates and éardimends the Restated Certificate of
Incorporation of the Corporation, as heretofore radeel or supplemented.

(4) The text of the Restated Certificaténcorporation, as heretofore amended or supphade is amended and restated in its entirety
as follows:

FIRST. The name of the corporation is HELRIEH & PAYNE, INC.

SECOND. Its registered office in the Swft®elaware is located at No. 1209 Orange Straghe City of Wilmington, County ¢
New Castle. The name and address of its registagedt is The Corporation Trust Company, No. 1208n@e Street, Wilmington,
Delaware 19801.

THIRD. The nature of the business, or disjec purposes to be transacted, promoted or dasrieare:

(a) To carry on the business of producprgcuring, acquiring, buying, selling and othesgvdisposing of and turning to
account, and dealing in petroleum, crude oil arsla@all grades, asphalt, paraffin, bitumen andrhihous substances of all
kinds, coal, natural gas, carbon and hydrocarbodumts of all kinds, together with any other subsés or by-products, and in
general subsoil products and surface productserfyavature and description; and to acquire, haid, sse any and all




leases, licenses, easements, rights, grants, cioieesnd real and personal property necessaggaired for such purposes;

(b) To prospect, explore and drill foisabver, produce, extract, mine, mill, separateyvest, smelt, refine, dissolve,
reduce, treat, manufacture, store or otherwisettuatcount, sell, exploit, transfer and othervdispose of petroleum, oil and
gas and each and every of the substances spduifilee foregoing clause (a), either in its natdioain or in any altered or
manufactured form, or subdivided or by-product fprm

(c) To build, construct, purchase or othise acquire and to conduct, operate and maimataynplant or plants, machine
devices, appliances and equipment for the extractionanufacture of gasoline, naphtha or othertanbs or byproducts fron
natural gas, casinghead gas or crude oil, andrithpse or otherwise acquire, hold, own and uséspode of any inventions,
devices, formulae, processes for the manufactuextoaction of gasoline, naphtha, or other subssuoc products from gas,
casinghead gas or crude oil, together with angigtpatent thereon and any and all improvementedheand to purchase or
otherwise acquire any and all natural gas and ghed gas and crude oil necessary to the use @ndtiom of said plant or
plants, and to vend, sell or otherwise disposengfamd all of the products of such plant or plaats] to purchase, lease or
otherwise acquire, hold and use any and all réateeand lands necessary for the sites and losatibsaid plant or plants and
the use and operation thereof;

(d) To purchase, buy, or otherwise a@uiold, or prospect, develop, sell, assign antlidea otherwise dispose of all,
gas and mineral leases and oil, gas and minetakrigrants, royalties and privileges, togethehwalt personal property and
equipment used in connection therewith; and tolpase, buy, or otherwise acquire, and to hold, seleor otherwise dispose
of, any and all real estate and lands which maydeessary or required for the uses and purpogéssaforporation subject to
the laws of the jurisdiction where said lands agal estate are located;

(e) To apply for, obtain, register, puash, devise, adopt, lease or otherwise acquird, bwin, use, operate, develop,
introduce, lease, assign, pledge or otherwise dispband contract with reference to any and t#ie patent, copyrights and
trademarks, and any and all registrations or agfdios for registration thereof, and any and alkirtions, improvements,
apparatus, appliances, processes, formulae, desigds names or similar rights, whether used imection with or secured
under letters patent of the United States of Anaeoicof any other government or country, or otheeywand to use, exercise,
develop, exploit or grant licenses with respeatrtotherwise turn to account any of the same, arwiry on any business
(manufacturing, merchandising or




otherwise), which may be deemed to aid, effectoatievelop the same, or any of them directly oireudly;

() To acquire by lease, purchase, @mttrconcession or otherwise, and to own, develgplore, exploit, improve,
operate, lease, enjoy, control, manage or otherwiseto account, mortgage, grant, sell, exchaogeyey or otherwise dispo
of, either within or without the State of Delawaed in any country, domestic or foreign, any amdeal estate, lands, options,
concessions, grants, land patents, franchisessdspmines, mining rights, quarries, locationsjrals, rights, privileges,
easements, tenements, estates, hereditamentsstatand properties of every description and nathegsoever which the
corporation may deem wise and proper in conneetitimthe conduct of any business or businesses eraied in any of the
clauses of this Article THIRD:

(g) To construct, build, purchase, leasgiip or otherwise acquire, and to hold, own, ionpr develop, manage,
maintain, control, lease, mortgage, create liemupell, convey or otherwise dispose of and taradcount:

(1) any and all plants, machinery, work$ineries, implements and things or propertyl oegpersonal, of every
kind and descriptions incidental to, connected witlsuitable or convenient for any of the purpasmsmerated in any
of the clauses of this Article THIRD;

(2) any and all pipe lines, transmisdinas, pumping stations, terminals, storage tamkeservoirs and all
appurtenances relative thereto and necessary genint in connection with any of the businesses@rated in any
of the clauses of this Article THIRD;

(3) any and all tracks, locomotives,nel cars, tank cars, motor cars, motor trucksvahitles of any and eve
description necessary or convenient in connectitimn any of the businesses enumerated in any ofltheses of this
Article THIRD;

(4) any and all ships, docks, boats,tfipharges and vessels (whether operated by se&tactric, oil, gasoline or
any other power), docks, wharves, dry docks, regf@ps, elevators, piers, terminals, warehousestanage plants,
facilities, connections and installations necessargonvenient for any of the businesses enumeratedy of the
clauses of this Article THIRD;

(h) To manufacture, purchase or othenaisguire, own, mortgage, pledge, sell, assign mrtter, or otherwise dispose
of, to invest, trade,




deal in and deal with goods, wares and merchardidepersonal property of every class and descriptio

(i) To acquire, and pay for in cashcktor bonds of this corporation or otherwise, alany part of the goodwill, rights,
assets and property of any person, firm, assoaiaticorporation; to undertake or assume the wbioay part of the
obligations or liabilities of any person, firm, asgtion or corporation; to hold or in any mannespdse of the whole or any
part of the rights and property so acquired; todemh in any lawful manner the whole or any paraoy business so acquired,
and to exercise all the powers necessary or coameand about the conduct and management of sisthdss;

() To guarantee, purchase, hold, sskign, transfer, mortgage, pledge or otherwigeodis of shares of the capital
stock, bonds, debentures, notes, obligations aleeies of indebtedness or other securities creiggedkd or incurred by any
other corporation or corporations organized unbleraws of this state or any other state, coumiion or government, or by
joint stock companies, trustees or other businggasnizations or entities, or by any domestic oeiigm state, government or
governmental authority, or by any political or adisirative subdivision or department thereof, amtssue in payment or
exchange therefor, in whole or in part, its ownrebabonds, debentures, notes or other obligat@rts, make payment there
by any other lawful means, and, while the ownerdbg to exercise all the rights, powers and petyds of ownership,
including the right to vote thereon;

(k) To enter into, make and perform caats of every kind and description with any perdmm, association,
corporation, municipality, county, state, body polor government or colony or dependency thereof;

()  To borrow or raise moneys for anytloé purposes of the corporation, and, from timgnte, without limit as to
amount, to draw, make, accept, endorse, executessme promissory notes, drafts, bills of exchamgerants, bonds,
debentures and other negotiable or non-negotiabteuiments and evidences of indebtedness, andtoesthe payment of any
thereof and of the interest thereon by mortgagengsgledge, conveyance or assignment in trudtefithole or any part of tl
property of the corporation, whether at the timaned or thereafter acquired and to sell, pledgetmrwise dispose of such
bonds or other obligations of the corporation fsrciorporate purposes;

(m) To buy, sell or otherwise deal in spt@pen accounts, and other similar evidencesldf deto loan money and take
notes, open accounts, and other similar evidenfcesli as collateral security therefor;
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(n) To purchase, hold, sell and tranfershares of its own capital stock; provided &llshot use its funds or property
for the purchase of its own shares of capital stelokn such use would cause any impairment of jigalaexcept as otherwise
permitted by law, and provided further that shaxfeiss own capital stock belonging to it shall that voted upon directly or
indirectly;

(0) To have one or more offices, to camyall or any of its operations and business aitilowt restriction or limit as to
amount to purchase or otherwise acquire, hold, omarigage, sell, convoy, or otherwise dispose af aad personal property
of every class and description in any of the Stddéstricts, Territories or Colonies of the UnitSthtes, and in any and all
foreign countries, subject to the laws of suchestBistrict, Territory, Colony or Country;

(p) To do and perform any or all of theae enumerated functions, purposes and actsy eigherincipal or as agent,
broker, contractor, independent contractor, repitasiee or otherwise, specifically including (withidimiting the generality of
the foregoing) the right to carry on a generallidgl contracting business;

(q) To investigate, develop, consummaielertake and carry on any enterprise, businesssdctions, or operation,
commonly carried on or undertaken by contractomdigates, merchants, importers, exporters, matwias, printers,
publishers, warehousers, brokers, or transpoesgenerally, to institute, enter into, carry assist, promote and participate
in financial, commercial, mercantile, and otheribess, works, contracts, undertakings and opestiout only to the extent
permitted by law;

(r) To carry on, and license others taycan, all or any part of the several businessesreerated in this paragraph, to-
wit: The business of: manufacturers, merchantdeti importers, exporters, contractors, prinfgublishers, warehousers, and
dealers in and with goods, wares, and merchandliseeny kind and description; of establishing, depéng, operating and
carrying on industrial, commercial, trading, marotifi@ing, mechanical, metallurgical, engineering)ding, construction,
contracting, mining, smelting, quarrying, refinirdyemical, ice, real estate, logging, lumberingicadtural, plantation,
dairying, advertising, automotive, aviation, suppgld storage, drug (both ethical and proprietariganing, electrical,
electronic, management, food, food products, foynappliance, furniture, laundry, machinery, maehéhop, restaurant,
equipment, instrument, instrumentation, bakingwimg, distilling, apparel, packing, textile, amusam entertainment,
undertakings, propositions, concessions or fraeshisf constructing, developing, equipping and inprg, public, quasi-
public, and private




works and conveniences; and, also, so far as regessincidental to, or connected with any onenare or all of the corpora
purposes herein enumerated, to undertake any ldwgihess transaction or operation undertakenroiedson by merchants,
traders, manufacturers, contractors, importerspe®s, entertainers, printers, publishers, warsém®y commission men and
agents;

(s) In general, to carry on any otheritess in connection with the foregoing, and to have exercise all the powers
conferred by the laws of Delaware upon corporationsied under the General Corporation Law of treteSof Delaware, and
to do any or all of the things hereinbefore sethfdo the same extent as natural persons mighaud @o.

The objects and purposes specified in the foregdimgses shall, except where otherwise expresseid, o wise limited or
restricted by reference to, or inference from,térens of any other clause in this certificate afoirporation, but the objects and
purposes specified in each of the foregoing claoséss article shall be regarded as independbjgiots and purposes.

FOURTH. The total number of shares of Esses of stock which the Corporation shall havkaity to issue is 161,000,000 of which
1,000,000 shares shall be Preferred Stock withauvalue, and the remaining 160,000,000 sharests&ommon Stock of the par value of
ten cents (10¢) per share.

The following is a statement of the destgmes, powers, preferences, and rights and thefmpagions, limitations or restrictions thereof,
of the classes of stock of the Corporation andatitbority of the Board of Directors to fix the same

(1) Shares of Preferred Stock may beedg$rom time to time in one or more series as nagdtermined from time to time by the
Board of Directors, each such series to be digyimtdsignated. All shares of any one series ofdPrefl Stock so designated by the Board of
Directors shall be alike in every particular. Thating rights, if any, of each such series, dividesitgs, and preferences and relative,
participating, optional and other special right®ath such series and the qualifications, limitetior restrictions thereof, if any, may differ
from those of any and all other series at any tnmstanding; and, subject to the provisions of &aehs (4) through (8) of this Part I, the
Board of Directors of the Corporation is herebyresgly granted authority to fix, by resolutionsydatiopted prior to the issuance of any
shares of a particular series of Preferred Stoakesggnated by the Board of Directors, the votinggrs of stock of such series, if any, and
the designations, preferences and relative, ppaticig, optional and other special rights, andahalifications, limitations and restrictions of
such series, including, but without limiting thengeality of the foregoing, the following:

6




(&) The rate and times at which, andéhes and conditions on which, dividends on PreféStock of such series will be paid;

(b) The right, if any, of the holdersRreferred Stock of such series to convert the satagor exchange the same for, shares of
other classes or series of stock of the Corporati@hthe terms and conditions of such conversi@xohange;

(c) The redemption price or prices arelttme or time at which, and the terms and conuiition which, Preferred Stock of such
series may be redeemed;

(d) The rights of the holders of Prefdr&tock of such series upon the voluntary or inwtaly liquidation, dissolution, or
winding-up, or merger, consolidation, distributionsale of assets, of the Corporation;

(e) The terms of the sinking fund or mag¢ion or purchase account, if any, to be provifledhe Preferred Stock of such series;
and

(f) Provisions, if any, for the vote @rnsent of the holders of a stated percentageedfkstanding shares of Preferred Stock of
such series with respect to changes in the rigihtserences or limitations of the shares of suckeseor the designation or issuance of
series of the Preferred Stock by the Board of Dines; or the authorization or issuance of othessga or series of Preferred Stock;

provided, however, that the holders of shares efdPred Stock shall have no right to participatehvie holders of Common Stock in any
distribution of dividends in excess of the prefei@rdividend fixed for such Preferred Stock otthe assets of the Corporation available for
distribution to stockholders in excess of the praiéal amount fixed for such Preferred Stock.

(2) Until requirements that have matungtth respect to preferential dividends on the Rrefi Stock (fixed in accordance with the
provisions of Paragraph (1) of this Part 1) shald been met and until the Corporation shall hawepdied with all such requirements, if any,
with respect to the setting aside of sums as sinkinds or redemption or purchase accounts withe@so the Preferred Stock (fixed in
accordance with the provisions of Paragraph (IhisfPart 1), no dividend or distribution shall p&id or declared upon or in respect of any
Common Stock.

(3) Until distribution in full of the pferential amount to be distributed to the holddrBmeferred Stock (fixed in accordance with the
provisions of Paragraph (1) of this Part I) in #went of voluntary or involuntary liquidation, digstion or winding-up of the Corporation, no
such distribution shall be made to the holdersah@on Stock.




(4) No holder of Preferred Stock of therfidration shall have any preemptive or preferéntjat of subscription to any shares of any
stock of the Corporation of any class, now or higeea@uthorized, or to any obligations convertiioito stock of the Corporation, issued or
sold, nor any right of subscription to any theretifer than such, if any, as the Board of Directdrthe Corporation in its discretion from time
to time may determine, and at such price as thedBofaDirectors from time to time may fix, pursudatthe authority hereby conferred by the
Certificate of Incorporation, and the Board of [Bies may issue stock of the Corporation, or oliiges convertible into stock, without
offering such issue of stock or such obligatiorikesiin whole or in part, to the holders of PreddrStock of the Corporation.

(5) The powers and rights of the holddr€ommon Stock shall be subordinated to the poweeserences and rights of the holders of
Preferred Stock. The relative powers, preferenndsights of each series of Preferred Stock intiaiao the powers, preferences and rights
of each other series of Preferred Stock shallaghecase, be as fixed from time to time by the BadDirectors pursuant to authority granted
in the Certificate of Incorporation; provided, hoxge, that except as may be provided by law andpba@® set forth in Paragraph (6) and
Paragraph (7) of this Part I, no holder of shafd3referred Stock of any series shall be entittethbre than one vote in respect of each share
of such stock held by him on any matter voted ostbgkholders other than elections of directorsyliich case the Board of Directors may
accord cumulative voting rights to holders of skavkany Preferred Stock.

(6) Notwithstanding the provisions of &gmaph (5) of this Part |, the Board of Direct@sting pursuant to authority granted in this
Certificate of Incorporation in respect of any eerof Preferred Stock, may provide that if thisgowation shall have defaulted in the payment
of dividends on any such series of Preferred Sitoel amount equivalent to or exceeding six fubiiderly dividends (whether or not
consecutive) or the Corporation shall have defdutiemaking any two mandatory sinking fund paymemtsany such series of Preferred
Stock, the holders of one or more or all of sudieseof Preferred Stock in respect of which anyhsdefault shall have occurred (voting as a
single class) shall be entitled to elect, in thgragate, not more than two directors.

(7) The issuance of shares of any sefi€seferred Stock by the Board of Directors of @@ poration shall be subject to such
limitations and restrictions as may be providedifiathe Certificate of Incorporation or by the Baaf Directors, pursuant to authority grar
in the Certificate of Incorporation, including pision for the consent, by class vote, of the ha@ddra stated percentage of the outstanding
shares of any series of Preferred Stock.

(8) Subject to the provisions of Para@réf) of this Part |, shares of any series of RreteStock may be authorized or issued, in
aggregate amounts not exceeding the total numtsrases of Preferred Stock authorized by the @eatd of Incorporation, from time to tir
as the Board of Directors of the Corporation stlatermine and for such consideration as shallxsslfby the Board of Directors.
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Subiject to the prior and superior rightshaf Preferred Stock, and on the conditions séh farthe foregoing Part | or in any resolution of
the Board of Directors providing for the issuan€amy particular series of Preferred Stock, andatibérwise, such dividends (payable in
cash, stock or otherwise) as may be determinetidBbard of Directors may be declared and paicherCommon Stock from time to time
any funds legally available therefor.

The holders of the Common Stock shall kéled to one vote for each share held at all nmgstiof the stockholders of the Corporation.

After payment shall have been made intfuthe holders of the Preferred Stock in the eeéany liquidation, dissolution or winding up
of the affairs of the Corporation, the remainingeis and funds of the Corporation shall be disteitb@mong the holders of the Common
Stock according to their respective shares.

Ownership of shares of any class of thétabgtock of the Corporation shall not entitle thaders thereof to any preemptive right to
subscribe for or purchase any additional sharespital stock of any class of the Corporation or securities convertible into any class of
capital stock of the Corporation, however acquiissiied or sold by the corporation, it being theppse and intent that the Board of Direc
shall have full right, power and authority to offer subscription or sell or to make any disposairy or all unissued shares of the capital
stock of the corporation or any securities conbétinto stock of any or all shares of stock oneatible securities issued and thereafter
acquired by the corporation, for such consideratiat less than the par value thereof, in mongyroperty, as the Board of Directors shall
determine.

\A

The Corporation shall be entitled to trdw&t person in whose name any share, right or ofgioegistered as the owner thereof, for all
purposes, and shall not be bound to recognize quiyable or other claim to, or interest in, suchrshright or option on the part of any other
person, whether or not the corporation shall hat&e thereof, save as may be expressly providdedvey of the State of Delaware.

FIFTH. The Corporation is to have perpeiastence.
SIXTH. The private property of the stocldals shall not be subject to the payment of cotpatabts to any extent whatever.

SEVENTH. In furtherance and not in limitatiof the powers conferred by statute, and in audib the powers which may be conferred
by the By-Laws, the Board




of Directors of the Corporation shall have thedaling expressly stipulated powers and authoritywyito
To make, alter or repeal the By-Laws of the Corplora
To authorize and cause to be executed mortgagelseasdipon the real and personal property of thep@ration.

To set apart out of any of the funds of the Corponaavailable for dividends a reserve or resefeesany proper purpose and to
abolish any such reserve in the manner in whiglag created.

By resolution or resolutions, passed by a majaitthe whole board to designate one or more coragstteach committee to consist
of two or more of the directors of the Corporatimich, to the extent provided in said resolutiomesolutions or in the By-Laws of
the Corporation, shall have and may exercise theepoof the Board of Directors in the managemenhefbusiness and affairs of the
Corporation, and may have power to authorize théafethe Corporation to be affixed to all papetssh may require it. Such
committee or committees shall have such name oesa@s may be stated in the By-Laws of the Corporair as may be determined
from time to time by resolution adopted by the Bbaf Directors.

When and as authorized by the affirmative votehefhiolders of a majority of the stock issued andtanding having voting power
given at a stockholders meeting duly called fot thapose, or when authorized by the written coneéthe holders of a majority of
the voting stock issued and outstanding, to sedisé or exchange all of the property and asséite @orporation, including its good
will and its corporate franchises, upon such teams conditions and for such consideration, whicly bein whole or in part shares of
stock in, and/or other securities of, any othepoaation or corporations, as its Board of Directrall deem expedient and for the |
interests of the corporation.

Also, the corporation may in its By-Laws confer ms/upon its Board of Directors in addition to fbeegoing, and in addition to the powers
and authorities expressly conferred upon it byustat

EIGHTH. The corporation shall be entitledrieat the person in whose name any share iseegisas the owner thereof for all purposes,
and shall not be bound to recognized any equitabtgher claims to, or interest in, such sharehenpart of any other person, whether or not
the corporation shall have notice thereof, excepitherwise expressly provided by the statuteh@BState of Delaware.

NINTH. The number of Directors which const the whole Board of Directors of the Corponatihall be such as from time to time
shall be fixed by or in the manner provided in ByeLaws, but in no case shall the number be leas three. Vacancies in
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the Board of Directors, whether created by incréaslee number of Directors or otherwise, shalfided in the manner provided in the By-
Laws. The Directors shall be divided into threess&s. At the Annual Meeting of Stockholders in 1®#t® class of Directors, composed of
three Directors to be known as the "first clashglisbe elected for a one-year term; one class csexbof two directors to be known as the
"second class" shall be elected for a two-year tamd one class, composed of two directors, tonmsvk as the "third class”, shall be elected
for a threeyear term. At each succeeding Annual Meeting o€lgiolders, successors to the class of Directorsseierm expires in that ye
will be elected for a three-year term. Vacanciearny class that occur prior to the expiration & then current term of such class, if filled by
the Board of Directors, shall be filled for the r@nder of the full term of such class. If the numbgDirectors is hereafter changed, any
increase or decrease in Directors shall be appati@among the classes so as to establish or nmagdaglity in number among the classes
and any additional Director elected to any clasdl $told office for a term which shall coincide tithe term of such class. Where the number
of Directors constituting the whole board is suehttt is impossible to establish or maintain costglequality in number among the classes,
the increase or decrease in Directors shall bertipped among the classes so as to maintain alsetaas nearly equal in number as possible
and so that the third class does not have more menthan either the first or second class, ande¢lkend class does not have more members
than the first class.

TENTH. Whenever a compromise or arrangerigeptoposed between this Corporation and its tweslor any class of them and/or
between this Corporation and its stockholders grdass of them, any court of equitable jurisdictigithin the State of Delaware may, on the
application in a summary way of this Corporatiorobany creditor or stockholder thereof, or on épglication of any receiver or receivers
appointed for this Corporation under the provisiohSection 3883 of the Revised Code of 1915 af Stiate, or on the application of trustees
in dissolution or of any receiver or receivers dpfed for this Corporation under the provisionsSefction 43 of the General Corporation Law
of the State Delaware, order a meeting of the tweslor class of creditors, and/or of the stockbrddr class of stockholders of this
Corporation, as the case may be, to be summorgetinmanner as the said Court directs. If a mgjarinumber representing thréaurths ir
value of the creditors or class of creditors, andfdhe stockholders or class of stockholderf Corporation, as the case may be, agree to
any compromise or arrangement, and to any reorgtoizof this Corporation as consequence of suafipcomise or arrangement, the said
arrangement and the said reorganization shatn€soned by the Court to which the said applicatias been made, be binding on all the
creditors or class of creditors, and/or on allgtexkholders or class of stockholders, of this Gmapon, as the case may be, and also on this
Corporation.

ELEVENTH. No contract or other transactafrthe Corporation with any other corporation othwany association, partnership, firm,
trustee, syndicate or individual shall be affeateihvalidated by reason of the fact that any efdirectors of the Corporation is or are parties
to or interested in such contract or transactiosumh other corporation or such association, pestmg firm, trustee, syndicate or individual,
any
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director of the Corporation may be a party to aogtact or transaction with the Corporation, or rhbaypecuniarily or otherwise interested in
any contract or other transaction of the Corporatiith any other corporation or with any associatipartnership, firm, trustee, syndicate or
individual, provided that the fact that he shallabgarty to such contract or transaction or steldinterested shall have been disclosed or
shall have been known to the Board of DirectorghefCorporation, or to the approving majority tlegyend any director of the Corporation
who is a party to or is pecuniarily or otherwistehested in such contract or transaction may Hedec in determining the existence of a
qguorum at any meeting of the Board of Directorschitshall authorize, ratify or approve any such @msttor transaction, and may vote the
to authorize, ratify or approve such contract ansaction, with like force and effect as if he weog a party to or so interested in such
contract or transaction.

TWELFTH. Meetings of stockholders may bédheithout the State of Delaware, if the By-Lawspovide. The books of the
Corporation may be kept (subject to any provisiontained in the statutes) outside of the Stateedd®are at such place or places as may be
from time to time designated by the Board of Dioest

THIRTEENTH. The Corporation reserves thghtito amend, alter, change or repeal any provistotained in this certificate of
incorporation, in the manner now or hereafter pibsd by statute, and all rights conferred uporldtolders herein are granted subject to
reservation.

FOURTEENTH:

1. Elimination of Certain Liability of Directors. A director of the Corporation shall not be perally liable to the Corporation
or its stockholders for monetary damages for bredididuciary duty as a director, except for liadtyil(i) for any breach of the directo
duty of loyalty to the Corporation or its stockheitd, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faithadnich involve intentional
misconduct or a knowing violation of law, (iii) uedSection 174 of the Delaware General Corpordtam, or (iv) for any transaction
from which the director derived an improper perddreaefit.

2. Indemnification and Insurance.

(@) Right to Indemnification. Each person who was or is made a party oréatbned to be made a party to or is
involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whettigil, criminal, administrative or investigativedreinafter a "proceeding"),
by reason of the fact that he or she, or a perarhom he or she is the legal representative, isa® a director or officer, of
the Corporation or is or was serving at the reqaksiie Corporation as a director, officer, emplepe agent of another
corporation or a partnership, joint venture, tirsbther enterprise, including service with resgeamployee benefit plans,
whether the basis of such proceeding is allegadrait an official capacity as a director, officemployee or agent or in any
other capacity while serving as a director, offieanployee or agent, shall be indemnified and halinless by the

12




Corporation to the fullest extent authorized by Bredaware General Corporation Law, as the samésesisnay hereafter be
amended (but, in the case of any such amendmédgtimthe extent that such amendment permits thip@ation to provide
broader indemnification rights than said law peteditthe Corporation to provide prior to such ameaudlty) against all expen:
liability and loss (including attorneys' fees, juggnts, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties amouats paid or to be paid in
settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by sueBon in connection therewith and such indematific shall continue as
a person who has ceased to be a director, officep)oyee or agent and shall inure to the benefiiobr her heirs, executors
and administrators: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that, excapprovided in paragraph (b) hereof, the Corpmnaghall indemnify
any such person seeking indemnification in conoeatiith a proceeding (or part thereof) initiateddagh person only if such
proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized bybiterd of directors of the Corporation. The righintdemnification conferred
in this Section shall be a contract right and simalude the right to be paid by the Corporatioa ¢ixpenses incurred in
defending any such proceeding in advance of i filsposition;: PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that, if the @alare General
Corporation Law requires, the payment of such egesincurred by a director or officer in his or bapacity as a director or
officer (and not in any other capacity in whichvieg was or is rendered by such person while attireor officer, including,
without limitation, service to an employee benpfén) in advance of the final disposition of a geding, shall be made only
upon delivery to the Corporation of an undertakimgpor on behalf of such director or officer, tpag all amounts so advanced
if it shall ultimately be determined that such digr or officer is not entitled to be indemnifiedder this Section or otherwise.
The Corporation may, by action of its Board of Bim's, provide indemnification to employees andnégef the Corporation
with the same scope and effect as the foregoingnimification of directors and officers.

(b) Right of Claimant to Bring Suit. If a claim under paragraph (a) of this Sect®not paid in full by the Corporation
within thirty (30) days after a written claim hasdm received by the Corporation, the claimant nhi@ng time thereafter bring
suit against the Corporation to recover the saidwarhof the claim and, if successful in whole opart, the claimant shall be
entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecwtiyy claim. It shall be a defense to any suclad¢btther than an action
brought to enforce a claim for expenses incurredkii®ending any proceeding in advance of its fingpdsition where the
required undertaking, if any is required, has headered to the Corporation) that the claimantrizasnet the standards of
conduct which make it permissible under the Delaxaeneral Corporation Law for the Corporation weimnify the claimant
for the amount claimed, but the burden of provinghsdefense shall be on the Corporation. Neithefafure of the
Corporation (including its Board of Directors, imendent legal counsel, or its stockholders) to made a determination pri
to the commencement of such action that indemnifinaof the claimant is proper in the circumstanisesause he or she has
met the
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applicable standard of conduct set forth in thealalre General Corporation Law, nor an actual detextion by the
Corporation (including its Board of Directors, imendent legal counsel, or its stockholders) thatctaimant has not met such
applicable standard or conduct, shall be a defemtfee action or create a presumption that thenaat has not met the
applicable standard of conduct.

(c) Non-Exclusivity of Rights. The right to indemnification and the paymenegrpense incurred in defending a
proceeding in advance of its final disposition @réd in this Section shall not be exclusive of ather right which any pers:
may have or hereafter acquire under any statut@jgion of the Certificate of Incorporation, by-laagreement, vote of
stockholders or disinterested directors or othezwis

(d) Insurance. The Corporation may maintain insurance, agxgense, to protect itself and any director, office
employee or agent of the Corporation or anothegpa@m@tion, partnership, joint venture, trust or otleterprise against any st
expense, liability or loss, whether or not the @ogption would have the power to indemnify such peragainst such expense,
liability or loss under the Delaware General Cogpian Law.

FIFTEENTH. The affirmative vote of at le&sb-thirds of the total outstanding stock of ther@ration entitled to vote thereon shall be
required in order for the Corporation to:

(&) Merge, and/or consolidate with anyeotcorporation except in those cases where at9€as of the outstanding shares of
each class of stock of such other corporation isemhby this Corporation; or

(b) Sell, lease, exchange, transfer bewtise dispose of all or substantially all ofétsets or business.

The affirmative vote of at least three-tbigrof the total outstanding stock of the Corporagntitled to vote thereon shall be required in
order for the Corporation to:

(@) Sell, lease, exchange, transfer loemtise dispose of all or substantially all ofatsets or business to a related corporatis
an affiliate of a related corporation; or

(b) Merge with a related corporation oradfiliate of a related corporation; or

(c) Enter into a combination or majostyare acquisition in which this Corporation is #ttguiring corporation and its voting
shares are issued or transferred to a related 1o or an affiliate of a related corporationt@istockholders of a related corporation
or an affiliate of a related corporation.
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For the purpose of this Article FIFTEENTH, (i) aelated corporation” in respect of a given transaicshall be any corporation which,
together with its affiliates and associated persomss of record or beneficially, directly or inelatly, more than 5% of the shares of any
outstanding class of stock of this Corporationtédito vote upon such transaction, as of the tbdate used to determine the stockholders of
the Corporation entitled to vote upon such transag{ii) an "affiliate" of a related corporatiohall be any individual, joint venturer, trust,
partnership or corporation which directly or indifg, through one or more intermediaries, contmylss controlled by, or is under common
control with the related corporation; (iii) an "astated person” of a related corporation shallmeddficer or director or any beneficial own
directly or indirectly, of 10% or more of any clasfsequity security, of such related corporatiorany of its affiliates. The determination of

the Board of Directors of this Corporation and madgood faith shall be conclusive as to whethgr @orporation is a related corporation as
defined in this Article FIFTEENTH.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation hassealithis Amended and Restated Certificate of Iramaton to be executed on its
behalf this 23rd day of June, 2006.

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.

Name: Steven R. Macke
Title: Vice President, Secretary and General Cou

15




QuickLinks

AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION ©HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC. Pursuant to Sections 24i2d
245 of the Delaware General Corporation Law



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 10.2

AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO CONSULTING SERVICES AGRBEENT ("Amendment”) is made and entered into thi"2&y of
December, 1990, and effective as of January 1, 199and between Helmerich & Payne, Inc., ("H&PigaValter H. Helmerich, 11,
("WHH").

Paragraph 3 of the Consulting Services Agrent dated December 30, 1990, is hereby deleiddtve following to be substituted
therefor:

"3. This Agreement shall be effective adafuary 1, 1991, and shall be automatically reddaesubsequent one-year terms
unless H&P or WHH shall terminate the same upomytl80) days' prior written notice."

Except as amended hereby, all the termmgjittons, and provisions of the Consulting Servidgseement shall remain valid and binding.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto hexecuted this Amendment in duplicate on the degewritten above.

"H&P"
HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
By:
Steven R. Mackey
Vice Presiden
"WHH"

WALTER H. HELMERICH, 1lI
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NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
UNDER THE HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
2005 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

THIS NONQUALIFIED STOCK OPTION AGREEMENTHg "Option Agreement"), made as of the grant detéosth on the cover
page of this Option Agreement (the "Cover PageTjudsa, Oklahoma by and between the participantatham the Cover Page (the
"Participant") and Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the fQmany"):

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Participant is an employethefCompany, a Subsidiary of the Company, or aiiétéd Entity, and it is important to
the Company that the Participant be encourageenain in the employ of the Company, a SubsidiahefCompany or Affiliated Entity;
and

WHEREAS, in recognition of such facts, @empany desires to provide to the Participant gyodpnity to purchase shares of the
Common Stock of the Company, as hereinafter prayigarsuant to the "Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005¢-derm Incentive Plan" (the
"Plan"), a copy of which has been provided to theiBipant; and

WHEREAS, any capitalized terms used butd&fined herein have the same meanings given theheiPlan.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the naltcovenants hereinafter set forth and for goathatuable consideration, the
Participant and the Company hereby agree as follows

Section 1. Grant of Stock Option. The Company hereby grants to the Participardragualified stock option (the "Stock Option") to
purchase all or any part of the number of sharéts @ommon Stock, par value $.10 (the "Stock")fseth on the Cover Page, under and
subject to the terms and conditions of this Opfdgmeement and the Plan which is incorporated hedrgireference and made a part hereof for
all purposes. The purchase price for each share turchased hereunder shall be the option pridersk on the Cover Page (the "Option
Price") which shall equal the Fair Market Valuetttd Common Stock covered by this Stock Option enDhte of Grant.

Section 2. Times of Exercise of Option. After, and only after, the conditions of SentitD hereof have been satisfied the Participant
shall be eligible to exercise the Stock Option pard to the vesting schedule set forth on the CBagje (the "Vesting Schedule"). If the
Participant's employment with the Company (or asglibry, parent of the Company, or an AffiliatedtiBr) remains full-time and continuous
at all times prior to any of the vesting dates fffton the Cover Page (the "Vesting Dates"), tthenParticipant shall be entitled, subject to
the applicable provisions of the Plan and this @p#hgreement having been satisfied, to exerciseraiter the applicable Vesting Date, on a
cumulative basis, the number of Stock Options detezd by multiplying the aggregate number of shafeStock subject to the Stock Option
set forth on the Cover Page by the designated pixge set forth on the Cover Page.

Section 3. Term of Stock Option. Subject to earlier termination as hereaftevjged, the Stock Option shall expire at the close o
business on the expiration date set forth on thee€Bage and may not be exercised after such ¢xpidate; provided, however, in no event
shall the term of the Stock Option be longer theamytears from the Date of Grant.

Section 4. Transferability of Stock Option.

(a) General. Except as provided in Section 4(b) hereof,Steck Option shall not be transferable otherwisa thy will or
the laws of descent and distribution, and the S@p#on may be exercised, during the lifetime & Barticipant, only by the
Participant. More particularly (but without limiginthe generality of the foregoing), the Stock Optioay not be assigned, transferred
(except as provided above and in Section 4(b) figngledged or hypothecated in any way, shall reabsignable by operation of law
and shall not be subject to




execution, attachment, or similar process. Anynapted assignment, transfer, pledge, hypothecatiather disposition of the Stock Option
contrary to the provisions hereof shall be null an@l and without effect.

(b) Limited Transferability of Stock Options.The Stock Options may be transferred by suctidfzant to (i) the ex-spouse of
the Participant pursuant to the terms of a domeslitions order, (ii) the spouse, children or gicrildren of the Participant
("Immediate Family Members"), (iii) a trust or ttagor the exclusive benefit of such Immediate Fpfiembers, or (iv) a partnership
in which such Immediate Family Members are the qalstners; provided that there may be no considerér any such transfer and
subsequent transfers of transferred Stock Optibal Ise prohibited except those in accordance @éhbtion 4(a) hereof. Following
transfer, any such Stock Options shall continugetgubject to the same terms and conditions as apmiecable immediately prior to
transfer, provided that for purposes of this Sectith) the term "Participant” shall be deemed ferrto the transferee. The events of
termination of employment in the Plan shall conginia be applied with respect to the original Pasint, following which the Stock
Options shall be exercisable by the transferee tntige extent, and for the periods specified aRtan. No transfer pursuant to this
Section 4(b) shall be effective to bind the Companless the Company shall have been furnishedwyitten notice of such transfer
together with such other documents regarding tesfer as the Committee shall request.

Section 5. Employment. So long as the Participant shall continue ta ligl-time and continuous employee of the Company
Subsidiary of the Company, an Affiliated Entityacorporation or a parent or a Subsidiary of swharation issuing or assuming a Stock
Option in a transaction to which Section 424(ajhef Code applies, the Stock Option shall not becééd by any change of duties or position.
Nothing in the Plan or in this Option Agreementlsbanfer upon the Participant any right to congrin the employ of the Company o
Subsidiary of the Company or an Affiliated Entity,interfere in any way with the right of the Compgaor a Subsidiary of the Company or an
Affiliated Entity to terminate the Participant's plmyment at any time.

Section 6. Acceleration of Otherwise Unexercisable Stopkidhs on Death, Disability or Other Special Circstances. The
Committee, in its sole discretion, may acceleragviesting of Stock Options for which the appliea¥sesting Date(s) has not yet occurred
upon the Participant's date of termination of empient if such termination occurs by reason of ({gdbility, (ii) death, or (iii) upon the
occurrence of special circumstances (as deterntipéde Committee).

Section 7. Period of Exercise Upon Termination of Emplogtne With respect to shares subject to the Stocko@gor which the
applicable Vesting Dates have occurred or for whitthCommittee has accelerated vesting in accoedaitb Section 6, the Participant, or
the representative of a deceased Participant, Isbéahtitled to purchase such shares during thainéng term of the Stock Option if the
Participant's employment was terminated as a re§dkath, Disability or Retirement. If the Pamiant's employment was terminated for any
other reason, the Participant shall be entitlgout@hase such vested Stock Options for a peridkdreé months from such date of termination
and any Stock Options which remain unvested afteh slate shall be cancelled.

Section 8. Method of Exercising Stock Option.

(@) Procedures for Exercise. The manner of exercising the Stock Option megeanted shall be by written notice to the
Secretary of the Company at the time the StockdDpbr part thereof, is to be exercised, and ineugnt prior to the expiration of the
Stock Option. Such notice shall state the elediioexercise the Stock Option, the number of shaf&tock to be purchased upon
exercise, the form of payment to be used, and bealigned by the person so exercising the StotioQp

(b) Form of Payment. Payment in full for shares of Stock purchasedeu this Option Agreement shall accompany the
Participant's notice of exercise, together withrpagt for any applicable withholding taxes. Paynsdvall be made (i) in cash or by
check, draft or money order payable to the ordeéh@fCompany; (ii) by delivering Stock or other igsecurities of the Company
having a Fair Market Value on the date of paymepuiéto the amount of the Option Price; or (iig@mbination thereof. In addition
the foregoing procedure which may be availabldlierexercise of the Stock Option, the Participaay mheliver to the Company a
notice of exercise which includes an irrevocabgrinction to the Company to deliver the Stock &iedte representing the shares of
Stock being purchased, issued in the name of tht&ipant, to a broker approved by the Company authorized to trade in the
Common Stock of the Company. Upon receipt of suatice, the Company

2




shall acknowledge receipt of the executed noticexefcise and forward this notice to the brokerotdpeceipt of the copy of the not
which has been acknowledged by the Company, arigufitvaiting for issuance of the actual Stock fiedie with respect to the
exercise of the Stock Option, the broker may $&ll$tock or any portion thereof. The broker shelivér directly to the Company that
portion of the sales proceeds sufficient to colier@ption Price and withholding taxes, if any. Blbpurposes of effecting the exerc
of the Stock Option, the date on which the Parginipgives the notice of exercise to the Compargetteer with payment for the sha
of Stock being purchased and any applicable witihgltaxes, shall be the "date of exercise." Ibiae of exercise and payment are
delivered at different times, the date of exersisall be the date the Company first has in its g&sien both the notice and full
payment as provided herein.

(c) Further Information. In the event the Stock Option is exercisedspant to the foregoing provisions of this Sectiphy8
any person due to the death of the Participant) sotice shall also be accompanied by appropriatefmf the right of such person to
exercise the Stock Option. The notice so requihedl e given by personal delivery to the Secretdihe Company or by registered
or certified mail, addressed to the Company at 13&ith Boulder Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119, aeddll be deemed to have
been given when it is so personally delivered oemvh is deposited in the United States mail ireawelope addressed to the
Company, as aforesaid, properly stamped for dsliasra registered or certified letter.

Section 9. Change of Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Eary and all Stock Options under this Option
Agreement shall become automatically fully vested emmediately exercisable with such acceleratibodcur without the requirement of ¢
further act by either the Company or the Participan

Section 10. Securities Law Restrictions. The Stock Option shall be exercised and Steskad only upon compliance with the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), ang other applicable securities law, or pursuartrt exemption therefrom. If deemed
necessary by the Company to comply with the Acryr applicable laws or regulations relating toghke of securities, the Participant, at the
time of exercise and as a condition imposed byChmpany, shall represent, warrant and agree thathhres of Stock subject to the Stock
Option are being purchased for investment and ritht any present intention to resell the same andoui a view to distribution, and the
Participant shall, upon the request of the Compergcute and deliver to the Company an agreemenitdo effect. The Participant
acknowledges that any Stock certificate represgrgiock purchased under such circumstances wiisued with a restricted securities
legend.

Section 11. Payment of Withholding Taxes.No exercise of any Stock Option may be effectetil the Company receives full
payment for any required state and federal withingldaxes. Payment for withholding taxes shall teein cash, by check, or by the
Participant surrendering, or the Company retaifiiam the shares of Stock to be issued upon exeofitee Stock Option, that number of
shares of Stock (based on Fair Market Value) thatlédvbe necessary to satisfy the requirements fitthwlding any amounts of taxes due
upon the exercise of the Stock Option. For the psepof calculating the Fair Market Value of shanesendered or retained to pay
withholding taxes, the relevant date shall be thte df exercise. In the event the Participant tilsescashless” exercise/same-day sale
procedure set forth in Section 8(b) hereof to p#hhlelding taxes, the actual sale price of shaodd t® satisfy payment shall be used to
determine the amount of withholding taxes payalitething herein, however, shall be construed asiregupayment of withholding taxes at
the time of exercise if payment of taxes is deféparsuant to any provision of the Code, and astiatisfactory to the Company are taken
which are designed to reasonably insure paymenttbholding taxes when due.

Section 12. Notices. All notices or other communications relatinghte Plan and this Option Agreement as it relaighe
Participant shall be in writing and shall be delae personally or mailed (U.S. Mail) by the Compamyhe Participant at the then current
address as maintained by the Company or such atlizess as the Participant may advise the Companyiting.

Section 13. Conflicts. In the event of any conflicts between this Agnent and the Plan, the latter shall control. ldbent any
provision hereof conflicts with applicable law, thpovision shall be severed, and the remainingipians shall remain enforceable.
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Section 14. No Part of Other Plans. The benefits provided under this AgreemenherRlan shall not be deemed to be a part of or
considered in the calculation of any other bergfivided by the Company, a Subsidiary or an AffdchEntity to the Participant.

Section 15. Participant and Award Subject to Plan.As specific consideration to the Company fa ftward, the Participant agrees
to be bound by the terms of the Plan and this Agesg.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have exeduhis Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement ashefday and year first above
written.

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC., a Delaware corporati

By:

"COMPANY"

"PARTICIPANT"
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INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT
UNDER THE HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
2005 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

THIS INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT (th®ption Agreement”), made as of the grant datéas#t on the cover page of
this Option Agreement (the "Cover Page") at TuBklahoma by and between the participant named @Ctver Page (the "Participant”) ¢
Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company"):

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Participant is an employethefCompany or a Subsidiary of the Company argliihportant to the Company that the
Participant be encouraged to remain in the empldlgeoCompany or a Subsidiary of the Company; and

WHEREAS, in recognition of such facts, @empany desires to provide to the Participant gyodpnity to purchase shares of the
Common Stock of the Company, as hereinafter prayigarsuant to the "Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 200&c&tincentive Plan" (the "Plan"), a
copy of which has been provided to the Participantt

WHEREAS, any capitalized terms used butd&fined herein have the same meanings given theheiPlan.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the naltcovenants hereinafter set forth and for goathatuable consideration, the
Participant and the Company hereby agree as follows

Section 1. Grant of ISO Option. The Company hereby grants to the Participamesntive stock option (the "ISO Option")
intended to qualify under Section 422 of the Iné¢iRRevenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Codefiyrchase all or any part of the
number of shares of its Common Stock, par valué @He "Stock") set forth on the Cover Page, urathet subject to the terms and conditions
of this Option Agreement and the Plan which is mpooated herein by reference and made a part hémeafl purposes. The purchase price
for each share to be purchased hereunder shdiebaption price set forth on the Cover Page (tB©"Price") and shall equal the Fair Market
Value of the Common Stock covered by this ISO Opés of the Date of Grant.

Section 2. Times of Exercise of ISO Option.After, and only after, the conditions of Sent®hereof have been satisfied, the
Participant shall be eligible to exercise the IS@i@n pursuant to the vesting schedule set forttherCover Page (the "Vesting Schedule"
the Participant's employment with the Company (ithany Subsidiary) remains full-time and continaai all times prior to any of the
vesting dates specified on the Cover Page (thetieBates"), then the Participant shall be ertitlubject to the applicable provisions of
Plan and this Option Agreement having been satisf@exercise on or after the applicable VestimgeDon a cumulative basis, the numbe
ISO Options determined by multiplying the aggregaimber of shares of Stock subject to the ISO @ptit forth on the Cover Page by the
designated percentage set forth on the Cover Page.

Section 3. Term of ISO Option. Subject to earlier termination as hereafterjgled, the ISO Option shall expire at the close of
business on the expiration date set forth on thee€Bage and may not be exercised after such ¢xpidate; provided, however, in no event
shall the term of the ISO Option be longer thanytears from the Date of Grant. At all times durthg period commencing with the date the
ISO Option is granted to the Participant and endimghe earlier of the expiration of the ISO Optarthe date which is three months prior to
the date the ISO Option is exercised by the Pp#idi the Participant must be an employee of e{ihéine Company, (ii) a Subsidiary of the
Company, or (iii) an Affiliated Entity.

Section 4. Nontransferability of ISO Option. Except as otherwise herein provided, the IS@d@shall not be transferable otherw
than by will or the laws of descent and distribntiand the ISO Option may be exercised, durinditeime of the Participant, only by the
Participant. More particularly (but without limiggnthe generality of the foregoing), the ISO Optioay not be assigned, transferred (except as
provided above), pledged or hypothecated in any, sfagll not be assignable by operation of law dradl 10t be subject to execution,




attachment, or similar process. Any attempted ass@nt, transfer, pledge, hypothecation or othgratigion of the ISO Option contrary to
the provisions hereof shall be null and void anthauit effect.

Section 5. Employment. So long as the Participant shall continue ta li@l-time and continuous employee of the Company
Subsidiary of the Company, or an Affiliated Entitlge ISO Option shall not be affected by any chasfgduties or position. Nothing in the
Plan or in this Option Agreement shall confer ugiom Participant any right to continue in the empdéyhe Company or a Subsidiary of the
Company, or interfere in any way with the rightloé Company or a Subsidiary of the Company to teaeithe Participant's employment at
any time.

Section 6. Special Rules With Respect to ISO OptionsVith respect to the ISO Option granted hereurttie following special rules
shall apply:

(@) Annual Limitation on Exercise of ISO OptionsExcept as provided in Section 8 herein, in vent during any calendar
year will the aggregate Fair Market Value, deteedims of the time the ISO Option is granted, ofStoxck for which the Participant
may first have the right to exercise under the (§don and any other "incentive stock options" gedrunder all plans qualified unc
Section 422 of the Code which are sponsored b timpany, its parent or a Subsidiary of the Compamged $100,000.

(b) Acceleration of Otherwise Unexercisable 1SOi@rys on Death, Disability or Other Special Circuarstes. The
Committee, in its sole discretion, may accelerageviesting of all or any part of the shares sulietite 1ISO Option for which the
applicable Vesting Date(s) has not yet occurrechithe Participant's date of termination of emplogitiEsuch termination occurs by
reason of (i) Disability, (ii) death, or (iii) upahe occurrence of special circumstances (as detedy the Committee).

(c) Period for Exercise Upon Termination of Empleyitn  With respect to shares subject to the ISO @i which the
applicable Vesting Dates have occurred or for whitthCommittee has accelerated vesting in accoedaitb Section 6, the
Participant, or the representative of a deceasdéiPant, shall be entitled to purchase such shaithin three months of such date of
termination of employment or one year in the cdsa Participant suffering a Disability or in thesesof a deceased Participant.

Section 7. Method of Exercising ISO Option.

(8) Procedures for Exercise. The manner of exercising the 1ISO Option hegeanted shall be by written notice to the
Secretary of the Company at the time the ISO Optioipart thereof, is to be exercised, and in amneprior to the expiration of the
ISO Option. Such notice shall state the electioextercise the ISO Option, the number of sharegafk3o be purchased upon
exercise, the form of payment to be used, and bealigned by the person so exercising the 1ISCoOpti

(b) Form of Payment. Payment in full for shares of Stock purchasedeu this Option Agreement shall accompany the
Participant's notice of exercise. Payment shathbde (i) in cash or by check, draft or money omisrable to the order of the
Company; (ii) by delivering Stock or other equigcsrities of the Company having a Fair Market Valnghe date of payment equal
to the amount of the 1ISO Price; or (iii) a combioatthereof. In addition to the foregoing procedwt@ch may be available for the
exercise of the ISO Option, the Participant mayveelto the Company a notice of exercise whichudek an irrevocable instruction
the Company to deliver the stock certificate repntisg the shares of Stock being purchased, issudb name of the Participant, to a
broker approved by the Company and authorizedattetin the Common Stock of the Company. Upon réoéipuch notice, the
Company shall acknowledge receipt of the executidenof exercise and forward this notice to thekler. Upon receipt of the copy
the notice which has been acknowledged by the Coy@and without waiting for issuance of the acstakk certificate with respect
to the exercise of the ISO Option, the broker medlytee Stock or any portion thereof. The brokealktieliver directly to the Compat
that portion of the sales proceeds sufficient teecdhe ISO Price and withholding taxes, if anyr &lbpurposes of effecting the
exercise of the ISO Option, the date on which thdi€pant gives the notice of exercise to the Canyp together with payment for t
shares of Stock being purchased and any appliggatiibolding taxes, shall be the "date of exercisied' notice of exercise and
payment are delivered at different times, the déte




exercise shall be the date the Company first hés possession both the notice and full paymeipragided herein.

(c) Further Information. In the event the ISO Option is exercised, pamsto the foregoing provisions of this Sectioy,
any person due to the death of the Participant) sotice shall also be accompanied by appropriateff the right of such person to
exercise the 1ISO Option. The notice so requiredl beagiven by personal delivery to the Secretdrthe Company or by registered or
certified mail, addressed to the Company at 143itSBoulder Avenue, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119, antatlde deemed to have been
given when it is so personally delivered or wheis leposited in the United States mail in an empeladdressed to the Company, as
aforesaid, properly stamped for delivery as a tegtsl or certified letter.

Section 8. Change of Control. Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Evary and all ISO Options under this Option
Agreement shall become automatically fully vested emmediately exercisable with such acceleratibodcur without the requirement of ¢
further act by either the Company or the Participan

Section 9. Securities Law Restrictions. The 1ISO Option shall be exercised and Stoakeidnly upon compliance with the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), ang other applicable securities law, or pursuartrt exemption therefrom. If deemed
necessary by the Company to comply with the Acryr applicable laws or regulations relating toghke of securities, the Participant, at the
time of exercise and as a condition imposed byChmpany, shall represent, warrant and agree thathhres of Stock subject to the ISO
Option are being purchased for investment and ritht any present intention to resell the same andoui a view to distribution, and the
Participant shall, upon the request of the Compergcute and deliver to the Company an agreemenitdo effect. The Participant
acknowledges that any stock certificate represgréitock purchased under such circumstances wiisaed with a restricted securities
legend.

Section 10. Disqualifying Disposition of Stock. If the Participant shall make a dispositiontfivi the meaning of Section 424(c) of
the Code and the rules and regulations thereundl@ry shares of Stock covered by the ISO Optidhiwione year after the date of exercise
of the ISO Option or within two years after the ®af Grant of the ISO Option, then in either suctra the Participant shall promptly notify
the Company, by delivery of written notice to thec&tary of the Company, of (i) the date of sudpdsition, (ii) the number of shares of
Stock covered by the ISO Option which were dispaxfeshd (iii) the price at which such shares ofcBtevere disposed of or the amount of
any other consideration received on such dispasiine Company may make such provision as it mayndappropriate for the withholding
of any applicable federal, state or local taxes ittdetermines it may be obligated to withholdpay in connection with the exercise of the
ISO Option or the disposition of shares of Stoouii@d upon exercise of the ISO Option.

Section 11. Notices. All notices or other communications relatinghie Plan and this Option Agreement as it relaidbe
Participant shall be in writing and shall be delae personally or mailed (U.S. Mail) by the Compamyhe Participant at the then current
address as maintained by the Company or such atlizess as the Participant may advise the Companyiting.

Section 12. Conflicts. In the event of any conflicts between this Agnent and the Plan, the latter shall control. ldbent any
provision hereof conflicts with applicable law, thovision shall be severed, and the remainingipions shall remain enforceable.

Section 13. No Part of Other Plans. The benefits provided under this AgreemenherRlan shall not be deemed to be a part of or
considered in the calculation of any other bergfivided by the Company, a Subsidiary or an AffchEntity to the Participant.

Section 14. Participant and Award Subject to Plan.As specific consideration to the Company fe Award, the Participant agrees
to be bound by the terms of the Plan and this Agesg.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have exeduhis Incentive Stock Option Agreement as ofdag and year first above written.

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC., a Delaware corporatic

By

"COMPANY"

"PARTICIPANT"
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RESTRICTED STOCK AWARD AGREEMENT
UNDER THE HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC.
2005 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN

THIS RESTRICTED STOCK AWARD AGREEMENT (tHAward Agreement"), made as of the grant date et fon the cover page
of this Award Agreement (the "Cover Page") at TuBklahoma by and between the participant nametti@iCover Page (the "Participant”)
and Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company"):

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Participant is an employethefCompany, a Subsidiary of the Company, or afiétéd Entity, and it is important to
the Company that the Participant be encourageenain in the employ of the Company, a SubsidiahefCompany, or an Affiliated Entil
and

WHEREAS, in recognition of such facts, @empany desires to provide to the Participant godpnity to receive shares of the
Common Stock of the Company, as hereinafter pravigarsuant to the "Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 200B¢-derm Incentive Plan" (the
"Plan"), a copy of which has been provided to thdiBipant; and

WHEREAS, any capitalized terms used butd&fined herein have the same meanings given theheiPlan.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the naltcovenants hereinafter set forth and for goathatuable consideration, the
Participant and the Company hereby agree as follows

Section 1. Grant of Restricted Stock Award.The Company hereby grants to the Participarmiveard (the "Restricted Stock Award")
of ( ) sharestefCommon Stock, par value $.10 (the "Stock")fsgh on the Cover Page, under and subject to the
terms and conditions of this Award Agreement ardRkan which is incorporated herein by referenckraade a part hereof for all purposes.

Section 2. Stock Held by Company. The Company shall hold a certificate registéretthe name of the Participant representing the
total number of shares of the Award. As a condifioecedent to issuing a certificate representiegdlshares of the Award, the Participant
must deliver to the Company a duly executed irratte stock power (in blank) covering such sharpeesented by the certificate in the form
of Exhibit A attached hereto. All shares of the Advaeld by the Company pursuant to this Award Agreet shall constitute issued and
outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Companglf corporate purposes, and the Participant Slea¢ntitled to vote such shares and
shall receive all cash dividends thereon provided the right to vote or receive such dividenddlsaeminate with respect to shares which
have been forfeited as provided under this Awarde@ment. While such shares are held by the Comgadiyintil such shares have vestec
the applicable date set forth on the Cover Page"{flesting Date"), the Participant for whose bersich shares are held shall not have the
right to encumber or otherwise change, sell, assignsfer, pledge or otherwise dispose of suclest®d shares of Stock or any interest
therein, and such unvested shares of Stock shiallensubject to attachment or any other legal aitaejle process brought by or on behalf of
any creditor of such Participant; and any suchaiteo attach or receive shares in violation of thivard Agreement shall be null and voic
such shares shall vest on the applicable Vesting Daaccordance with this Award Agreement, the Gany shall deliver to the Participant a
certificate representing such vested shares.

Section 3. Timing of Restricted Stock Award.After, and only after, the conditions of thisvArd Agreement have been satisfied, the
Participant shall be eligible to receive the Awptaisuant to the vesting schedule set forth on thhe€CPage (the "Vesting Schedule™). If the
Participant's employment with the Company (or asglibry, a parent of the Company or an Affiliatedtify) remains full-time and
continuous at all times through the applicable imgstiate(s) specified on the Cover Page (the "vigdbates"), then the Participant shall be
entitled, subject to the applicable provisionshaf Plan and this Award Agreement having been gdistio receive on or after the applicable
Vesting Date, the number of shares of Stock detechby multiplying the




aggregate number of shares of Stock subject téwverd set forth on the Cover Page by the designagedentage set forth on the Cover
Page.

Section 4. Term of Restricted Stock Award.Subject to earlier termination as herein predidhe Restricted Stock Award shall
expire at the close of business on the expirataie det forth on the Cover Page and may not bevested after such expiration date.

Section 5.  Nontransferability of Restricted Stock AwardExcept as otherwise herein provided, the RasttiStock Award shall not
be transferable by the Participant otherwise thawill or the laws of descent and distribution. Mqrarticularly (but without limiting the
generality of the foregoing), unvested shares o€lSheld by the Company may not be assigned, &amrsf (except as provided above),
pledged or hypothecated in any way, shall not s&gaable by operation of law and shall not be stthife execution, attachment, or similar
process. Any attempted assignment, transfer, plddgmthecation or other disposition of the RestdcStock Award contrary to the
provisions hereof shall be null and void and witheffiect. All shares of Stock which are distributedhe Participant as provided under this
Award Agreement may not be subsequently transferxedpt as provided herein.

Section 6. Employment. Nothing in the Plan or in this Award Agreemehall confer upon the Participant any right to cang in
the employ of the Company, its parent or any Suésicr an Affiliated Entity or interfere in any wavith the right of the Company, its
parent or any Subsidiary or an Affiliated Entityteminate the Participant's employment at any.time

Section 7. Acceleration of Restricted Stock AwardsThe Committee, in its sole discretion, may ete@ccelerate the vesting for all
or any part of the shares subject to the Restristedk Award for which the applicable Vesting Dajd{as not yet occurred on the date of the
Participant's termination of employment if suchrtgration occurs by reason of death, terminatioaroployment due to a Disability, or
Retirement.

Section 8. Change of Control. Any and all shares under this Restricted Stoekrd shall become automatically fully vested upon
the occurrence of a Change of Control Event witthsacceleration to occur without the requiremergrof further act by either the Company
or the Participant.

Section 9. Securities Law Restrictions. The Restricted Stock Award shall be vested%todk issued only upon compliance with the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Act"), ang other applicable securities law, or pursuartrt exemption therefrom. If deemed
necessary by the Company to comply with the Acroyr applicable laws or regulations relating toghke of securities, the Participant, at the
time of exercise and as a condition imposed byChimpany, shall represent, warrant and agree thathtares of Stock subject to the
Restricted Stock Award are being acquired for itmesit and not with any present intention to rethedllsame and without a view to
distribution, and the Participant shall, upon thguest of the Company, execute and deliver to tragany an agreement to such effect. The
Participant acknowledges that any stock certificapresenting Stock acquired under such circumstawill be issued with a restricted
securities legend.

Section 10. Withholding of Taxes. The Company may make such provision as it nesndappropriate for the withholding of any
applicable federal, state, or local taxes thaétetmines it may obligated to withhold or pay imeection with the vesting of the Restricted
Stock. A Participant must pay the amount of taxegiired by law upon the vesting of a RestricteatiS#ward (i) in cash, (ii) by delivering
to the Company shares of Common Stock having aNfaiiket Value on the date of payment equal to theunt of such required withholdil
taxes, or (iii) by a combination of the foregoing.

Section 11. Legends. The shares of Stock which are the subject@fivard shall be subject to the following legend:

"THE SHARES OF STOCK EVIDENCED BY THIS CERTIFICATERE SUBJECT TO AND ARE TRANSFERABLE
ONLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THAT CERTAIN RESTRICTED STOK AWARD AGREEMENT FOR HELMERICH &
PAYNE, INC. 2005 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN DATED THE DAY OF ,
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ANY ATTEMPTED TRANSFER OF THE SHARES OF STOCK EVIDEED BY THIS CERTIFICATE IN VIOLATION
OF SUCH AGREEMENT SHALL BE NULL AND VOID AND WITHOUO EFFECT. A COPY OF THE AGREEMENT
MAY BE OBTAINED FROM THE SECRETARY OF HELMERICH & RYNE, INC."

Section 12. Notices. All notices or other communications relatinghte Plan and this Award Agreement as it relatdheo
Participant shall be in writing and shall be delad personally or mailed (U.S. Mail) by the Compamyhe Participant at the then current
address as maintained by the Company or such atlizess as the Participant may advise the Companyiting.

Section 13. Conflicts. In the event of any conflicts between this Agnent and the Plan, the latter shall control. lmdbent any
provision hereof conflicts with applicable law, thpovision shall be severed, and the remainingipians shall remain enforceable.

Section 14. No Part of Other Plans. The benefits provided under this AgreemenherRlan shall not be deemed to be a part of or
considered in the calculation of any other ben@fivided by the Company, a Subsidiary or an AffdéhEntity to the Participant.

Section 15. Participant and Award Subject to Plan.As specific consideration to the Company fe Award, the Participant agrees
to be bound by the terms of the Plan and this Agesg.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have exeduhis Restricted Stock Award Agreement as ofiaeand year first above written.

HELMERICH & PAYNE, INC., a Delaware corporati

By:

"COMPANY"

"PARTICIPANT"




Exhibit A

ASSIGNMENT SEPARATE FROM CERTIFICATE

FOR VALUE RECEIVED |, , an individual, herebgseirocably assigns and conveys to
shares of the Common Capital Stock of Helmericha§r®, Inc., a Delaware corporation, $.10 par value.

DATED:
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Exhibit 13

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.is the holding Company for Helmerich & Payne
International Drilling Co., an international dnily contractor with land and
offshore operations in the United States, South Wgagand Africa. Holdings
also include commercial real estate propertiebenTulsa, Oklahoma, area,
and an energy-weighted portfolio of available-falessecurities valued at
approximately $336 million as of September 30, 2006

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Years Ended September 30, 2006 2005 2004
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
Operating Revenue $ 1,224,81. $ 800,72t $ 589,05¢
Net Income 293,85¢ 127,60t 4,35¢
Diluted Earnings per Sha 2.7 1.2 .04
Dividends Paid per Sha 172t .16t 1613
Capital Expenditure 528,90! 86,80¢ 90,21:

Total Assets 2,134,71. 1,663,35! 1,406,84-
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To the Co-owners
of Helmerich & Payne, Inc.:

We are pleased to post another year ofrdegarnings in 2006. Net income was more than @oubl
our previous all-time high of one year ago, and the first time in the Company's 86-year histibrgt
revenue has exceeded the billion dollar mark. Whiése milestones are significant, we also know tha
investors are trying to discern between yesterdagigs and future trends in our business, partiutae
repercussions of a potentially warm winter andrésailtant downward pressure on natural gas prices.
Understandably, investors apply patterns they lsae®a from previous drilling cycles where drilling
economics have suffered from lower commodity pri¢esding to lower rig counts, falling dayratesgdan
an ultimate sag in earnings.

We tend to be more bullish on the cyclengdorward, particularly as it applies to naturatg
where we believe that supply and demand fundanmsewnidlultimately trump short-term pricing softness
and volatility. Importantly, our business modeh just limited to market dayrate direction, atiso
fueled by designing and rolling out highly innowatirigs and then building an organization focused o
field execution that will exceed our customers'antptions.

From the Company's vantage point, a keyketdtouchstone" has been our 73 new-build orders.
Consider the most recent orders, seven rigs feetbustomers, were placed during a time of heiglaten
market uncertainty and natural gas price volatiByt why would customers — and ours are heavily
weighted toward the larger, most stable and forvi@o#ting — not simply sit on the sidelines duritgst
current time of uncertainty to see if a shakeupsdmur that frees up some rigs? Certainly, sonfidowi
inclined to pursue this course, but what is différt@day is that a large number of customers have
experienced the value proposition of the FlexRi@&Ier conventional rigs that may become available
are simply not suitable for the customer's desirafmore productive rig.

The demand for a drilling solution that yaces well-cost savings through improved efficiessi
safety, and reliability is driving a very ratiorsdgmentation in the industry's drilling fleet. As Wave
said before, a significant retooling is occurrihgttwill continue to provide us with growth opparities.

®FlexRig is a registered trademark of Helmerich &®e, Inc.
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But let's assume some rough road ahealdding a flattening or even a pullback in the Uahd
drilling market. How is the Company positioned float possibility?

First, 50 percent of our potential U.S dactivity days are contracted in 2007. Moreoves,would
argue that our active rigs without lotgAan customer commitments in the spot market ateomparabl
on an apples to apples basis with those of ourspéefact, 32 out of 56 of our rigs in the spotrked are
FlexRigs. These rigs have worked at premium dagratel near 100 percent activity since their
introduction. The remaining 24 active rigs withémrig-term customer commitments also compare quite
favorably to their older and less capable countspin short, having the newest fleet in the bes#
where our completed build out will feature 122 Reys in the U.S. land market, positions us welltfoe
future.

A second thing to note, besides the stimagg of contracted days and attractive rigs irspios
market, is the additional activity days expectedrdp2007, as a result of our new-build rigs being
deployed at the rate of ten to twelve per quaviée.had an average of 104 rigs active during thetiou
fiscal quarter in the U.S. land market. Currenthg, expect this average to grow to over 130 rigsafbof
fiscal 2007, and we plan to begin fiscal 2008 vaitter 150 active rigs. The bottom line is that the
Company is positioned to deliver significant growtithout the tailwind of ever-expanding dayrate
margins.

The achievement in 2006 and our bright pecss for the future are products of the commitment

dedication, and tireless effort delivered overltdr term by our people. | want to express my greé
for all of their contributions to the Company's sess.

Sincerely,
W) mza

Hans Helmerich
Presiden

December 13, 2006




Financial & Operating Review

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t 2004
SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME* 1
Operating Revenue $ 1,22481. $ 800,72t 589,05t
Operating Costs, excluding depreciat 661,56: 484,23: 417,71¢
Depreciation** 101,58 96,27¢ 145,94:
General and Administrative Exper 51,87: 41,01¢ 37,66
Operating Income (los: 417,28t 192,75t (6,885
Interest and Dividend Incon 9,83¢ 5,80¢ 1,96t
Gain on Sale of Investment Securit 19,86¢ 26,96¢ 25,41¢
Interest Expens 6,64< 12,64: 12,69t
Income from Continuing Operatiol 293,85¢ 127,60t 4,35¢
Net Income 293,85¢ 127,60¢ 4,35¢
Diluted Earnings Per Common Sha
Income from Continuing Operatiol 2.71 1.2 .04
Net Income 2.71 1.2¢ .04
*$000's omitted, except per share data
tAll data excludes discontinued operations excepincome.
**2004 includes an asset impairment of $51,516 @epreciation of $94,425.
SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA*
Cash** $ 33,85 $ 288,75. $ 65,29¢
Working Capital** 164,14: 410,31¢ 185,42°
Investment: 218,30¢ 178,45: 161,53
Property, Plant, and Equipment, Ne 1,483,13. 981,96 998,67
Total Assett 2,134,71: 1,663,35! 1,406,84.
Long-term Debt 175,00( 200,00t 200,00t
Shareholders' Equil 1,381,89: 1,079,23: 914,11(
Capital Expenditure 528,90! 86,80¢ 90,21:
*$000's omitted
**Excludes discontinued operations.
RIG FLEET SUMMARY
Drilling Rigs—
U. S. Lanc- FlexRigs 73 50 48
U. S. Lanc- Highly Mobile 12 12 11
U. S. Lanc- Conventiona 28 29 28
U. S. Offshore Platforr 9 11 11
International 27 _2€ 32
Total Rig Flee 14¢ 12¢ 13C
Rig Utilization Percentag—
U. S. Lanc- FlexRigs 10C 10C 99
U. S. Lanc- Highly Mobile 10C 99 91
U. S. Lanc- Conventiona 95 82 67
U. S. Lanc- All Rigs 99 94 87
U. S. Offshore Platforr 69 53 48
International a0 77 54




2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996

$ 504,22 $ 523,41 $ 528,18 $ 383,89 $ 430,47 $ 476,75( $ 351,71 $ 275,09t

346,25¢ 362,13! 331,06: 249,31¢ 288,96¢ 321,79¢ 227,92: 185,21(
82,51 61,44" 49,53: 77,317 70,09: 58,181 48,29 39,59:
41,00¢ 36,56: 28,18( 23,30¢ 24,62¢ 21,29¢ 15,63¢ 15,22
38,137 64,66 123,61: 34,82¢ 49,02 78,077 61,74( 34,73¢

2,461 3,62¢ 9,12¢ 18,21¢ 4,83( 5,94z 6,74( 5,21¢
5,52¢ 24,82( 1,18¢ 13,29t 2,54 38,42 4,697 56€
12,28¢ 98C 1,701 2,73 5,38¢ 33¢€ 34 67€
17,87: 53,70¢ 80,461 36,47( 32,11¢ 80,79( 48,80 25,84«
17,87 63,511 144,25: 82,30( 42,78¢ 101,15 84,18¢ 72,56¢
18 .93 78 .36 .32 .8C 48 .26

A8 .63 1.4z .82 43 1.0C .83 73

$ 38,18¢ $ 46,88 $ 128,82 $ 107,63 $ 21,75¢ $ 24,47¢ $ 27,96 $ 16,89:

110,84t 105,85: 223,98 179,88 82,89! 49,17¢ 65,80: 48,12¢
158,77( 150,17¢ 203,27: 307,42! 240,89: 200,40( 323,51( 229,80¢
1,058,20! 897,44! 650,05: 526,72! 553,76 548,55! 392,48 329,37
1,417,771 1,227,31 1,300,12: 1,200,85 1,073,46! 1,053,201 987,43 786,35!
200,00( 100,00( 50,00( 50,00( 50,00( 50,00( — —
917,25 895,17( 1,026,47 955,70: 848,10¢ 793,14¢ 780,58 645,97(
242,91. 312,06:¢ 184,66¢ 65,82( 78,35} 217,59 114,62t 83,41:
43 26 13 6 6 6 o —

11 11 11 10 11 7 7 7

28 28 25 22 23 23 22 23

12 12 10 10 10 10 9 11

3z € _37 _4C 3¢ _44 3¢ _3€

127 111 96 88 89 90 77 77

97 96 10C 99 79 10C — —

88 97 88 95 90 10C 10C 87

58 70 99 77 61 92 99 88

81 84 97 85 68 94 98 88

51 83 98 94 95 99 63 70

39 51 56 47 53 88 91 85




Management's Discussion & Analysis of Financial Catiition and Results
of Operations

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

RISK FACTORS AND FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The following discussion should be read in conjiorctvith the consolidated
financial statements and related notes includezivdisre herein. The
Company's future operating results may be affelsyedarious trends and
factors, which are beyond the Company's controds€éhnclude, among other
factors, fluctuations in oil and natural gas prj@giration or termination of
drilling contracts, currency exchange gains anddeschanges in general
economic conditions, rapid or unexpected changéscimologies, risks of
foreign operations, uninsured risks, and uncettasiness conditions that
affect the Company's businesses. Accordingly, ie@sstits and trends should
not be used by investors to anticipate future tesrltrends.

With the exception of historical information, thetters discussed in
Management's Discussion & Analysis of Financial diban and Results of
Operations include forward-looking statements. €fesward-looking
statements are based on various assumptions. Thedby cautions that,
while it believes such assumptions to be reasorailanakes them in good
faith, assumed facts almost always vary from aacesults. The differences
between assumed facts and actual results can legiahathe Company is
including this cautionary statement to take advgeiaf the "safe harbor"
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation 8@h Act of 1995 for any
forward{ooking statements made by, or on behalf of, then@any. The facto
identified in this cautionary statement and tha@sdrs discussed under Risk
Factors beginning on page 6 of the Company's AnRegbrt on Form 10K a
important factors (but not necessarily all impott@actors) that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those eegwed in any forward-looking
statement made by, or on behalf of, the Compang.Jéompany
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undertakes no duty to update or revise its forwaotting statements based on
changes of internal estimates or expectationsharaise.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. is primarily a contractlidrg company which owned
and operated a total of 149 drilling rigs at Seiten80, 2006. The Company's
contract drilling business includes the U.S. lagdousiness in which the
Company owned 113 rigs, the U.S. offshore platfagibusiness in which the
Company owned nine offshore platform rigs, anditibernational land rig
business in which the Company owned 27 rigs at gedr Crude oil and
natural gas prices continued to rise during 20G6tduhe uncertainty of both
commodities. The hurricanes in 2005 in the GulMeaixico contributed to the
instability of these markets because of a conceapmssible shortage of
deliverable natural gas to meet total demand inti& As exploration and
production companies expanded their drilling praggas a result of higher
commodity prices, the overall demand for drilling services increased in all
segments during 2006.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

All per share amounts included in the Results ofi@pons discussion are
stated on a diluted basis. All prior period commstock and applicable share
and per share amounts have been retroactivelytadjus reflect a 2-for-1 split
of the Company's common stock effective June 26620he Company's net
income for 2006 was $293.9 million ($2.77 per shazempared with

$127.6 million ($1.23 per share) for 2005 and $4ilion ($0.04 per share) fi
2004. Included in 2004 net income was a pre-tagtasgpairment charge
(discussed in detail later) of $51.5 million ($3i8lion after-tax or $0.31 per
share). Included in the




Company's net income were after-tax gains frons#ie of investment
securities of $12.3 million ($0.12 per share) i1020$16.4 million ($0.16 per
share) in 2005, and $14.1 million ($0.14 per shar@004. In addition to
income from security sales, the Company recordéthoneme during 2004 of
$1.5 million ($0.02 per share) from non-monetamestment gains. Also
included in net income is the Company's portiomobme from its equity
affiliate, Atwood Oceanics, Inc. From the equitfilefte, the Company
recorded net income of $0.07 per share in 2000280er share in 2005 and
$0.01 per share in 2004. (See Liquidity sectioMB&A for discussion of the
sale of a portion of the Company's Atwood Oceatucksin October 2004.)

Consolidated operating revenues were $1,224.8amiih 2006, $800.7 millio
in 2005, and $589.1 million in 2004. Over the thyear period, U.S. land
revenues increased due to the addition of Flexogsoined with significant
increases in dayrates. The average number of &h8.rigs available was 96
rigs in 2006, 90 rigs in 2005 and 86 rigs in 20045. land rig utilizations for
the Company were 99 percent in 2006, 94 perce2®@d» and 87 percent in
2004. Revenue in the offshore platform busineseased in 2006 after
remaining steady in 2005 and 2004. The demandffsinare rigs increased in
the Gulf of Mexico after the hurricanes in 20059 Rtilization for U.S.
offshore rigs increased to 69 percent in 2006 coatpto 53 percent in 2005
and 48 percent in 2004. International rig revenneeased from 2004 to 20(
as rig utilizations improved to 90 percent in 2006m 77 percent in 2005 and
54 percent in 2004.

Gains from the sale of investment securities wa& $million in 2006,
$27.0 million in 2005, and $25.4 million in 2004térest
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and dividend income increased to $9.8 million i9@@rom $5.8 million in
2005 and $2.0 million in 2004. The increases fr@@fare due to increased
cash positions from the sale of equity securities,sale of two U.S. land rigs
in 2005 and increased cash flow. In late 2005 amahd 2006, the Company's
cash position decreased as new FlexRigs were ciotes;

Direct operating costs in 2006 were $661.6 millkorb4 percent of operating
revenues, compared with $484.2 million or 60 perogmperating revenues in
2005, and $417.7 million or 71 percent of operategenues in 2004. The
2006 expense to revenue percentage decrease fi@rad 2004 was
primarily due to higher U.S. land revenue per desulting from higher
dayrates and increased activity.

Depreciation expense was $101.6 million in 200&,.$%nillion in 2005 and
$94.4 million in 2004. Depreciation expense incegbgver the three-year
period as the Company placed into service five nggvin 2004 and 20 new
rigs in 2006. The Company anticipates 2007 deptieci@xpense to increase
from 2006 as the rigs currently under construcaimplaced into service. (See
Liquidity and Capital Resources.)

Yearly, management performs an analysis of thergémelustry market
conditions in each drilling segment. Based on éimalysis, management
determines if an impairment is required. In 2008 2005, no impairment was
recorded. In 2004, management determined thatairgieg value of certain
offshore rigs exceeded the estimated undiscountedef cash flows associated
with these assets. Accordingly, a pre-tax asseairment charge of

$51.5 million was recorded in the fourth quartefiesdal 2004 to reduce the
carrying value of the assets to their estimatedvizue.
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The fair value of drilling rigs is determined basmsdquoted market prices, if
available. Otherwise it is determined based uptimased discounted future
cash flows and rig utilization. Cash flows arerastied by management
considering factors such as prospective market ddmracent changes in rig
technology and its effect on each rig's marketghisiny cash investment
required to make a rig marketable, suitabilityigfsize and makeup to existi
platforms, and competitive dynamics due to lowelustry utilization.

General and administrative expenses totaled $5ili®@min 2006,

$41.0 million in 2005, and $37.7 million in 200hdincrease from 2005 to
2006 was primarily due to recording $9.8 millionstéckbased compensatic
Stock-based compensation includes $7.0 milliortedl#o the adoption of
SFAS 123(R) 'Share-Based Paymehand $2.8 million due to the Company
accelerating the vesting of share options held sgraor executive who retire
The Company also experienced increases in emplogmefits due to an
increase in the number of employees. The incraase 2004 to 2005 was the
result of increases in employee benefits relatngédical insurance and 401
(k) matching expenses, professional services asgsacwith Sarbanes-Oxley,
and employee salaries and bonuses.

Interest expense was $6.6 million in 2006, $12 #aniin 2005, and

$12.7 million in 2004. The interest expense in eagdr is primarily
attributable to the $200 million of intermediatdotieutstanding. Capitalized
interest was $6.1 million, $0.3 million and $0.3limn in 2006, 2005 and
2004, respectively. The increase in capitalizedragdt in 2006 is attributable to
the rig build program.

The provision for income taxes totaled $154.4 wrllin 2006, $87.5 million i
2005, and $4.4 million in 2004. Effective income
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tax rates were 35 percent in 2006, 41 percent@®d28nd 55 percent in 2004.
In 2006, the Company had a lower effective tax patmarily as a result of
adjustments to deferred tax accounts in certaermational locations. Effecti
income tax rates are higher for the Company'snatenal operations than for
its U.S. operations. As a result, the aggregataife rate is higher in years
when international operations make up a highergrgage of financial
operating income. International operating inconsea @ercent of the
Company's total operating income, was 14 perce00®6, 10 percent in 2005
and 27 percent in 2004 (excluding the asset imgmtroharge from total
operating income). Deferred income taxes are peavidr the temporary
differences between the financial reporting basdthe tax basis of the
Company's assets and liabilities. Recoverabilitgrof tax assets are evaluatec
and necessary allowances are provided. The cammahug of the net deferred
tax assets assumes, based on estimates and assienihtat the Company will
be able to generate sufficient future taxable ineamcertain tax jurisdictions
to realize the benefits of such assets. If thesmates and related assumption:
change in the future, additional valuation alloweswill be recorded against
the deferred tax assets resulting in additionadnme tax expense in the future.
(See Note 4 of the Financial Statements for adthililmcome tax disclosures.)

The following tables summarize operations by bussrsegment. Segment
operating income is described in detail in Notad the financial statements.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 AND 2005

200¢ 200t % Change
U.S. LAND OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statistics)
Operating revenue $ 829,06: $ 527,63 57.1%
Direct operating expens: 398,87. 294,16 35.¢€
General and administrative expel 12,80 8,594 49.C
Depreciatior 66,12’ 60,22: 9.8
Segment operating incon $ 351,25! $ 164,65 1132

Operating Statistics

Activity days 34,41« 30,96¢ 11.1%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 22,75 $ 15,941 427
Average rig expense per d $ 10,25( $ 8,40 22.C
Average rig margin per de $ 12,50: $ 7,53¢ 65.€
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 112 91 24.2
Rig utilization 99% 94% 5.2

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemskraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupadket” expenses. Rig utilization
excludes three FlexRigs completed and ready fovetgl.

The Company's U.S. land rig segment operating ircmetreased to

$351.3 million in 2006 from $164.7 million in 200Baprovement in revenue
and margin per day due to higher levels of U.Xd lagy activity and higher
dayrates experienced during 2005 continued in 289@rude oil and natural
gas prices reached historically high levels. Ritjzation increased to

99 percent in 2006 from 94 percent in 2005. Avenragiexpense per day
increased 22 percent as the energy industry exypetkincreased demand for
materials, supplies and labor. The total numbergsfowned at September 30,
2006 was 113 compared to 91 rigs at Septemberd®®,. 2 he increase is due
to 20 new FlexRigs placed into service, three FiggRompleted and ready -
delivery and the sale of one conventional rig innda2006. Depreciation in
2006 increased 9.8 percent from 2005 due to thease in available rigs.

During 2005 and 2006 the Company announced plabsild 66 new FlexRic
for 16 exploration and production companies
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representing a 73 percent expansion to the U.8.flaat. Subsequent to
September 30, 2006, the Company announced thatragrés had been
reached with three exploration and production camgsato operate an
additional seven new FlexRigs bringing the totahaf new rigs to 73. Each
new rig will be operated by the Company under amum fixed contract terr
agreement with at least a three-year term. Théndyiservices will be
performed on a daywork contract basis. During 2@06U.S. Land segment
had 20 new FlexRigs placed into service and thdelgianal rigs completed,
ready for delivery. The remaining rigs are expecttelde delivered by the end
of calendar 2007. As a result of the new FlexRigs,Company anticipates
depreciation expense to increase in fiscal 2007.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 AND 2005

200¢ 200t % Change
U.S. OFFSHORE OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statistics)
Operating revenue $ 132,58( $ 84,92: 56.1%
Direct operating expens: 88,29: 52,78¢ 67.3
General and administrative expel 5,92( 3,82¢ 54.¢
Depreciatior 11,36( 10,60z 7.1
Segment operating incon $ 27,00° $ 17,70¢ 52.t

Operating Statistics

Activity days 2,74 2,122 29.2%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 38,72¢ $ 29,22¢ 32.t
Average rig expense per d $ 24,04 $ 15,96 50.€
Average rig margin per de $ 14,68" $ 13,261 10.€
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 9 11 (18.2)
Rig utilization 69% 53% 30.2

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofiet" expenses and exclude the effects
of offshore platform management contracts.

Segment operating income in the Company's U.Shoféssegment increased
52.5 percent from 2005 to 2006. An increase indégmand for offshore rigs in
the Gulf of Mexico after the hurricanes in 2005 tridruted to increases in
activity days and rig utilization.
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During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, the Compaigned an option
agreement to sell two offshore rigs that are culyedle. If the purchase optic
IS exercised, the transaction is expected to bept&iad in the second quarter
of fiscal 2007. The two rigs have been classifis@dssets held for sale in the
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements argljas are excluded from
the number of owned rigs at the end of fiscal 2006.

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2005, the Comya Rig 201 was damaged
by Hurricane Katrina. Fiscal 2005 segment operaticgme was negatively
impacted by approximately $.6 million due to theelseing removed from
service during the fourth quarter. The Companycgrdtes Rig 201 returning
to work during fiscal 2007. The rig was insure@atalue that approximated
replacement cost and therefore the Company exfeotsord a gain resulting
from the receipt of insurance proceeds. At Septerdbe2006, the Company
had received insurance proceeds of approximatelyy id8lion which
approximated the net book value of equipment loghée hurricane. Therefore,
no gain was recognized in 2006. Subsequent to Byete30, 2006, additional
proceeds of $0.3 million were received and add#iataims have been
submitted. Capital costs to rebuild the rig areitediped and depreciated in
accordance with the accounting policy describe@ritical Accounting

Policies and Estimates. Because the rig is stdleunmepair, the Company is
unable to estimate the total amount of the gaith@mperiods in which the gain
will be recognized.
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COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 AND 2005

200¢ 200t % Change
INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statistics)
Operating revenue $ 252,79: $ 177,48( 42.4%
Direct operating expens: 172,60t 135,83 27.1
General and administrative expel 3,49¢ 2,56: 36.t
Depreciatior 19,51: 20,10 (3.0
Segment operating incon $ 57,17¢ $ 18,97: 201.

Operating Statistics

Activity days 8,812 7,491 17.€%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 23,40« $ 19,33: 21.1
Average rig expense per d $ 14,80¢ $ 14,03¢ B2
Average rig margin per de $ 8,59¢ $ 5,29: 62.
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 27 26 3.8
Rig utilization 9% 77% 16.¢

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofiet" expenses and exclude the effects
of management contracts and currency revaluatiqgpeage.

Segment operating income for the Company's intemmalt operations
increased 201.4 percent from 2005 to 2006 duegioehirig activity and
dayrates. Rig utilization for international opeoat averaged 90 percent in
2006, compared with 77 percent in 2005. During 200@ new FlexRig was
added to the international segment rig fleet.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 AND 2005

200¢ 200t % Change
REAL ESTATE (in thousands)
Operating revenue $ 10,37¢ $ 10,68¢ (2.9%
Direct operating expens: 3,52¢ 3,622 (2.7)
Depreciatior 2,44¢ 2,352 3.¢
Segment operating incon $ 4,411 $ 4,714 (6.4)

Segment operating income in the Company's Reateediasion decreased
6.4 percent from 2005 to 2006. The segment expertedecreases in
reimbursements associated with property taxes and
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Increases in depreciation due to capital experebttor leasehold and building
Improvements.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 AND 2004

200t 200¢ % Change
U.S. LAND OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statistics)
Operating revenue $ 527,63 $ 346,01! 52.5%
Direct operating expens: 294,16 246,17" 19.t
General and administrative expel 8,59/ 7,76¢ 10.7
Depreciatior 60,22: 56,52¢ 6.5
Segment operating incon $ 164,65 $ 35,54¢ 363.2

Operating Statistics

Activity days 30,96¢ 27,47. 12.7%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 15,94: $ 11,63t 37.C
Average rig expense per d $ 8,40z $ 8,001 5.C
Average rig margin per de $ 7,53¢ $ 3,63¢ 107.¢
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 91 87 4.€
Rig utilization 94% 87% 8.C

Operating statistics for per day revenue, expemskraargin do not include reimbursements of "oupatket" expenses.

The Company's U.S. land rig segment operating ircmetreased to

$164.7 million in 2005 from $35.5 million in 200Buring the fourth quarter
fiscal 2004, the Company began to experience anowvement in revenue and
margin per day due to higher levels of U.S. lagdagtivity and higher
dayrates. The increase in margins continued d@@@p, as crude oil and
natural gas prices improved. Rig utilization in@ea to 94 percent in 2005
from 87 percent in 2004. The increase in utilizatieas a result of higher rig
activity. Average rig expense per day increasedrsgnt as the demand for
drilling services tightened, putting pressure othbmaterial costs and labor.
The total number of rigs available at Septembe2805 was 91 compared to
87 rigs at September 30, 2004. The increase wagodir rigs moving to U.S.
land operations from the Company's internatioresdtfduring 2005 and the s
of two conventional rigs
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in November 2004. Depreciation in 2005 increas&dpércent from 2004 due
to the increase in available rigs.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 AND 2004

200t 200¢ % Change
U.S. OFFSHORE OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statistics)
Operating revenue $ 84,92: $ 84,23¢ .8%
Direct operating expens: 52,78t 52,98 (.4)
General and administrative expel 3,82t 3,25¢ 17.5
Depreciatior 10,60: 12,107 (12.9)
Asset impairment char — 51,51¢
Segment operating income (lo: $ 17,70¢ $ (35,629 149.7

Operating Statistics

Activity days 2,122 2,08¢ 1.€%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 29,22¢ $ 29,07( 5
Average rig expense per d $ 15,967 $ 16,50¢ (3.9
Average rig margin per de $ 13,26 $ 12,56 5.€
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 11 11 —
Rig utilization 53% 48% 10.4

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofiet" expenses and exclude the effects
of offshore platform management contracts.

Segment operating income in the Company's U.Shoffésplatform rig
operations increased from a loss of $35.6 milllm2004, to income of
$17.7 million in 2005. The loss in 2004 was duenaniily to the asset
impairment charge of $51.5 million. Excluding theseat impairment charge,
segment operating income would have been $15.@miibr 2004. Lower
depreciation expense in 2005 was a result of thetaspairment.

200t 200¢ % Change
(in millions)
Segment operating income (loss), as repc $17.7 (35.9
Asset impairment charg — 51.t

Segment operating income, excluding asset impairmen
charge $17.7 15.¢ 11.5%

Note: This table is a reconciliation of segmentragtiag income (loss) for the offshore platform segitfor fiscal 2005 and 2004, which
provided to assist with yearly compariso
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Segment operating income in the Company's U.Shofésoperations,
excluding the asset impairment charge in fiscak2@icreased 11.5 percent in
2005 from 2004. On September 30, 2004, one of tragany's older rigs was
written down to its salvage value and removed fthenactive rig count. As a
result, rig utilization increased to 53 percen2@®5, from 48 percent in 2004.

Financial performance during 2004 was hindereddntinued softness in the
offshore platform rig market which kept rig utilizan at an average of

48 percent for 2004. More importantly, total opgrgtrevenues and revenue
per day declined due to changes in the naturerdfact terms on several of
Company's rigs.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 AND 2004

200t 200¢ % Change
INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS (in thousands, except operating statist
Operating revenue $ 177,48 $ 148,78! 19.2%
Direct operating expens: 135,83 113,98t 19.2
General and administrative expel 2,56: 2,14¢ 19.t
Depreciatior 20,10" 20,53( (2.2
Segment operating incon $ 18,97 $ 12,12¢ 56.5

Operating Statistics

Activity days 7,491 6,26¢ 19.5%
Average rig revenue per d. $ 19,33: $ 19,58( 1.3
Average rig expense per d $ 14,03¢ $ 14,27¢ @.7
Average rig margin per de $ 5,29: $ 5,301 (.2
Number of owned rigs at end of peri 26 32 (18.¢)
Rig utilization 7% 54% 42.¢€

Operating statistics of per day revenue, expensenaargin do not include reimbursements of "out-ofket" expenses, the effects of
management contracts, or the effect of currencgluation expense.

Segment operating income for the Company's intenmalt operations
increased 56.5 percent from 2004 to 2005 due toenigg activity. Rig
utilization for international operations averagé&dpércent in 2005, compared
to 54 percent in 2004. Despite the
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increase in operating income and rig activity,mgrgins for international
operations decreased slightly in 2005. The decnseasttributable to higher
labor costs.

COMPARISON OF THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 AND 2004

200t 200¢ % Change
REAL ESTATE (in thousands)
Operating revenue $ 10,68t¢ $ 10,01t 6.7%
Direct operating expens: 3,622 4,56¢ (20.€)
Depreciatior 2,352 2,25¢ 4.4
Segment operating incon $ 4,714 $ 3,19¢ 47.4

Segment operating income increased by 47.4 pehcent2004 to 2005 in the
Company's Real Estate division. Direct operatinge@ses decreased in 2005
from 2004 due to reduced building expenses andrloemolition costs
relating to the razing of the Company's former logidters building, which
started in 2004 and was completed in 2005.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company's capital spending was $528.9 miliio2d06, $86.8 million in
2005, and $90.2 million in 2004. Net cash provifteth operating activities
for those same periods was $296.4 million in 2&23,2.2 million in 2005 and
$136.6 million in 2004. The Company's 2007 cagfEnding estimate is
approximately $750 million, an increase from thédpeted $500 million in
2006, due to continued construction of new FlexRigs

Historically, the Company has financed operatioms@rily through internally
generated cash flows. In periods when internallyegated cash flows are not
sufficient to meet liquidity needs, the Company
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will either borrow from an available unsecured lofecredit or, if market
conditions are favorable, sell portfolio securitieskewise, if the Company is
generating excess cash flows, the Company maytinveslditional portfolio
securities or short-term investments. In 2006, Gbenpany made portfolio
security investments of $8.6 million.

The following table reconciles purchases of pontfsecurities to purchases of
iInvestments shown in the Consolidated Statemern@ash Flows in the
Company's Consolidated Financial Statements:

200¢ 200t 200¢

(in thousands)
Purchase of portfolio securitir $ 8,59 $ 3,00( $ —
Purchase of shc-term investment 139,84¢ 2,00( —
Purchase of investmer $ 148,44( $ 5,00( $ —

The Company manages a portfolio of marketable gexsithat, at the close of
2006, had a market value of $336.1 million. The @any's investments in
Atwood Oceanics, Inc. ("Atwood") and Schlumberddgd. made up almost

93 percent of the portfolio's market value on Seyiter 30, 2006. The value of
the portfolio is subject to fluctuation in the marland may vary considerably
over time. Excluding the Company's equity-methagkgtment in Atwood and
investments in limited partnerships carried at cib&t portfolio is recorded at
fair value on the Company's balance sheet for egmbrting period. The
Company currently owns 4,000,000 shares or appratein 12.9 percent of t
outstanding shares of Atwood.

The Company generated cash proceeds from the fgadettolio securities of
$28.2 million in 2006, $46.7 million in 2005, and®9 million in 2004.

20




The following table reconciles cash proceeds froendale of portfolio
securities stated above to proceeds from salevetments shown in the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in the Coyp&vonsolidated
Financial Statements:

200¢ 200¢ 200¢
(in thousands)
Proceeds from the sale of portfolio securi $ 28,24 $ 46,70( $ 30,87:
Sales with a trade date in current fiscal yearcash
received in subsequent fiscal yi (6,097) 16,83¢ (16,839
Proceeds from the sale of st-term investment 91,56: 2,00( —
Proceeds from sale of investments per Consolidated

Statements of Cash Floy $ 113,71 $ 65,53¢ $ 14,03:
.|

In 2006, proceeds were primarily from the sale33,200 shares of
Schlumberger, Ltd. Proceeds were primarily usa@poirchase shares of
Company common stock and to fund capital expengstur

In 2005, proceeds were primarily from the sale, 600,000 shares of Atwood
Oceanics, Inc. (Atwood), the Company's equity iafid. In July 2004, Atwood
filed a Registration Statement covering all 3,000,6hares of Atwood stock
owned by the Company. On October 19, 2004, Atwandpdeted a secondary
public offering of shares in which the Company sbld00,000 of its Atwood
shares and received $45.6 million. The proceeds weested in cash
equivalent securities and were subsequently usatetl the Company's cap
expenditure needs.

In 2004, proceeds were primarily from the salesd,200 shares of
Schlumberger, 140,000 shares of Conoco-Phillipsvandus smaller
investments. The proceeds were used for operations.

The Company has historically been a Idagn holder of investment securiti
However, circumstances may arise such as signtfican
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capital spending requirements, the opportunityefurchase Company
common stock or the above referenced Atwood offetimat result in security
sales that were not previously contemplated. DU20@o, the Company
purchased 1,325,200 of Company common stock agjquegate cost of

$30.2 million. Subsequent to September 30, 20@Cimpany sold 500,000
shares of Schlumberger stock. The proceeds of appately $30.2 million
were used to repurchase 681,900 shares of Compamyion stock for
approximately $15.9 million in October 2006 andduny capital expenditures.

The Company's proceeds from asset sales totale8 $iilion in 2006,

$29.0 million in 2005 and $7.9 million in 2004.2006, one U.S. land rig was
sold generating $4.8 million in proceeds. Inconmarfrasset sales in 2006
totaled $7.5 million. In 2005, the Company sold taxme domestic land rigs
which generated a gain of approximately $9.0 milland proceeds of
approximately $23.3 million. The rigs sold in 20&&d 2005 were idle at the
time of the sales and, with the Company's emplusislexRig technology, tr
Company took advantage of the opportunity to $&lldonventional rigs. In
2006 and 2005, the Company also had sales of aldrmaged rig equipment
and drill pipe used in the ordinary course of bass In 2004, a damaged mas
on a rig in the international segment was sold gimey a gain of
approximately $1.7 million and proceeds of apprately $2.4 million.
Additionally, undeveloped land owned by the CompauReal Estate Division
was sold to developers in 2004 with proceeds of@apmately $1.1 million.

In August 2006, the Company signed an option agea¢no sell two U.S.
offshore rigs. The net book value of the two rigs a
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September 30, 2006 was $4.2 million and has beesifiled as "Assets held
for sale” on the Company's September 30, 2006 didased Balance Sheet.
September 2006, the Company received $2.0 milliomfthe optionee for
exclusive rights to purchase the rigs. The $2.0anilis classified in current
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet git&@mber 30, 2006. An
additional $6.0 million was received in October Q@0 exercise the extended
option term. If the purchase option is exerciskd,ttansaction will close in tt
second quarter of fiscal 2007. These two rigs are=atly idle.

During fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2006, the Companyocamted contracts to build
and operate 66 new FlexRig3s and FlexRigs4s faxpboration and
production companies. Subsequent to Septembei088, the Company
announced that agreements had been reached vathdkploration and
production companies to operate an additional seeanFlexRigs bringing tt
total of the new rigs to 73. Each agreement, wighexception of one, has at
least a thregrear commitment by the operator under a minimuredigontract
The drilling services are performed on a daywonktcact basis. During fiscal
2006, 24 rigs were completed for delivery, and 2the 24 rigs began field
operations by September 30, 2006. The remainirggatg expected to be
completed by the end of calendar 2007.

Labor and equipment shortages have resulted irtremtisn delays and
increased costs compared to initial schedules agahal cost estimates. Labor
cost increases and labor shortages in both falmrcand rig-up services were
due in large part to Hurricane Rita that hit soliéixas in 2005, causing major
skilled labor disruptions and significantly affewione of the Company's key
fabricators of rig
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components. Delivery schedules of the new rigs weashed back to such a
degree that latdelivery contractual liquidated damage paymentsewszurrec
and are expected to be incurred for most of theanaimg rigs. However, the
incurred and projected liquidated damage paymeads dnd are expected to
have, minimal impact on revenues and margins. Alginoprices for
components increased dramatically, the Companyabiesto secure favorable
prices on a large amount of the equipment throulylaaced ordering and
purchasing. The level of capital investment esteddor the construction of t
66 rigs increased by an average of approximatelyetéent per rig from the
original estimate. The Company expects these iseckaapital costs to have a
relatively small impact on the Company's futureneags through incremental
depreciation. The total estimated construction obsll 73 rigs is currently
$1.1 billion. Approximately $400 million was incex in fiscal 2006 and
approximately $600 million is expected to be inedrm fiscal 2007.

The Company has $200 million intermediate-term aused debt obligations
with staged maturities from August, 2007 to Aug@étl4. The annual average
interest rate through maturity will be 6.45 percéitite terms of the debt
obligations require the Company to maintain a mummratio of debt to total
capitalization.

On September 30, 2006, the Company had a comnuitteecured line of crec
totaling $50 million, with no money drawn and lestef credit totaling

$16.4 million outstanding against the line. Borrogs against the line of credit
bear interest at the London Interbank Bank Offé&rate (LIBOR)

plus .875 percent to 1.125 percent or prime mindS fercent to prime minus
1.50 percent. The spread over LIBOR or the prinke dapends on
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certain financial ratios of the Company. The Conypanust maintain certain
financial ratios including debt to total capitalioa and debt to earnings befc
interest, taxes, depreciation, and amortizatiod,anertain level of tangible
net worth.

At September 30, 2006, the Company was in compgianth all debt
covenants.

Subsequent to September 30, 2006, the Companyednitd#o negotiations wi
a multi-bank syndicate for a five year, $400 milligenior unsecured credit
facility. The Company anticipates that the majoafyall of the borrowings
over the life of the new facility will accrue inest at a spread over LIBOR.
The Company will also pay a commitment fee basethemunused balance of
the facility. The spread over LIBOR as well as ¢benmitment fee will be
determined according to a scale based on theahtiee Company's total debt
to total capitalization. The LIBOR spread is expécto range from .30 percent
to .45 percent depending on the ratio. Based onatine at the close of the
fiscal year, the LIBOR spread on borrowings woutd 85 percent and the
commitment fee would be .075 percent per annunartaial covenants in the
facility are expected to restrict the Company total debt to total
capitalization ratio of less than 50 percent anaiegs before interest, taxes,
depreciation, and amortization must be a minimunthiide times consolidated
interest expense on a rolling 12 month basis. Eve facility is expected to
contain additional terms, conditions, and reswitsi that the Company belie\
are usual and customary in unsecured debt arramgsriog companies that a
similar in size and credit quality. The closingtlof facility is expected to
occur in December 2006. At closing, the Companycgrates transferring two
letters of credit totaling $20.9 million to the fidgy.
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In conjunction with the $400 million senior unseadicredit facility, the
Company began negotiations with a single bank terahand restate the
current unsecured line of credit from $50 milli@n$s million. Pricing on the
amended line of credit is expected to be prime sihid5 percent. The
covenants and other terms and conditions are eegh¢ctbe similar to the
aforementioned senior credit facility except thnre is no commitment fee.
The closing for this line of credit is expectedtxur in December 2006. After
closing, the Company plans to have one letter @flicioutstanding against this
line and total remaining availability will be $4million.

As of September 30, 2006, the Company had foutandsg, unsecured not
payable to a bank totaling $3.7 million denominated foreign currency. The
interest rate of the notes was 13 percent with dagOmaturity. Subsequent to
September 30, 2006, additional amounts totaling3ttllion were borrowed
with interest rates ranging from 12 percent to écent and one note
outstanding at September 30, 2006 for $1.2 mili@s paid.

Current cash, short-term investments and cash ¢g@dvirom operating
activities, together with funds available under i@ credit facilities, are
anticipated to be sufficient to meet the Compaag®rating cash requirements
and estimated capital expenditures, including oigstruction, for fiscal 2007.

Current ratios for September 30, 2006 and 2005 wé&rand 5.6, respectively.
The decrease in current ratio is primarily due teduction in cash and cash
equivalents and an increase in accounts payabléientirrent portion of long-
term debt. These changes are due primarily to légRtg construction. The
debt to total capitalization ratio was 14 percart &7 percent at September
2006 and 2005, respectively.
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During 2006, the Company paid a dividend of $0.&7 ghare, or a total of
$18.1 million, representing the 34th consecutivaryas dividend increases.

STOCK PORTFOLIO HELD BY THE COMPANY

September 30, 2006 Number of Share: Cost Basit Market Value
(in thousands, except share amounts)

Atwood Oceanics, Inc 4,000,001 $58,25¢ $179,88(

Schlumberger, Ltc 2,150,001 17,071 133,36!

Other 14,70¢ 22,87:

Total $90,03¢ $336,11!

MATERIAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has no off balance sheet arrangemtistban operating
leases discussed below. The Company's contradilighbons as of
September 30, 2006, are summarized in the tabésvbel

Payments Due By Year Total 2007 200¢ 200¢ 201C 2011 After 2011
(in thousands)

Long-term debt (a $ 200,000 $ 25,000 $ — $ 25000 % — 3 — 3 150,00(

Operating leases (| 8,631 3,694 2,72¢ 1,71t 502 — —

Purchase obligations (| 313,21 313,21 — — — — —

Total Contractual Obligatior $ 521,84¢ $ 34190t $ 2,72¢ $ 26,71 $ 502 $ — 3 150,00(

(a) See Note 3 "Notes Payable and Long-term Dielitie Company's Consolidated Financial Statements.

(b) See Note 14 "Commitments and Contingencielea€ompany's Consolidated Financial Statements.

The above table does not include obligations ferGQompany's pension plan,
for which the recorded liability at September 300& is $20.9 million. In

2006, the Company contributed $4.4 million to thenpBased on current
information available from plan actuaries, the Campdoes not anticipate
contributions to the plan will be required in 206iawever, the Company does
expect to make discretionary contributions to fdrdributions of
approximately
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$3.0 million in 2007. Future contributions beyor@DZ are difficult to estimai
due to multiple variables involved.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The Company's consolidated financial statementgrgracted by the
accounting policies used and the estimates anamgd®gins made by
management during their preparation. On an on-goasys, the Company
evaluates the estimates, including those relataad/entories, londived asset:
and accrued insurance losses. The estimates aée basistorical experience
and on various other assumptions that the Compalmgves to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which fibrenbasis for making
judgments about the carrying values of assetsiahiities that are not readi
apparent from other sources. Actual results mdgrdifom these estimates
under different assumptions or conditions. Theofwihg is a discussion of the
critical accounting policies which relate to prageplant and equipment,
impairment of long-lived assets, self-insuranceaaas, and revenue
recognition. Other significant accounting policeae summarized in Note 1 in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment, including renewats laetterments, are stated
at cost, while maintenance and repairs are expeasatturred. Interest costs
applicable to the construction of qualifying assats capitalized as a
component of the cost of such assets. The Compawydes for the
depreciation of property, plant and equipment usimggstraight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. éxegtion is determined
considering the estimated salvage value of thegstgpplant and equipment.
Both the estimated useful lives and salvage vakegsire the use of
management estimates. Certain events, such asaa#r changes in
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operations or technology or market conditions, dadcur that would
materially affect the Company's estimates and apsans related to
depreciation. Management believes that these estinfi@mve been materially
accurate in the past. For the years presentedsimeport, no significant
changes were made to the Company's useful livealeage values, other than
reflected in the 2004 impairment of certain offgheguipment. Upon
retirement or other disposal of fixed assets, tist and related accumulated
depreciation are removed from the respective adscamrd any gains or losses
are recorded in net income.

The Company's management assesses the potentatnmept of its londived
assets whenever events or changes in conditioratedhat the carrying val
of an asset may not be recoverable. Changes ihgétrsuch an assessment
may include equipment obsolescence, changes im#énket demand for a
specific asset, periods of relatively low rig wdtion, declining revenue per
day, declining cash margin per day, completionpefcgic contracts, and/or
overall changes in general market conditions.rthaew of the long-lived
assets indicates that the carrying value of cedhthese assets is more than
the estimated undiscounted future cash flows, grairment charge is made to
adjust the carrying value to the estimated fairkavalue of the asset. See
additional discussion of impairment assumptionsluing determination of
fair value, under Results of Operations. Use dked#nt assumptions could
result in an impairment charge different from tregiorted.

The Company is self-insured or maintains high debies for certain losses
relating to worker's compensation, general liapigmployer's liability, and
auto liabilities. Generally, deductibles are $1i0iom or $2.0 million per
occurrence depending on whether a
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claim occurs inside or outside of the United Statesurance is also purchased
on rig properties and deductibles are typically0$%tillion per occurrence.
Excess insurance is purchased over these covematest the Company's
exposure to catastrophic claims, but there carolesaurance that such
coverage will respond or be adequate in all cirdances. Retained losses are
estimated and accrued based upon our estimathe afjgregate liability for
claims incurred, and using the Company's histolasd experience and
estimation methods that are believed to be reliddmetheless, insurance
estimates include certain assumptions and manadguugments regarding
the frequency and severity of claims, claim develept, and settlement
practices. Unanticipated changes in these factagsproduce materially
different amounts of expense.

The Company's pension benefit costs and obligaaoasiependent on various
actuarial assumptions. The Company makes assumspttating to discount
rates, rate of compensation increase, and expesti¢th on plan assets. The
Company bases its discount rate assumption onrtyneds on AA-rated
corporate long-term bonds. The rate of compensaticnease assumption
reflects actual experience and future outlook. @kgected return on plan
assets is determined based on historical portfebalts and future expectatic
of rates of return. Actual results that differ frastimated assumptions are
accumulated and amortized over the estimated futarking life of the plan
participants and could therefore affect the expeasegnized and obligations
In future periods. As of September 30, 2006, thestem Plan was frozen and
benefit accruals were discontinued. As a resudtyéite of compensation
Increase assumption has been eliminated from fyeineds. The Company
anticipates pension expense in 2007 to decreaseZ006.
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Revenues and costs on daywork contracts are remmydaily as the work
progresses. For certain contracts, payments age/eetthat are contractually
designated for the mobilization of rigs and othellidg equipment. Revenues
earned, net of direct costs incurred for the mpaiilon, are deferred and
recognized over the term of the related drillingtcact. Other lump-sum
payments received from customers relating to spewmiintracts are deferred
and amortized to income as services are perfor@esks incurred to relocate
rigs and other drilling equipment to areas in whactontract has not been
secured are expensed as incurred.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD

Effective October 1, 2005, the Company began reegrcompensation
expense associated with stock options in accordartbeSFAS No. 123(R),
"Share-Based Payment". Prior to October 1, 20@Cihimpany accounted for
stock-based compensation related to stock optindenthe recognition and
measurement principles of Accounting Principlesr@dapinion No. 25.
Therefore, the Company measured compensation expenis stock option
plan using the intrinsic value method, that isthesexcess, if any, of the fair
market value of the Company's stock at the graia okzer the amount requir
to be paid to acquire the stock, and provided thelasures required by SFAS
No. 123. The Company has adopted the modified e transition methc
provided under SFAS No. 123(R) and, as a resustnloaretroactively adjust
results from prior periods. Under this transitioathod, compensation expense
associated with stock options recognized in figealr 2006 includes:

1) expense related to the remaining unvested podtfi@ll stock option awards
granted prior to October 1, 2005, based on thetglate fair value estimated
accordance with the original provisions of SFAS M23; and 2) expense
related to all stock
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option awards granted subsequent to October 1,,223%d on the grant date
fair value estimated in accordance with the pravisiof SFAS No. 123(R).

The Company recorded pre-tax stock-based compensatpense of

$9.8 million in 2006. Stock-based compensationudeb $8.7 million related
to stock options and $1.1 million related to reséd stock. During 2006, the
Company expensed $2.8 million due to the Companglaating the vesting
of share options held by a senior executive whoegkt At September 30, 20(
unrecognized compensation cost related to unvesstdcted stock options
was $5.2 million. The cost is expected to be recmghover a weighted-
average period of 4.1 years. Note 6 in the notéise¢@onsolidated financial
statements provides additional information anditiepeertaining to stockase:!
compensation.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&#loyers' Accounting
for Defined Benefit Pension and Other PostretireniBamefit Plan:

(SFAS 158). SFAS 158 requires companies to receghe overfunded or
underfunded status of a defined benefit postregrgmlan as an asset or
liability in its statement of financial positionhis statement is effective for
financial statements as of the end of fiscal yeading after December 15,
2006, or fiscal 2007 for the Company. As discusaddote 10 in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements, the Compamernision plan was frozen
on September 30, 2006. As a result of the plangokozen, the Company has
effectively reflected the funded status of the plathe Consolidated Balance
Sheet; therefore, SFAS 158 will have no impacthendonsolidated financial
statements.
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In September 2006, the Financial Accounting StasgiBoard (FASB) issued
SFAS No. 157Fair Value MeasurementsSFAS No. 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair valud expands disclosures ab
fair value measurements. This statement is effedtv financial statements
issued for fiscal years beginning after November20®7, and interim periods
within those fiscal years. The Company is curreattgluating SFAS No. 157
to determine the impact, if any, on its financiatements.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Gggiun issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 108 (SAB 108). SAB 108 caless the effects of
prior year misstatements when quantifying misstat@siin current year
financial statements. It is effective for fiscabys ending after November 15,
2006. The Company does not believe the adopti@Ad 108 will have a
material impact on the consolidated financial stegets.

In June, 2006, The Financial Accounting Standarasré ("FASB") issued
Interpretation No. 48Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-an
interpretation of FASB Statement No. 108his interpretation prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attributéhi®@ifinancial statement
recognition and measurement of a tax position takesxpected to be taken in
a tax return, and provides guidance on derecognitiassification, interest a
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclesand transition. This
interpretation is effective for fiscal years begnmpafter December 15, 2006.
The Company is currently assessing the impactisfititerpretation on the
financial statements.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate RThe Company has operations in severe
South American countries and Africa. With the exmepof Venezuela, the
Company's exposure to currency valuation lossasually minimal due to the
fact that virtually all invoice billings and recésan other countries are in U.S.
dollars.

The Company is exposed to risks of currency devialuan Venezuela
primarily as a result of bolivar receivable balasmead bolivar cash balances.
In Venezuela, approximately 60 percent of the Camisabillings to the
Venezuelan state oil company, PDVSA, are in U.8adoand 40 percent are
in the local currency, the bolivar. On October @02, in compliance with
applicable regulations, the Company submitted aesgto the Venezuelan
government seeking permission to convert existwigzar balances into U.S.
dollars. In January 2004, the Venezuelan governagntoved the conversion
of bolivar cash balances to U.S. dollars and thattance of $8.8 million U.S.
dollars as dividends by the Company's Venezuelbsidiary to the U.S. bas¢
parent. This was the first dividend remitted untthernew regulation. On
January 16, 2006, a dividend of $6.5 million U.8llats was paid to the U.S.
based parent. As a consequence, the Company'sugggoscurrency
devaluation has been reduced by these amounts.

On August 18, 2006, the Company made applicatidh the Venezuelan
government requesting the approval to convert boloash balances to U.S.
dollars. Upon approval from the Venezuelan govemtitee Company's
Venezuelan subsidiary will remit those dollars a#vaédend to its U.S. based
parent, thus reducing the Company's exposure tercy devaluation. The
Company anticipates the dividend to be approximai@l3 million.
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As stated above, the Company is exposed to riskaroéncy devaluation in
Venezuela primarily as a result of bolivar receledimlances and bolivar cash
balances. The exchange rate per U.S. dollar inede@s2150 bolivares during
2005 from 1920 bolivares at September 30, 2004 Aesult of the 12 percent
devaluation of the bolivar during fiscal 2005 (fr&@aptember 2004 through
August 2005), the Company experienced total detialudosses of $.6 million
during that same period. Past devaluation lossgsnoiabe reflective of the
actual potential for future devaluation losses.retl®ugh Venezuela contint
to operate under the exchange controls in placgtantfenezuelan bolivar
exchange rate has remained fixed at 2150 bolitarese U.S. dollar since the
devaluation in March, 2005, the exact amount amehty of devaluation is
uncertain. While the Company is unable to predittire devaluation in
Venezuela, if fiscal 2007 activity levels are saemito fiscal 2006 and if a

10 percent to 20 percent devaluation were to o¢cherCompany could
experience potential currency devaluation losseging from approximately
$1.5 million to $2.8 million.

In late August 2003, the Venezuelan state petroleoimpany agreed, on a
prospective basis, to pay a portion of the Comaahgtlar-based invoices in
U.S. dollars. There is no guarantee as to how tbisgarrangement will
continue. Were this agreement to end, the Compamydarevert to receiving
payments in bolivares and thus increase bolivan batances and exposure to
devaluation.

Credit RiskThe Company derives its revenue in Venezuela fretroleos de
Venezuela, S.A. (PDVSA), the Venezuelan state-owrsttbleum company.
At September 30, 2006, the Company had a net ra@gleiyrom PDVSA of
$45.4 million of which $16.2 million was 90 dayslar older. At December 1,
2006, such receivable balance
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had increased to approximately $66 million, of vihapproximately

$40 million was 90 days old or older. The Compaosgtimues to communicate
with PDVSA regarding the settlement of the outstagdeceivables. While tf
collection of the receivables is difficult and timensuming due to PDVSA
policies and procedures, the Company, at this tirag,no reason to believe-
amounts will not be paid. Historically, PDVSA paym& on accounts
receivable have, by traditional business measurtankeeen slower than that
other customers in international countries in whted Company has drilling
operations. In order to establish a source of loaalency to meet current
obligations in Venezuela bolivares, the Compariyoisowing in the form of
short-term notes from two local banks in Venezagldne market interest rates
designated by the banks.

Commodity Price Riskhe demand for contract drilling services is a ltesiu
exploration and production companies' spending memexplore and develop
drilling prospects in search of crude oil and naltgas. Their appetite for such
spending is driven by their cash flow and finanstaéngth, which is very
dependent on, among other things, crude oil anagralaggas commaodity prices.
Crude oil prices are determined by a number obfadncluding supply and
demand, worldwide economic conditions, and geadpalifactors. Crude oll
and natural gas prices have been volatile anddiffrgult to predict. This
difficulty has led many exploration and productmympanies to base their
capital spending on much more conservative estgmateommodity prices. £
a result, demand for contract drilling servicesas always purely a function
the movement of commodity prices.

The prices for drilling rig components have expeced increases in the last
year. While these materials have generally beetitada to
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the Company at acceptable prices, there is no@sseithe prices will not vary
significantly in the future. The Company attemptsécure favorable prices
through advanced ordering and purchasing. Additipnfaiture fluctuations in
market conditions causing increased prices in rias$easind supplies could
impact future operating costs adversely.

Interest Rate RisThe Company's interest rate risk exposure restiltsapily
from short-term rates, mainly LIBOR-based, on barngs from its
commercial banks. The credit arrangements expéated entered into
subsequent to year-end will have floating interasts. The Company's entire
debt portfolio at September 30, 2006 was in fixae-debt. The Company has
reduced the impact of fluctuations in interestsdig maintaining a portion of
its debt portfolio in fixed-rate debt.

The following tables provide information as of Sapber 30, 2006 and 2005
about the Company's interest rate risk sensitisguments:

INTEREST RATE RISK AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2006 (dollass in thousands)

After Fair Value
2007 200¢ 200¢ 201( 2011 2011 Total @ 9/30/0t
Fixed Rate Lon-term Debt $ 25,00( $ — $ 25,000 $ — % — $ 150,00 $ 200,000 $ 209,00(
Average Interest Ra 5.5% — 5.% — — 6.5% 6.4%
Fixed Rate Notes Payable $ 3,721 $ 3,721 $ 3,721
Average Interest Ra 13.(% 13.(%
(2) Denominated in a foreign currency
INTEREST RATE RISK AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2005 (dollass in thousands)
After Fair Value
200¢ 2007 200¢ 200¢ 201C 201C Total @ 9/30/0!
Fixed Rate Dek $ — $ 25,000 $ — $ 25,000 $ — $ 150,00 $ 200,000 $ 215,00(

Average Interest Ra — 5.5% — 5.% — 6.5% 6.4%
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Equity Price RislOn September 30, 2006, the Company had a portiblio
available-for-sale securities with a total markaiiue of $336.1 million. The
total market value of the portfolio of securitieasn$293.4 million at
September 30, 2005. The Company's investmentswodd Oceanics, Inc. a
Schlumberger, Ltd. made up almost 93 percent optndolio's market value
at September 30, 2006. Although the Company sattigns of its positions in
Schlumberger in 2004 and 2006, and Atwood in trst fiscal quarter of fiscal
2005, the Company makes no specific plans to selirsties, but rather sells
securities based on market conditions and otheumistances. These securi
are subject to a wide variety and number of maré&latted risks that could
substantially reduce or increase the market valileeoCompany's holdings.
Except for the Company's holdings in its equityliate, Atwood

Oceanics, Inc. and investments in limited partnpssbarried at cost, the
portfolio is recorded at fair value on its balasbeet with changes in
unrealized after-tax value reflected in the eqgadgtion of its balance sheet.
Any reduction in market value would have an impatthe Company's debt
ratio and financial strength.
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Report of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. as of Septe@®e2006
and 2005, and the related consolidated statemémtsame, shareholders' equity, and cash flowsé&wh of the three
years in the period ended September 30, 2006. Timeseial statements are the responsibility of@menpany's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniapion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting Oversighaf8ioUnitec
States). Those standards require that we plan erfidrp the audit to obtain reasonable assurancetatttether the
financial statements are free of material misstatgmAn audit includes examining, on a test basiglence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the @ilastatements. An audit also includes assesbm@dcounting
principles used and significant estimates made ayagement, as well as evaluating the overall filghstatement
presentation. We believe that our audits provideagonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements refer@dbove present fairly, in all material respedts, ¢onsolidated
financial position of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. agBamber 30, 2006 and 2005, and the consolidatedisex its
operations and its cash flows for each of the tlyssers in the period ended September 30, 200@nfoomity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited
States), the effectiveness of Helmerich & Paynednternal control over financial reporting asSafptember 30,
2006, based on criteria established in Internalt@br Integrated Framework issued by the Committie®ponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission and opontedated December 7, 2006 expressed an unqdabifimion
thereon.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated findrstegements, in 2006 the Company changed its rdeiho
accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Tulsa, Oklahoma
December 7, 2006
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t 2004
(in thousands, except per share amounts)
OPERATING REVENUES
Drilling — U.S. Land $ 829,06 $ 527,63 $ 346,01!
Drilling — U.S. Offshore 132,58( 84,92: 84,23¢
Drilling — Internationa 252,79: 177,48( 148,78t
Real Estat 10,37¢ 10,68t¢ 10,01t
1,224,81. 800,72t 589,05¢
OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES
Operating costs, excluding depreciat 661,56: 484,23: 417,71¢
Depreciatior 101,58 96,27¢ 94,42t
Asset impairmen — — 51,51¢
General and administratiy 51,87: 41,01t 37,66!
Income from asset sal (7,492 (13,550 (5,377)
807,52 607,97( 595,94:
Operating income (loss) 417,28t 192,75t (6,885
Other income (expens
Interest and dividend incon 9,834 5,80¢ 1,96t
Interest expens (6,649 (12,642 (12,69
Gain on sale of investment securit 19,86¢ 26,96¢ 25,41¢
Other 63¢ (235) 197
23,69t 19,90: 14,88¢
Income before income taxes and equity in incomaffilfate 440,98: 212,65 8,00(
Income tax provisiol 154,39: 87,46: 4,36¢
Equity in income of affiliate net of income tax 7,26¢ 2,41% 724
NET INCOME $ 293,85¢ $ 127,60t $ 4,35¢

Earnings per common sha

Basic $ 2.81

Diluted $ 2.71
Average common shares outstanding (in thousa

Basic 104,65¢

Diluted 106,09:

The accompanying notes are an integral part obteegements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

ASSETS
September 30, 200¢ 200t
(in thousands

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale! $ 33,85 $ 288,75
Short term investmen 48,67: 38¢
Accounts receivable, less reserve of $2,007 in 2006$1,791 in 200 289,47¢ 162,64¢
Inventories 26,16¢ 21,31
Deferred income taxe 10,16¢ 8,76¢
Assets held for sal 4,232 —
Prepaid expenses and ot 16,11¢ 17,93¢
Total current asse 428,69 499,79°
INVESTMENTS 218,30¢ 178,45:

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, at cos

Contract drilling equipmer 1,911,03 1,549,11.
Construction in progres 220,60 34,774
Real estate propertit 58,28t 57,48¢
Other 113,78t 96,61
2,303,71 1,737,98

Less--Accumulated depreciation and amortizat 820,58: 756,02
Net property, plant and equipme 1,483,13. 981,96
OTHER ASSETS 4,57¢ 3,13¢
TOTAL ASSETS $ 2,134,71; $ 1,663,35!

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktetements.
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LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

September 30,

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Notes payabli

Accounts payabl

Accrued liabilities

Long-term debt due within one ye

Total current liabilities

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Long-term debi
Deferred income taxe
Other

Total noncurrent liabilitie:

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Common stock, $.10 par value, 160,000,000 shartb®®@zed,
107,057,904 shares issued and outstar

Preferred stock, no par value, 1,000,000 sharémened,

no shares issue

Additional paic-in capital

Retained earning

Unearned compensatis

Accumulated other comprehensive incc

Less treasury stock, 3,188,760 shares in 2006 and
3,188,724 shares in 2005, at ¢

Total shareholders' equi

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktetements.
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200¢ 200¢

(in thousands, except share data)

$ 3,721 $ —
138,75( 44,85

97,07 44,62

25,00( —

264,54 89,48

175,00 200,00

269,91¢ 246,97

43,35 47,65

488,27: 494,63

10,70¢ 10,70¢

135,50( 106,94«

1,215,12 939,38

— (139)

69,64¢ 47,54

1,430,97: 1,104,441

49,08 25,20

1,381,89; 1,079,23

$ 2,134,71; $ 1,663,35




Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity

Common Stock Accumulated  Treasury Stock
Additional Other
Paid-In Retained Unearned Comprehensive Shares
Shares Amount Capital Earnings Compensation Income (Loss) Amount Total

(in thousands, except per share amot
Balance,
September 30,
2003 107,05¢ $ 10,70¢ $ 77,94¢ $ 840,77t $ 10$ 33,66¢ 6,777 $ (45,83)% 917,25:

Comprehensive
Income:
Net Income 4,35¢ 4,35¢
Other
comprehensive
income:
Unrealized
gains on
available- for-
sale securities
net 3,721 3,721
Derivatives
instruments
Amortization
net 72 72
Minimum
pension
liability
adjustment, ne (1,209 (1,209

Total other
comprehensive
gain 2,58¢

Total
comprehensive
income 6,94:

Cash dividends
($.16125 per

share) (16,379 (16,377
Exercise of stock
options 81: (610 4,11¢ 4,927

Tax benefit of

stock-based

awards 1,351 1,351
Amortization of

deferred

compensatiol 10 10

Balance,
September 30,
2004 107,05¢ 10,70¢ 80,111 828,76: — 36,25: 6,161 (41,729 914,11(
Comprehensive
Income:
Net Income 127,60t 127,60t
Other
comprehensive
income (loss)

Unrealized
gains on
available for-



sale securities
net

Minimum
pension
liability
adjustment, ne

Total other
comprehensive
gain

Total
comprehensive
income

Capital
adjustment of
equity investet
Stock issued
under Restricted
Stock Award Plal
Cash dividends
(%$.165 per share
Exercise of stock
options

Tax benefit of
stock-based
awards
Amortization of
deferred
compensatiol

Balance,
September 30,
2005
Comprehensive
Income:
Net Income
Other
comprehensive
income (loss)
Unrealized
gains on
available- for-
sale securities
net
Minimum
pension
liability
adjustment, ne

Total other
comprehensive
gain

Total
comprehensive
income

Reversal of
unearned
compensation
upon adoption of
SFAS 123(R
Cash dividends
($.1725 per shar

Exercise of stoc!

2,68:

93

8,90¢

15,15

(16,989

(160)

26

14,70¢

(3,416

(10)

(2,968

14,70¢

(3,416

11,29:

138,89¢

2,682

67 —

(16,989

16,45¢ 25,35¢

15,15

26

10,70¢ 106,94

(66)

939,38

293,85!

(18,11)

(134)

134

47,54: 3,18¢

17,59:

4,51C

10

(25,209 1,079,23

293,85t

17,59:

4,51C

22,10

315,95¢

(69) —

(18,11)



options

Tax benefit of
stock-based
awards, including
excess tax
benefits of $10.2
million
Repurchase of
common stocl
Stock-based
compensatiol

Balance,
September 30,
2006

6,01¢ (1,339) 6,35¢ 12,37:

12,85: 12,85
1,32t (30,169 (30,169

9,752 9,752

107,05¢ $ 10,70¢ $ 13550($ 1,215,122 $ —$ 69,64t 3,18¢ $ (49,08¢)% 1,381,89:.

The accompanying notes are an integral part oktetements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended September 30,

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile income
to net cash provided by operating activiti
Depreciatior
Asset impairment charg
Equity in income of affiliate before income tay
Stocl-based compensatic
Gain on sale of investment securit
Non-monetary investment ga
Gain on sale of asse
Deferred income tax expen
Other— net
Change in assets and liabiliti¢
Accounts receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and otl
Accounts payabl
Accrued liabilities
Deferred income taxe
Other noncurrent liabilitie

Net cash provided by operating activit

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Capital expenditure
Proceeds from asset sa
Insurance proceeds from involuntary convers:
Purchase of investmer
Proceeds from sale of investme

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repurchase of common sta
Increase (decrease) in st-term notes
Increase in bank overdre
Dividends paic
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Excess Tax benefit from stock based compens.
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents, end of pe

The accompanying notes are an integral part okteegements.
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200¢ 200¢ 200<
(in thousands)

$ 293,85¢ $ 127,60¢ $ 4,35¢
101,58: 96,27+ 94,42¢
— 51,51¢
(11,729 (3,89)) (1,16¢)
9,752 26 10
(19,730) (26,969 (22,766
_ — (2,52))
(7,497 (13,550 (5,377
3,50¢ 38,01« 5,93¢
(737) (349) (98)
(120,740 (46,229 (25,339
(4,852) (487) 1,707
372 1,451 24,14:
(11,064 8,517 (37€)
55,11 12,73¢ 2,87(
4,49( 16,551 2,32
4,057 2,52¢ 6,991
296,39( 212,23t 136,64(
(528,90%) (86,80%) (90,217)
11,77¢ 28,99: 7,941
2,97( — —

(148,44 (5,000)
113,71! 65,53¢ 14,03
(548,882 2,72¢ (68,239
(28,40 — _
3,721 — (30,000)
17,43( o o
(17,717) (16,86¢) (16,227)
12,37: 25,35¢ 4,92
10,18¢ — —
(2,407 8,492 (41,295
(254,899 223,45t 27,10
288,75: 65,29¢ 38,18¢
$ 33,85¢ $ 288,75: $ 65,29¢




Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include tw@ants of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. (the Compangyl &s wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Fiscal years of the Company's foreign consolidateetations end on August 31 to facilitate reporthgonsolidated results. There were no
significant intervening events which materiallyeaffed the financial statements.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Certain amounts in the accompanying consolidatehfiial statements for prior periods have beemssiled to conform to current year
presentation. Specifically, "Income from assetsaler the years ended September 30, 2005 and 289#%4een reclassified to be included in
operating income.

All prior period common stock and applicable shamnd per share amounts have been retroactivelytadjts reflect a 2-for-1 split of the
Company's common stock effective June 26, 2006.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company's functional currency for all its fgresubsidiaries is the U.S. dollar. Nonmonetargtsand liabilities are translated at
historical rates and monetary assets and lialsildie translated at exchange rates in effect arttief the period. Income statement accounts
are translated at average rates for the year. Gaith4osses from remeasurement of foreign curréneycial statements into U.S. dollars are
included in direct operating costs. Gains and esssulting from foreign currency transactionsase included in current results of
operations. Aggregate foreign currency remeasurearghtransaction losses included in direct opegatdsts totaled $0.3 million,

$0.8 million and $2.2 million in 2006, 2005, and)20espectively.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Company's financial statésienconformity with accounting principles genéyalccepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) requires management to make estisnatel assumptions that affect reported amountsseftaand liabilities and disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dattheffinancial statements and the reported amafrresvenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ frahose estimates.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cestdecumulated depreciation. Substantially all @riyp plant and equipment are depreciated
using the straight-line method based on the estichaseful lives of the assets (contract drillingipment, 4-15 years; real estate buildings
and equipment, 10-50 years; and other, 3-33 yeting) Company charges the cost of maintenance gaitsdo direct operating cost, while
betterments and refurbishments are capitalized.
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CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST

The Company capitalizes interest on major projdating construction. Interest is capitalized basedhe average interest rate on related
debt. Capitalized interest for 2006, 2005, and 2084 $6.1 million, $.3 million, and $.5 million,geectively.

VALUATION OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company periodically evaluates the carryingi@adf long-lived assets to be held and used, imttuithtangible assets, when events or
circumstances warrant such a review. The Compasggrézes impairment losses equal to the excedseafdrrying value over the estimated
fair value of long-lived assets used in operatiwhen indicators of impairment are present and titiscounted cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset are not sufficient to redibreecarrying amount of the asset.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash equivalents consist of investments in shontstlighly liquid securities having original matigs of three months or less, which are
made as part of the Company's cash managementyaclive carrying values of these assets approxarttair fair market values. The
Company primarily utilizes a cash management systéma series of separate accounts consistingaiiblox accounts for receiving cash,
concentration accounts that funds are moved tosandral "zero-balance" disbursement accountafudihg payroll and accounts payable.
As a result of the Company's cash management systexoks issued, but not presented to the banksafonent, may create negative book
cash balances. Checks outstanding in excess ¢éddb@ok cash balances totaling approximately $iflbn at September 30, 2006 are
included in accounts payable.

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company had restricted cash and cash equigadéit.3 million and $4.2 million at September 2006 and 2005, respectively. All
restricted cash is for the purpose of potentialiasce claims in the Company's wholly-owned captigerance company. Of the total at
September 30, 2006, $2.0 million is from the ihigapitalization of the captive and managementebasted to restrict an additional

$2.3 million. The restricted amounts are primaitilyested in short-term money market securities.

The restricted cash and cash equivalents is refldéatthe balance sheet as follows (in thousands):

September 30, 200¢ 200t
Other current asse $ 2,27¢ $ 2,19¢
Other asset $ 2,00( $ 2,00(

INVENTORIES AND SUPPLIES

Inventories and supplies are primarily replacenpamts and supplies held for use in the Companill;xdroperations. Inventories and
supplies are valued at the lower of cost (movingrage or actual) or market value.

DRILLING REVENUES

Contract drilling revenues are comprised of daywdrniting contracts for which the related revenaesl expenses are recognized as services
are performed. For certain contracts, the Compaogives payments
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contractually designated for the mobilization afsrend other drilling equipment. Mobilization payrtgereceived, and direct costs incurrec
the mobilization are deferred and recognized oimaaght line basis over the term of the relatedlidg contract. Costs incurred to relocate 1
and other drilling equipment to areas in which ateact has not been secured are expensed as idicReanbursements received by the
Company for out-of-pocket expenses are recordedvenues and direct costs.

RENT REVENUES

The Company enters into leases with tenants ireftkal properties consisting primarily of retaidamulti-tenant warehouse space. The lease
terms of tenants occupying space in the retailezsrand warehouse buildings range from one to elggars. Minimum rents are recognized
on a straight-line basis over the term of the egldéases. Overage and percentage rents are bagstbots' sales volume. Recoveries from
tenants for property taxes and operating expernse®eaognized as Real Estate revenues in the Gdatal Statements of Income. The
Company's rent revenues are as follows:

Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t 2004
(in thousands)

Minimum rents $ 8,53¢ $ 7,60¢ $ 7,49

Overage and percentage re $ 1,21¢ $ 1,162 $ 1,207

At September 30, 2006, minimum future rental incdambe received on noncancelable operating leaassag/ follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2007 $ 7,26¢
2008 5,761
2009 4,33:
2010 3,617
2011 2,69¢
Thereaftel 3,744

Total $ 27,42

Leasehold improvement allowances are capitalizedeamortized over the lease term.

At September 30, 2006 and 2005, the cost and adatedudepreciation for real estate properties asriollows:

September 30, 200¢ 200t
Real estate propertis $ 58,28¢ $ 57,48¢
Accumulated depreciatic (31,669 (29,62¢)
$ 26,62: $ 27,86
I I
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INVESTMENTS

The Company maintains investments in equity seesrdf unaffiliated companies. The cost of seasitised in determining realized gains

and losses is based on the average cost basis sétlrity sold. Net income in 2004 includes apjnaxely $1.5 million, $0.02 per share on a

diluted basis, on gains related to non-monetarystiations within the Company's available-$ate investment portfolio which were accoul

for at fair value.

The Company regularly reviews investment securfesmpairment based on criteria that include ¢litent to which the investment's
carrying value exceeds its related market valuedtiration of the market decline and the finansti@ngth and specific prospects of the is:

of the security. Unrealized losses that are othan temporary are recognized in earnings.

Investments in companies owned from 20 to 50 permenaccounted for using the equity method with@ompany recognizing its
proportionate share of the income or loss of threstee. The Company owned approximately 21.7 pecfeftwood Oceanics, Inc. (Atwoo
at September 30, 2004. In October 2004, the Compalaly1,000,000 shares of its position in Atwooghast of a public offering of Atwood.
The sale generated $15.9 million ($0.15 per dilsteare) of net income in fiscal 2005. In March 2086vood had a two-for-one stock split.
The Company currently owns 4,000,000 shares of Atdwehich represents approximately 12.9 percenttefoédd. The Company continues
account for Atwood on the equity method as the Camgprontinues to have significant influence throitghboard of director seats.

The quoted market value of the Company's investiwast$179.9 million and $168.4 million at Septem®@r2006 and 2005, respectively.
Retained earnings at September 30, 2006 and 2@0&les approximately $31.6 million and $24.3 millioespectively, of undistributed

earnings of Atwood.

Summarized financial information of Atwood is afidws:

September 30, 200¢
Gross revenue $ 276,62!
Costs and expens 190,50:
Net income $ 86,12:
I
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s equity in net income,
net of income taxe $ 7,26¢
|
Current assel $ 147,67
Noncurrent asse 446,15¢
Current liabilities 61,36¢
Noncurrent liabilities 73,57(
Shareholders' equit $ 458,89:
I
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.'s investme $ 58,25¢
I

200¢

(in thousands
$ 176,15¢
149,78!
$ 26,371
I
$ 2,417
I
$ 93,28:
403,64:
56,15¢
78,26¢

$ 362,49°
I
$ 46,53
I

200¢

$ 163,45¢
155,86°

$ 7,581
I
$ 724
I
$ 92,96¢
405,97(

60,05¢

167,29

$ 271,58¢
I
$ 57,82¢




INCOME TAXES

Deferred income taxes are computed using the itigloilethod and are provided on all temporary déferes between the financial basis and
the tax basis of the Company's assets and liasiliti

POST EMPLOYMENT AND OTHER BENEFITS

The Company sponsors a health care plan that meydst retirement medical benefits to retired eygss. Employees who retire after
November 1, 1992 and elect to participate in tla play the entire estimated cost of such ben

The Company has accrued a liability for estimatedker's compensation claims incurred. The liabiidyother benefits to former or inactive
employees after employment but before retiremenbtsnaterial.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is based on the weightege number of common shares outstanding dunmgériod. Diluted earnings per share
includes the dilutive effect of stock options aedtricted stock.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

Effective October 1, 2005, the Company began réegrdompensation expense associated with stockimpin accordance with SFAS

No. 123(R), "Shar-Based Payment". Prior to October 1, 2005, the Gom@accounted for stock-based compensation refatstibck options
under the recognition and measurement principléscobunting Principles Board Opinion No. 25. Theref the Company measured
compensation expense for its stock option plangugia intrinsic value method, that is, as the exciésny, of the fair market value of the
Company's stock at the grant date over the amegpiined to be paid to acquire the stock, and peal/ithe disclosures required by SFAS
No. 123. The Company adopted the modified prospettansition method provided under SFAS No. 1238RY as a result, has r
retroactively adjusted results from prior periddader this transition method, compensation expasseciated with stock options recognized
in fiscal year 2006 includes: 1) expense relatettiéaremaining unvested portion of all stock optevards granted prior to October 1, 2005,
based on the grant date fair value estimated iordeace with the original provisions of SFAS No31adnd 2) expense related to all stock
option awards granted subsequent to October 1,,22@%d on the grant date fair value estimateddnrdance with the provisions of SFAS
No. 123(R).

The adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) also resulted iate changes to the Company's accounting foegtricted stock awards, which is
discussed in Note 6 in more detail.

TREASURY STOCK

Treasury stock purchases are accounted for underost method whereby the cost of the acquirekssoecorded as treasury stock. Gains
and losses on the subsequent reissuance of sharegdited or charged to additional paid-in-cdpiting the average-cost method.

NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&§loyers' Accounting for Defined Benefit Pensind ®ther Postretirement Benefit
Plans(SFAS 158). SFAS 158 requires companies to receghez overfunded or
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underfunded status of a defined benefit postretir@rplan as an asset or liability in its statenoériinancial position. This statement is
effective for financial statements as of the enfiszfal years ending after December 15, 2006. Asutised further in Note 10, the Company's
pension plan was frozen on September 30, 2006.rAsudt of the plan being frozen, the Company liestvely reflected the funded status
of the plan in the Consolidated Balance Sheetsethee, SFAS 158 will have no impact on the comaitd financial statements.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Stashgi&oard (FASB) issued SFAS No. 15ajr Value MeasurementsSFAS No. 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for sneiag fair value and expands disclosures abouvédiie measurements. This statement is
effective for financial statements issued for flgears beginning after November 15, 2007, andimt@eriods within those fiscal years. The
Company is currently evaluating SFAS No. 157 tedatne the impact, if any, on its financial statese

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange @ssiun issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 108 ($A08). SAB 108 considers the
effects of prior year misstatements when quantifyimsstatements in current year financial statemeénis effective for fiscal years ending
after November 15, 2006. The Company does notuzetize adoption of SAB 108 will have a material anpon the consolidated financial
statements.

In June, 2006, The Financial Accounting Standarolzré ("FASB") issued Interpretation No. 4&;counting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes-
an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 10%is interpretation prescribes a recognitionghmd and measurement attribute for the finar
statement recognition and measurement of a tatiposaken or expected to be taken in a tax retamd, provides guidance on derecognition,
classification, interest and penalties, accounitinigterim periods, disclosure, and transition.sTinterpretation is effective for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2006. The Companuriently assessing the impact of this Interpretatio the financial statements.

NOTE 2 IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company periodically evaluates long-lived assdten events or circumstances indicate, in managesjudgment, that the carrying
value of such assets may not be recoverable. Chahgecould trigger such an assessment may inawignificant decline in revenue or ¢
margin per day, extended periods of low rig utii@a, changes in market demand for a specific asbsblescence, completion of specific
contracts, and/or overall general market conditidins review of the long-lived assets indicateattine carrying value of certain of these
assets is more than the estimated undiscounteckfasish flows, an impairment charge is made tosadljie carrying value to the estimated
fair market value of the asset.

Based on its analysis, the Company recorded a $Billibn pre-tax impairment charge to the Offsheegment in the fourth quarter of fiscal
2004. In conjunction with the impairment charge, @ompany retired rig 108 at September 30, 2004;hwlirought the number of available
platform rigs to eleven. The Company also redubeddepreciable lives of five platform rigs to forars and the salvage value of each of the
offshore rigs to $1.0 million. As a result of tiegairment charge and the change in depreciable ¢ine salvage values, depreciation expense
in the Offshore segment was reduced by approxim&kb million in fiscal year 2005.
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NOTE 3 NOTES PAYABLE AND LONG-TERM DEBT

At September 30, 2006 and 2005, the Company had $@0on in unsecured long-term debt outstandihfpeed rates and maturities as
summarized in the following table:

September 30,

Maturity Date Interest Rate 200¢ 200¢
August 15, 200° 5.51% $ 25,000,00 $ 25,000,00
August 15, 200¢ 5.91% 25,000,00 25,000,00
August 15, 201! 6.46% 75,000,00 75,000,00
August 15, 201- 6.56% 75,000,00 75,000,00

$ 200,000,00 $ 200,000,00
Less loni-term debt due within one ye (25,000,00) —
Long-term deb $ 175,000,00 $ 200,000,00
I I

The terms of the debt obligations require the Camgga maintain a minimum ratio of debt to total italization. The debt is held by various
entities, including $8 million held by a companfilafted with one of the Company's Board members.

At September 30, 2006, the Company had a commuttedcured line of credit totaling $50 million. lexk of credit totaling $16.4 million
were outstanding against the line, leaving $33léaniavailable to borrow. Under terms of the liofecredit, the Company must maintain
certain financial ratios including debt to totapitalization and debt to earnings before interestes, depreciation, and amortization, and a
certain level of tangible net worth. Borrowings mgathe line of credit bear interest at the Londtmerbank Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR)
plus .875 to 1.125 percent or prime minus 1.75¢mrto prime minus 1.50 percent depending on raéssribed above. At September 30,
2006 and 2005, no balances were outstanding uhdéine of credit. The revolving credit commitmexpires July 10, 2007, however,
subsequent to year end, this line of credit waseled by the Company and a new facility was olgtdias discussed below.

At September 30, 2006, the Company was in commiavith all debt covenants.

As of September 30, 2006, the Company had foutandg, unsecured notes payable to a bank tot@Brig million denominated in a

foreign currency. The interest rate of the notes W& percent with a 60 day maturity. SubsequeSefember 30, 2006, additional amounts
totaling $12.3 million were borrowed with intereates ranging from 12 percent to 16 percent anchote outstanding at September 30, 2006
for $1.2 million was paid.

Subsequent to September 30, 2006, the Companyedritéo negotiations with a multi-bank syndicateddive-year, $400 million senior
unsecured credit facility. The Company anticipdkbes the majority of all of the borrowings over fife of the new facility will accrue intere
at a spread over LIBOR. The Company will also papmamitment fee based on the unused balance éa¢figy. The spread over LIBOR as
well as the commitment fee is expected to be detemihaccording to a scale based on a ratio of hrapgainy's total debt to total
capitalization. The LIBOR spread is expected t@eafiom .30 percent to .45 percent depending
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on the ratios. Based on the ratio at the closaefiscal year, the LIBOR spread on borrowings wdé .35 percent and the commitment fee
would be .075 percent per annum. Financial covenarthe facility are expected to restrict the Campto a total debt to total capitalization
ratio of less than 50 percent and earnings befdegast, taxes, depreciation, and amortization test minimum of consolidated interest
expense on a rolling 12 month basis. The new fgddiexpected to contain additional terms, condgi and restrictions that the Company
believes are usual and customary in unsecuredadiebigements for companies that are similar inamecredit quality. The closing of this
facility is expected to occur in December 2006 cissing, the Company anticipates transferring tettels of credit totaling $20.9 million to
the facility.

In conjunction with the $400 million senior unseedicredit facility, the Company began negotiatisth a single bank to amend and restate
the current unsecured line of credit from $50 midlto $5 million. Pricing on the amended line cddit is expected to be prime minus 1.75
percent. The covenants and other terms and conslitice expected to be similar to the aforementiceadbr credit facility except that there
no commitment fee. The closing for this line ofdités expected to occur in December 2006. Aftesitlg, the Company plans to have one
letter of credit outstanding against this line &otdl remaining availability will be $4.9 million.

NOTE 4 INCOME TAXES

The components of the provision (benefit) for ineotaxes are as follows:

Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t 2004
(in thousands)
Current:

Federal $ 136,37( $ 39,13¢ $ (5,997
Foreign 4,30¢ 8,18¢ 4,622
State 10,213 2,12¢ (199
150,88° 49,44¢ (1,569

Deferred:
Federal 10,25: 31,57: 4,037
Foreign (7,77¢€) 4,86: 1,90z
State 1,02¢ 1,57¢ (5)
3,50¢ 38,01« 5,93¢
Total provision $ 154,39: $ 87,46 $ 4,36t

The amounts of domestic and foreign income beforere taxes and equity in income of affiliate asdadlows:

Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t 2004
(in thousands)

Domestic $ 389,59! $ 195,97¢ $ (2,56%5)

Foreign 51,38¢ 16,67¢ 10,56¢

$ 440,98: $ 212,65 $ 8,00(

52




Deferred income taxes are provided for the tempyaddferences between the financial reporting basid the tax basis of the Company's
assets and liabilities. Recoverability of any tagets are evaluated and necessary allowancesoaidgat. The carrying value of the net
deferred tax assets assumes, based on estimatassamdptions, that the Company will be able to geaesufficient future taxable income in
certain tax jurisdictions to realize the benefitswch assets. If these estimates and related asisuns) change in the future, additional
valuation allowances will be recorded against thfeded tax assets resulting in additional incoaxeetxpense in the future.

The components of the Company's net deferred ahiities are as follows:

September 30, 200¢ 200t

(in thousands)
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipme $ 220,85: $ 210,86:
Available-for-sale securitie 48,59: 31,92¢
Equity investment 19,35( 20,91t
Other 51 1,71¢
Total deferred tax liabilitie 288,84! 265,42(
Deferred tax asset
Pension reserve 8,441 10,31(
Selfinsurance reserve 3,38¢ 3,94:
Net operating loss and foreign tax credit carryfms 33,02¢ 32,561
Minimum tax credit carryforward — 42¢
Financial accrual 17,26( 11,29t
Other 9 12
Total deferred tax asse 62,12 58,55¢
Valuation allowanct 33,02¢ 31,34¢
Net deferred tax asse 29,09¢ 27,21(
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ 259,75:; $ 238,21(

Reclassifications have been made to the fiscal P@lnces for certain components of deferred tagtasand liabilities in order to conform to
the current year's presentation.

The change in the Company's net deferred tax aasdthabilities are impacted by foreign curreneyneasurement.

As of September 30, 2006 the Company had statéomeidn net operating loss carryforwards for inca@se purposes of $16.5 million and
$3.4 million, respectively, and foreign tax crechirryforwards of approximately $30.7 million whialkil expire in years 2010 through 2015.
The valuation allowance is primarily attributabdestate and foreign net operating loss carryforaamt foreign tax credit carryforwards for
which it is more likely than not that these willtrae utilized.
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Effective income tax rates as compared to the @Rl income tax rate are as follows:

Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t 200¢
U.S. Federal income tax rée 35% 35% 35%
Effect of foreign taxe Q) 3 18
State income taxe 1 3 —
Other — 2 —
Effective income tax rat 35% 43% 53%

NOTE 5 SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

On March 1, 2006, the Company's Board of Direcéqmgroved a two-for-one stock split on its commatist subject to shareholder approval
of an amendment to the Company's Restated Cetéfafdncorporation to increase the number of atized common shares of the Compe
On June 23, 2006, the Company's shareholders agbtbe amendment. As a result, the split was patlda form of a share distribution on
July 7, 2006 to the shareholders of record on 26n2006. The Company retained the current parevad$.10 per share for all shares of
common stock. All references in the financial staats to the number of shares outstanding, pee @ltaounts, and stock option data of the
Company's common stock have been restated to réfleeffect of the stock split for all periods geated.

On September 30, 2006, the Company had 103,868i4tanding common stock purchase rights ("Righgatsuant to the terms of the
Rights Agreement dated January 8, 1996, as amdndAdchendment No. 1 dated December 8, 2005. As tadjusr the two-for-one stock
splits in fiscals 1998 and 2006, and as long asitjts are not separately transferable, one-fgtit attaches to each share of the Company's
common stock. Under the terms of the Rights Agregraach Right entitled the holder thereof to pusehfiom the Company one full unit
consisting of one ontousandth of a share of Series A Junior Partitigd®referred Stock ("Preferred Stock"), without palue, at a price «
$250 per unit. The exercise price and the numbenit§ of Preferred Stock issuable on exercisé@fRights are subject to adjustment in
certain cases to prevent dilution. The Rights allattached to the common stock certificates amehair exercisable or transferable apart f
the common stock, until ten business days aftearsgm acquires 15 percent or more of the outstgrmbmmon stock or ten business days
following the commencement of a tender offer orhexge offer that would result in a person owningé&gcent or more of the outstanding
common stock. In the event the Company is acquiredmerger or certain other business combinat@mstctions (including one in which
the Company is the surviving corporation), or mihx@n 50 percent of the Company's assets or eapowegr is sold or transferred, each ho
of a Right shall have the right to receive, upoareise of the Right, common stock of the acquidogpany having a value equal to two
times the exercise price of the Right. The Rigiésradeemable under certain circumstances at $@ORight and will expire, unless earlier
redeemed, on January 31, 2016.
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NOTE 6 STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has several plans providing for stadel awards to employees and to non-employee @isedthe plans permit the granting
of various types of awards including stock optiansl restricted stock. Restricted stock may be gthfttr no consideration other than prior
and future services. The purchase price per sbargdck options may not be less than market mit¢ke underlying stock on the date of
grant. Stock options expire ten years after grant.

In March 2001, the Company adopted the 2000 Stockrtive Plan (the "Stock Incentive Plan"). Thec8tmcentive Plan was effective
December 6, 2000 and will terminate December 6020hder this plan, the Company is authorized tmgoptions for up to 6,000,000
shares of the Company's common stock at an exgmienot less than the fair market value of themon stock on the date of grant. Up to
900,000 shares of the total authorized may be gdatat participants as restricted stock awardssidire amounts have been adjusted to re

a stock split that was effective June 26, 2006edi¥e March 1, 2006, no additional common-stockeldlbawards will be granted under the
Stock Incentive Plan.

On March 1, 2006, at the Annual Meeting of Stockleos$, the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan was apgtoVbe Plan, among other things,
authorizes the Board of Directors to grant nondjealiand incentive stock options, restricted staakards, stock appreciation rights and
performance units to selected employees and toenguloyee Directors. In fiscal 2006, no stock awavdse granted from this plan.

The Company has the right to satisfy option exescfsom treasury shares and from authorized bgsued shares. During fiscal 2006,
1,325,200 shares were purchased at an aggregatef &30.2 million of which $1.8 million did not gk until after September 30, 2006.
Subsequent to year end, the Company purchased0&Bdh@res at an aggregate cost of $15.9 millioe.dbmpany may purchase additional
shares if the share price is favorable.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement ofieinBAccounting Standards No. 123 (Revised 2084are Based PaymefiSFAS 123
(R)"). SFAS 123(R) is a revision of SFAS No. 128 amendedAccounting for Stock-Based CompensaflitB8FAS 123"), and supersedes
Accounting Principles Board Opinion ("APB") No. 2&¢counting for Stock Issued to Employ@@d’B 25"). SFAS 123(R) eliminated the
alternative to use the intrinsic value method afoamting that was provided in SFAS 123, which galheresulted in no compensation
expense recorded in the financial statements retatéhe issuance of stock options with an exerngige that was equal to the award's grant
date fair value. SFAS 123(R) requires that the cemilting from all share-based payment transasti@nrecognized in the financial
statements. SFAS 123(R) established fair valubasieasurement objective in accounting for shased payment arrangements and req
all companies to apply a fair-value based measunemethod in accounting for all share-based payrtransactions with employees.

In October 2005, the Company adopted SFAS 123(Rpuwsmodified prospective application, as perrditeder SFAS 123(R). According
prior period amounts have not been restated. Uthieapplication, the Company is required to reamthpensation expense for all awards
granted after the date of adoption and for the si@eeportion of previously granted awards that ieroatstanding at the date of adoption.
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Additionally, SFAS 123(R) requires that the bersefif the tax deduction in excess of recognized emsgtion cost be reported as a financing
cash flow, rather than as an operating cash floreasired under previously effective accountingpiples generally accepted in the United
States. The adoption of SFAS 123(R) also resultertain changes to the Company's accountingefiricted stock awards, which is
discussed below in more detail.

In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP No. 123R-SF'123R-3")Transition Election Related to Accounting for thexEffects of Share-
Based Payment Awari, to provide an alternative transition electioratetl to accounting for the tax effects of shareebasvards to
employees to the guidance provided in Paragrapsf 8FAS 123(R). The guidance in FSP 123R-3 wast¥ie on November 11, 2005. An
entity may take up to one year from the later ®fnitial adoption of SFAS 123(R) or the effectiae of FSP 123R-3 to evaluate its available
transition alternatives and make its one-time @actUntil and unless an entity elects the traasitnethod described in FSP 123R-3, the
entity should follow the transition method descdlie Paragraph 81 of SFAS 123(R). SFAS 123(R) regLan entity to calculate the pool of
excess tax benefits available to absorb tax defidés recognized subsequent to adopting Staten28(R) (termed the "APIC Pool"). The
Company is using the transition method as desciib@aragraph 81 of SFAS 123(R).

A summary of compensation cost for stock-based pay@rrangements recognized in general and adnaitivg expense and cash received
from the exercise of stock options in fiscal 208@s follows (in thousands, except per share amspunt

Compensation expen

Stock options $ 8,71«
Restricted stoc 1,03¢

$ 9,752

——

After-tax stock based compensat $ 6,04¢
Per basic shai $ .0€
Per diluted shar $ .0€

L

[N
N
w
~
S

Cash received from exercise of stock opti

Benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognadpensation cost of $10.2 million is reported &sancing cash flow in the Consolidated
Condensed Statements of Cash Flow for fiscal 2006.

In December 2005, the Company accelerated thengestishare options held by a senior executive reticed. As a result of that
modification, the Company recognized additional pemsation expense of $2.8 million for the fiscaryended September 30, 2006.

STOCK OPTIONS

Vesting requirements for stock options are deteechiny the Human Resources Committee of the Comp&wdrd of Directors. Options
granted December 6, 1995, began vesting Decemid&98, with 20 percent of the options vesting fee tonsecutive years. Options granted
December 4, 1996, began vesting December 4, 1987 2@ percent of the options vesting for five cenigtive years. Options granted since
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December 3, 1997, began vesting one year aftegrirg date with 25 percent of the options vestorgdur consecutive years.

Prior to adoption of SFAS 123(R), the Company ubedBlack-Scholes formula to estimate the valustofk options granted to employees.
The Company continues to use this acceptable optiration model following the adoption of SFAS {RR The fair value of the options is
amortized to compensation expense on a straightblisis over the requisite service periods of theksawards, which are generally the
vesting periods. The following summarizes the weigkaverage assumptions in the model.

200¢ 200¢ 200¢
Risk-free interest rat 4.5% 4.2% 3.7%
Expected stock volatilit 36.%% 40.2% 44.(%
Dividend yield .5% 1.C% .8%
Expected term (in year 5.2 5.C 5.5

Risk-Free Interest Rate. The risk-free interest rate is based on the Ur&asury securities for the expected term obibtéon.

Expected Volatility Rate Expected volatilities are based on the daibsiclg price of the Company's stock based uponrigsiceexperience
over a period which approximates the expected tdrihe option.

Expected Dividend Yielr The dividend yield is based on the Company'secti dividend yield.

Expected Ternm The expected term of the options granted remiteshe period of time that they are expectedetolistanding. The
Company estimates the expected term of optiongepidrased on historical experience with grantsexaaicises.

The following summary reflects the stock optionast for the Company's common stock and relatédrimation for 2006, 2005, and 2004
(shares in thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price Options Exercise Price

Outstanding at October 6,48t $ 12.2¢ 891/ $ 11.0Z 8,65/ $ 10.71
Granted 64C 29.6¢ 92¢€ 16.01 93¢ 12.0¢
Exercisec (1,489 12.2¢ (3,227 9.7¢ (610 8.0¢
Forfeited/Expirec (26) 18.5¢ (130 13.61 (68) 12.6¢
Outstanding on September : 561¢ $ 14.2¢ 6,48t $ 12.2¢ 8914/ $ 11.0z2
Exercisable on September : 3,847 $ 11.74 4,05¢ $ 11.3i 599 $ 10.31

Shares available to gra 4,00( 1,51(C 2,31¢
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The following table summarizes information abowat&toptions at September 30, 2006 (shares in timoig$a

Outstanding Stock Options Exercisable Stock Options
Range of Weighted-Average Weighted-Average Weighted-Average
Exercise Prices Options Remaining Life Exercise Price Options Exercise Price
$6.3975 to $9.417 894 2.7 $ 8.0C 894 $ 8.0C
$11.3318 to $16.01C 4,11¢ 6.2 $ 13.2¢ 2,941 $ 12.81
$30.237¢ 60€ 9.2 $ 30.2¢ 12 $ 30.2¢
$6.3975 to $30.237 5,61¢ 6.C $ 14.2¢ 3,847 $ 11.74

At September 30, 2006, the weighted-average renmlife of exercisable stock options was 5.03 yaad the aggregate intrinsic value was
$43.4 million with a weighted-average exercise @€ $11.74 per share.

The number of options expected to vest at SepteBHhe2006 was 5,596,678 with an aggregate intrivaice of $49.5 million and a
weighted-average exercise price of $14.18 per share

As of September 30, 2006, the unrecognized compienszost related to the stock options was $9.%anil That cost is expected to be
recognized over a weighted-average period of 2adsye

The weighted-average fair value of options grahedng 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $11.40, $6.09 ari?$Eespectively. The total intrinsic
value of options exercised during the 2006, 20052004 was $34.9 million, $41.3, and $3.8 milliespectively.

The fair value of shares vested during fiscal 2@@6 $9.1 million.

Prior to October 1, 2005, stock-based awards wereumted for under APB 25 and related interpretati-ixed plan common stock options
generally did not result in compensation expensalse the exercise price of the options issuetidCbmpany was equal to the market |
of the underlying stock on the date of grant. TélloWving table illustrates the effect on the natdme and earnings per share as if the
Company
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had applied the fair value recognition provisiohSBAS No. 123, ‘Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation

September 30, 200t 200¢
(thousands, except per share amot
Net income, as reporte $ 127,60t $ 4,35¢
Stock-based employee compensation expense inclndked Consolidated Statements o
Income, net of related tax effe: 16 6
Total stock-based employee compensation expensawatd under fair value based
method for all awards, net of related tax effe (3,569 (4,172)
Pro forma net incom $ 124,05¢ $ 192
I |
Earnings per shan
Basic— as reporte: $ 1.2t $ 0.04
I I
Basic- pro forma $ 1.21 $ 0.0C
I |
Diluted — as reportet $ 1.22 $ 0.04
I I
Diluted - pro forma $ 1.1¢ $ 0.0c
I I

RESTRICTED STOCK

Restricted stock awards consist of the Companytswan stock and are time vested over three to faars The Company recognizes
compensation expense on a straight-line basistbeeresting period. The fair value of restricteatktawards is determined based on the
closing trading price of the Company's shares ergtiant date. As of September 30, 2006, there wasrillion of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to unvested restrictazk stptions granted under the Plan. That costpeeted to be recognized over a weighted-
average period of 4.1 years.

Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123(R), unearned camsption related to restricted stock awards wasified as a separate component of
stockholders' equity. In accordance with the piiovis of SFAS 123(R), on October 1, 2005, the baanainearned compensation was
reclassified to additional paid-in capital on ttedamce sheet.

A summary of the status of the Company's restristedk awards as of September 30, 2006, and ofelsain restricted stock outstanding
during the fiscal years ended September 30, 208&@8605 is as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair

Weighted-Average
Grant Date Fair

Shares Value per Share Shares Value per Share
Outstanding at October 10 $ 16.01 — $ —
Granted 20z 30.2¢ 10 16.01
Vested — — — —
Forfeited/Expirec — — — —
Outstanding on September : 21z $ 29.57 10 $ 16.01

59




No restricted stock awards were granted durin@fi2604 or outstanding at September 30, 2
NOTE 7 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The computation of basic earnings per share isthaséhe weighted average number of common sharstaoding during the period. The
computation of diluted earnings per share refldwspotential dilution that would occur if stocktimms were exercised and the dilution from
the issuance of restricted shares, computed ustreasury stock method.

A reconciliation of the weighted-average commorrabautstanding on a basic and diluted basis fisliasvs:

200¢ 200t 200¢
(in thousands)
Basic weighte-average share 104,65¢ 102,17- 100,62:
Effect of dilutive shares
Stock options and restricted stc 1,43: 1,89 1,04:
Diluted weighte-average share 106,09: 104,06¢ 101,66¢

At September 30, 2006, options to purchase 80%486es of common stock at a weighted-average pfi$80.2375 were outstanding, but
were not included in the computation of dilutedné&ags per share. Inclusion of these shares woulhlidilutive.

At September 30, 2005, all options outstanding virckided in the computation of diluted earnings g@ammon share.

At September 30, 2004, options to purchase 2,08586res of common stock at a weighted-average pfi§13.92 were outstanding, but
were not included in the computation of dilutedné@gs per common share. Inclusion of these shaoesgde antidilutive.

NOTE 8 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company had $200 million of long-term debt tartding at September 30, 2006 which had an estihfatevalue of $209 million. The
debt was valued based on the prices of similarrgasuwith similar terms and credit ratings. Then@pany used the expertise of an outside
investment banking firm to assist with the estinttthe fair value of the long-term debt. The Compa line of credit and notes payable bear
interest at market rates and the cost of borrowiiiggy, would approximate fair value. The estiathfair value of the Company's available-
for-sale securities is primarily based on markeitgs.
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The following is a summary of available-for-salewsties, which excludes those accounted for uttdeequity method of accounting (see
Note 1), investments in limited partnerships caraecost and assets held in a -qualified Supplemental Savings Plan:

Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Estimated Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

(in thousands)
Equity Securities
September 30, 20( $ 19,41 $ 122,49( $ (115 $ 141,78t
September 30, 20( $ 30,93" $ 94,00( $ — $ 124,93

On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates thkatadrle equity securities to determine if a decliiméair market is other-than-temporary.
If a decline in fair market value is determined®other-than-temporary, an impairment chargedsroied and a new cost basis established.
In determining if an unrealized loss is other-themporary, the Company considers how long the niardee of the investment has been
below cost, how significant the decline in valu@assa percentage of the original cost and the marlgeneral and analyst recommendations.
At September 30, 2006, one marketable equity styduaid a fair market value of $1.5 million which sMass than the recorded cost. The
security had been in a continuous loss positiormfmroximately four months. The Company did notsider this unrealized loss to be other-
than-temporary and, subsequent to year-end, thenfaiket value of the one equity security excedtleccost basis.

During the years ended September 30, 2006, 20@52@0D4, marketable equity available-for-sale sdéiesrivith a fair value at the date of sale
of $28.2 million, $46.7 million, and $30.9 milliorespectively, were sold. For the same years, thesgealized gains on such sales of
available-for-sale securities totaled $19.8 milli&27.0 million, and $22.8 million, respectivelydathe gross realized losses totaled

$7 thousand in fiscal 2004. In fiscal 2006 and 2@Bd Company had $0.1 million in gains relateddo-monetary transactions.

The investments in the limited partnerships caraedost were approximately $12.4 million and $8ibion at September 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The estimated fair value exceededdis¢ of investments at September 30, 2006 and @605as such, the investments were not
impaired.

The assets held in a Non-qualified Supplementain§awlan are valued at fair market which totalé®$nillion and $7.0 million at
September 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalemoapnates fair value due to the short maturityhafse investments.

At September 30, 2006, the Company's short-termstments consisted primarily of auction rate séiesrivhich are classified as available-
for-sale. The interest or dividend rates on the @amy's auction rate securities are generally mgaty 7 to 49 days through an auction
process, thus limiting the Company's exposuretaraést rate risk. Interest and dividends are paithese securities at the end of each reset
period. At September 30, 2006, all of the auctite securities were U.S. state and local municipal
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securities due within one year. The Company's anctite securities are reported on the balance ahésr value. There were no unrealized
gains or losses for 2006.

The Company sold $91.6 million in auction rate si&s during the year ended September 30, 2006 matrealized gains or losses. Interest
and dividends related to these investments araded in interest and dividend income on the Comsa@gnsolidated Statements of Income.

The carrying value of other assets, accrued ligdsliand other liabilities approximated fair vahteSeptember 30, 2006 and 2005.
NOTE 9 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS )

The table below presents changes in the compoonéatcumulated other comprehensive income (loss).

Unrealized Appreciation
(Depreciation) Interest Rate Minimum Pension
on Securities Swap Liability Total

(in thousands)

Balance at September 30, 2( $ 39,85. $ (72) $ 6,11) $ 33,66¢
2004 Change
Pre-income tax amour 31,42( — (1,95)) 29,46¢
Income tax provisiol (11,940 — 742 (12,199
Amortization of swap (net of $45 income t
benefit) — 72 — 72
Realized gains in net income (net of $9,6%
income tax (15,759 — (15,759
3,721 72 (2,209 2,58¢
Balance at September 30, 2( 43,57: — (7,320) 36,25:
2005 Change
Pre-income tax amour 24,58¢ — (5,510 19,07¢
Income tax provisiol (9,349 — 2,09/ (7,249
Realized gains in net income (net of $328
income tax (537) (537)
14,70¢ — (3,416 11,29:
Balance at September 30, 2( 58,28( — (10,736 47,54
2006 Change
Pre-income tax amour 48,24( — 7,27¢ 55,51t
Income tax provisiol (18,33) — (2,76%) (21,096
Realized gains in net income (net of $7,54
income tax (12,319 (12,319
17,59 — 4,51( 22,10:
Balance at September 30, 2( $ 75,87 % — $ (6,22¢) $ 69,64"
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company maintains a noncontributory definedsjenplan for substantially all U.S. employees wieet certain age and service
requirements. In July 2003, the Company revisedttlenerich & Payne, Inc. Employee Retirement Pl&e(sion Plan") to close the Pens
Plan to new participants effective October 1, 2@0R] reduce benefit accruals for current partidip#mough September 30, 2006, at which
time benefit accruals were discontinued and thesiBarPlan frozen.

The following table and other information in thaofnote provide information at September 30 ab¢éoGompany sponsored domestic defined
pension plan as required by SFAS No. 132 (Revi€&38Y, "Employers' Disclosures About Pensions and OthetrBtrement Benefits.

Change in benefit obligation:

Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t
(in thousands)

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 90,21% $ 82,22
Service cos 4,71: 3,48(
Interest cos 4,841 4,617
Actuarial (gain) los: (5,909 3,40¢
Benefits paic (6,199 (3,510
Benefit obligation at end of ye $ 87,66 $ 90,217
I I

Change in plan assets:
Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t

(in thousands)

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of \ $ 62,95¢ $ 56,65(
Actual gain on plan asse 5,57¢ 7,56¢
Employer contributior 4,421 2,25(
Benefits paic (6,199 (3,510
Fair value of plan assets at end of y $ 66,75: $ 62,95¢
I I
Funded status of the pl: $ (20,91 $ (27,267)
Unrecognized net actuarial lo 10,02¢ 17,44*
Unrecognized prior service cc 1 1
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (before (10,047 (17,319
Accrued benefit cos $ (20,93() $ (27,13))
I I

Weighted-average assumptions:

Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t 2004
Discount rate 5.7%% 5.5(% 5.7%%
Expected return on plan ass 8.0(% 8.0(% 8.0(%

Rate of compensation incree 5.0(% 5.0(% 5.0(%
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The Company does not anticipate funding the Peri2ian in fiscal 2007 will be required. However, thempany can choose to make
discretionary contributions to fund distributiomslieu of liquidating pension assets. During fis2806, the Company elected to fund
$4.4 million. The Company estimates contributingd®8illion in fiscal 2007. Subsequent to year ehd,Company has contributed
$0.3 million to the Pension Plan.

Components of net periodic pension expense:

Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t 200¢
(in thousands)

Service cos $ 4,712 $ 3,48( $ 3,94:
Interest cos 4,841 4,615 4,40:
Expected return on plan ass (4,93¢) (4,37¢) (4,237)
Amortization of prior service co: @ — 18
Recognized net actuarial la 87¢ 987 761
Net pension expen: $ 5,49¢ $ 4,70¢ $ 4,89/

| | |

The following table reflects the expected beneéitbe paid from the Pension Plan in each of thé fiex fiscal years, and in the aggregate for
the five years thereafter.

Years Ended September 30,

2007 200¢ 200¢ 201( 2011 2012201¢ Total

(in thousands)

$ 3,07t $  3,32¢ $ 3,60z $ 3,76¢ $ 3,947 $24,01( $ 41,73
Included in the Pension Plan is an unfunded supghéah executive retirement plan.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defifeshsion Plan was $87.7 million, $90.1 million a?&$ million at September 30, 2006,
2005, and 2004, respectively.

The Company evaluates the Pension Plan to detemtiather any additional minimum liability is reqedt. As a result of changes in the
interest rates, an adjustment to the minimum pengdbility was required. The adjustment to thdilidy is recorded as a charge to
accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tasthareholders' equity in the consolidated balaheets.

INVESTMENT STRATEGY AND ASSET ALLOCATION

The Company's investment policy and strategiegstablished with a lontgerm view in mind. The investment strategy is ickee to help pa
the cost of the Plan while providing adequate sgcto meet the benefits promised under the Pléae Company maintains a diversified asset
mix to minimize the risk of a material loss to fartfolio value that might occur from devaluatidnamy one investment. In determining the
appropriate asset mix, the Company's financiahgtieand ability to fund potential shortfalls amnsidered.
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The expected long-term rate of return on plan assdiased on historical and projected rates afmdor current and planned asset classes in
the Plans' investment portfolio after analyzingdrisal experience and future expectations of #tarn and volatility of various asset classes.

The target allocation for 2007 and the asset dilocdor the domestic Pension Plan at the endsaffi2006 and 2005, by asset category,
follows:

Percentage of Plan Assets

Target Allocation At September 30,
Asset Category 2007 2006 2005
U.S. equities 56% 60% 58%
International equitie 14 17 16
Fixed income 25 22 24
Real estate and oth 5 1 2
Total 10C% 10C% 10C%

The fair value of plan assets was $66.8 million $68.0 million at September 30, 2006 and 2005,aetsgely, and the expected long-term
rate of return on these plan assets was 8 pemt&®i6 and 2005.

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

Substantially all employees on the United Statgsgieof the Company may elect to participate ie thompany sponsored 401(k)/Thrift Plan
by contributing a portion of their earnings. Then@any contributes amounts equal to 100 percemteofitst 5 percent of the participant's
compensation subject to certain limitations. ExpenSompany contributions were $8.4 million, $6.1liom, and $5.6 million in 2006, 2005,
and 2004, respectively.

FOREIGN PLAN

The Company maintains an unfunded pension plaménad the international subsidiaries. Pension egpaevas approximately $0.4 million,
$0.3 million and $0.2 million in 2006, 2005 and 20@espectively. The pension liability at Septent®@@r2006 and 2005 was $3.6 million ¢
$3.4 million, respectively.

NOTE 11 SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION
The following reflects the activity in the Compasnyeserve for bad debt for 2006, 2005 and 2004:

September 30, 200¢ 200¢ 200¢

(in thousands)

Reserve for bad dek

Balance at October $ 1,791 $ 1,26t $ 1,31¢
Provision for bad det 25C 53C 15
Write-off of bad deb (34) 4 (69)
Balance at September & $ 2,001 1,791 $ 1,26¢

| | |




Accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, and actialglities at September 30 consist of the follogin

September 30, 200¢ 200t

(in thousands)
Accounts receivable, net of reser

Trade receivable $ 283,38¢ $ 162,64¢
Investment sales receivab 6,09: _
$ 289,47¢ $ 162,64¢
| |

Prepaid expenses and otf

Prepaid value added t: $ 2,597 $ 5,96(
Restricted cas 2,27: 2,19¢
Income tax ass¢ — 2,08(
Prepaid insuranc 2,432 1,94¢
Deferred mobilizatior 2,901 654
Other 5,91( 5,09t
$ 16,11¢ $ 17,93
| |
Accrued liabilities:
Taxes payabl- operations $ 21,31¢ $ 10,26:
Accrued income taxe 24,99: —
Workers' compensation liabiliti¢ 2,371 3,83(
Payroll and employee benef 30,124 20,27:
Accrued operating cos 7,20 3,60(
Other 11,07t 6,657
$ 97,071 $ 44,627
I I
NOTE 12 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t 2004

(in thousands)

Cash payment:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitali: $ 6,64< $ 12,70; $ 12,65
Income taxes pai $ 109,85° $ 29,71t $ 7,01C

Capital expenditures on the Consolidated Statenwdr@ash Flows for the years ended September 3B, ZM05 and 2004, does not include
additions which have been incurred but not paicaof the end of the
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year. The following table reconciles total capéapenditures incurred to total capital expenditimehe Consolidated Statements of C
Flows:

September 30, 200¢ 200¢ 200¢
(in thousands)

Capital expenditures incurrt $ 614,27: $ 95,007 $ 88,97:

Additions incurred prior year but paid for in curtegear 10,351 2,14¢ 3,38¢

Additions incurred but not paid for as of the efidhe yeai (95,720 (10,357 (2,149

Capital expenditures per Consolidated Statements of

Cash Flows $ 528,90! $ 86,80¢ $ 90,21
I I I

NOTE 13 RISK FACTORS
CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk consighprily of temporary cash investments,
short-term investments and trade receivables. Tdregany places temporary cash investments with lesttadd financial institutions and
invests in a diversified portfolio of highly rateshort-term money market instruments. The Compdrgde receivables, primarily with
established companies in the oil and gas industay, impact credit risk as customers may be sinyilaffiected by prolonged changes in
economic and industry conditions. Internationatésallso present various risks including governmetivities that may limit or disrupt
markets and restrict the movement of funds. MoshefCompany's international sales, however, al& ¢ international or national
companies. The Company performs ongoing credituati@ins of customers and does not typically reqeodateral in support for trade
receivables. The Company provides an allowanceddabtful accounts, when necessary, to cover estitnaiedit losses. Such an allowanc
based on management's knowledge of customer accdmsignificant credit losses have been expeeigiyy the Company in recent histc

SELF-INSURANCE

The Company self-insures a significant portiontefeixpected losses under its worker's compensajéreral, and automobile liability
programs. Insurance coverage has been purchasedli@dual claims that exceed $1 million or $2 loih, depending on whether a claim
occurs inside or outside of the United States. Thmpany records estimates for incurred outstanitiibities for worker's compensation,
general liability claims and for claims that areurred but not reported. Estimates are based éoriti€xperience and statistical methods that
the Company believes are reliable. Nonethelessranse estimates include certain assumptions amdgeaent judgments regarding the
frequency and severity of claims, claim developmantl settlement practices. Unanticipated changteese factors may produce materially
different amounts of expense that would be repasteder these programs.

In 2005 the Company formed a wholly-owned capthairance company, White Eagle Assurance Companiyté\EEagle), to provide a
portion of the Company's property damage insurémceompany-owned drilling rigs. The Company obtair85 percent of rig property
insurance from a third party insurance provide2006 that carried a $1.0 million deductible. Therpany is self insured through White
Eagle for the remaining 15 percent of rig propedyerage and the $1.0 million deductible on allptigperty. Additionally, the Company
utilizes White Eagle to finance self insured losséhin the $1.0 million per occurrence
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deductible under workers compensation, general aat@mobile liability insurance policies for itgénnational operations. Premiums paid to
White Eagle by the drilling segments have beeruihetl in the drilling segment expenses but elimohadéong with the premium earned
income, in the Consolidated Statements of Income.

CONTRACT DRILLING OPERATIONS

International drilling operations are a significaontributor to the Company's revenues and netabipgrincome. There can be no assurance
that the Company will be able to successfully catduch operations, and a failure to do so may havadverse effect on the Company's
financial position, results of operations, and csivs. Also, the success of the Company's intéonat operations will be subject to
numerous contingencies, some of which are beyorthgeanent's control. These contingencies includergéand regional economic
conditions, fluctuations in currency exchange rateanges in international regulatory requiremants$ international employment issues, and
the burden of complying with foreign laws.

The Company is exposed to risks of currency devialnan Venezuela primarily as a result of bolivaceivable balances and bolivar cash
balances. In Venezuela, approximately 60 percetiteCompany's billings to the Venezuelan oil conyp&@DVSA, are in U.S. dollars and

40 percent are in the local currency, the bolitmdanuary 2003, the Venezuelan government putgfiezt exchange controls that fixed the
exchange rate at 1600 bolivares to one U.S. dalidralso prohibited the Company, as well as otbmpanies, from converting the bolivar
into U.S. dollars. On October 1, 2003, in compl@mgth applicable regulations, the Company submiteequest to the Venezuelan
government seeking permission to convert existimlgyar balances into U.S. dollars. In January 2@64,Venezuelan government approved
the conversion of bolivar cash balances to U.Sadohnd the remittance of those U.S. dollars eigleinds by the Company's Venezuelan
subsidiary to the U.S. based parent. The Compasyalk to remit $8.8 million of such dividends andary 2004. This was the first divide
remitted under the new regulation. On January 0662a dividend of $6.5 million was paid to the Lb8sed parent. These dividends reduced
the Company's exposure to currency devaluationeineZuela.

On August 18, 2006, the Company made applicatidh thie Venezuelan government requesting the apptowanvert bolivar cash balances
to U.S. dollars. Upon approval from the Venezuglamernment, the Company's Venezuelan subsidiatyevilit those dollars as a dividend
to its U.S. based parent, thus reducing the Compaxposure to currency devaluation. The Compatigipates the dividend to be
approximately $9.3 million.

As stated above, the Company is exposed to riskaroéncy devaluation in Venezuela primarily assuit of bolivar receivable balances and
bolivar cash balances. The exchange rate was 2ilb@lkes at September 30, 2006 and 2005, respégtared 1920 bolivares at

September 30, 2004. As a result of the 12 peraavdldation of the bolivar during fiscal 2005 (fr@eptember 2004 through August 2005),
the Company experienced total devaluation loss&s6amillion during that same period. Even thougingzuela continues to operate under
the exchange controls in place and the Venezuedlwvalb exchange rate has remained fixed at 2150dm@ls to one U.S. dollar since the
devaluation in March, 2005, the exact amount amihgg of devaluation is uncertain. While the Companynable to predict future
devaluation in Venezuela, if fiscal 2007 activigwels are similar to fiscal 2006 and if a 10 pet¢er20 percent devaluation would
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occur, the Company could experience potential cagrelevaluation losses ranging from approximatélp $nillion to $2.8 million.

In late August 2003, the Venezuelan state petroleompany agreed, on a go-forward basis, to payt#oopaf the Company's dollar-based
invoices in U.S. dollars. Were this agreement th, éime Company would revert to receiving these pyin bolivares and thus increase
bolivar cash balances and exposure to devaluation.

Venezuela continues to experience significant jgaliteconomic and social instability. In the evtvat extended labor strikes occur or turr
increases, the Company could experience shortadabar and/or material and supplies necessarpéoate some or all of its Venezuelan
drilling rigs, thereby causing an adverse effectr@nCompany. The Company derives its revenue me¥eela from Petréleos de Venezuela,
S.A. (PDVSA), the Venezuelan state-owned petroleampany. At September 30, 2006, the Company had eeoeivable from PDVSA of
$45.4 million of which $16.2 million was 90 dayslar older. At December 1, 2006, such receivablarit@ had increased to approximately
$66 million, of which $40 million was 90 days oldader. The Company continues to communicate RIHVSA regarding the settlement of
the outstanding receivables. While the collectibthe receivables is difficult and time consumingedo PDVSA policies and procedures, the
Company, at this time, has no reason to believatheunts will not be paid. Historically, PDVSA pagnts on accounts receivable have, by
traditional business measurements, been slowerttiz@mf other customers in international countimeshich the Company has drilling
operations. In order to establish a source of logaiency to meet current obligations in Venezbealivares, the Company is borrowing in the
form of short-term notes from two local banks im¥euela at the market interest rates designatéideblyanks.

NOTE 14 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
COMMITMENTS

During fiscal years 2006 and 2005, the Companyredtmto separate drilling contracts with 16 exat@n and production customers to build
and operate a total of 66 new FlexRigs. Subsedqoebéptember 30, 2006, the Company announceddhe¢ments had been reached with
three exploration and production companies to dpexa additional seven new FlexRigs bringing thel tof the new rigs to 73. The
construction of the 73 rigs is estimated to cosL $illlion. Approximately $400 million was incurréxd fiscal 2006 and approximately

$600 million is expected to be incurred in fisc@&0Z. The construction began in the third quartdisafal 2005 and is estimated to continue
through the first quarter of fiscal 2008. Duringistruction, rig construction costs will be recordle@onstruction in progress and then
transferred to contract drilling equipment whentigeis placed in the field for service. Equipmeueayts and supplies are ordered in advan
promote efficient construction progress. At Septen8D, 2006, the Company had commitments outstgrafiapproximately $313.2 million
for the purchase of drilling equipment.

LEASES

In May 2003, the Company signed a six-year leasagproximately 114,000 square feet of office spaea downtown Tulsa, Oklahoma.
The lease agreement contains rent escalation slawséch have been included in the future minimeask payments below, and a renewal
option. Leasehold improvements made at the incemtidhe lease were capitalized and are being aedrbver the initial lease term. The
Company
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also conducts certain operations in leased preraisg¢eases telecommunication equipment. Futurénmaim lease payments required under
noncancelable operating leases as of Septemb&086,are as follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Amount
2007 $ 3,69¢
2008 2,72¢
2009 1,71¢
2010 502
Thereaftel —
Total $ 8,631

Total rent expense was $3.1 million, $2.3 milliord&2.0 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respetyive
CONTINGENCIES

In August 2006, the Company signed an option agee¢no sell two U.S. offshore rigs. The net bookigaof the two rigs at September 30,
2006 was approximately $4.2 million and has beassified as "Assets held for sale" in the CompaBglstember 30, 2006 Consolidated
Balance Sheet. In September 2006, the Companyest82.0 million from the optionee for exclusivghis to purchase the rigs. The

$2.0 million is classified in current liabilities the Consolidated Balance Sheet at Septembe086, 2n additional $6.0 million was
received in October 2006 to exercise the extengéidroterm. If the purchase option is exercised,tthnsaction will close in the second
quarter of fiscal 2007.

In August 2005, the Company's Rig 201, which omsrain an operator's tension-leg platform in th€ GuMexico, lost its entire derrick and
suffered significant damage as a result of Hurrecatrina. Pre-tax cash flow from the platformwigs approximately $5.4 million in fiscal
2005. The rig was insured at a value that approtdtheeplacement cost to cover the net book valdeaay additional losses. Therefore, the
Company expects to record a gain resulting fronrélseipt of insurance proceeds. Capital costs fedun conjunction with rebuilding the
are capitalized and depreciated as described ia N&ummary of Significant Accounting Policies.urence proceeds of approximately

$3.0 million were received in fiscal 2006. Suchqaeds approximate the net book value of equipnesihin the hurricane and therefore, no
gain was recognized in fiscal 2006. The proceedsrathe Consolidated Statements of Cash Flowsrindesting activities. Subsequent to
September 30, 2006, additional insurance proceke$i8.8 million have been received and additionalmk have been submitted. Because the
rig is still under repair, the Company is unablestimate the amount or timing of the gain.

NOTE 15 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates principally in the contraitfiry industry. The Company's contract drillingdiness includes the following reportable
operating segments: U.S. Land, U.S. Offshore, atethational. The contract drilling operations ashmainly of contracting Company-
owned drilling equipment primarily to major oil agds exploration companies. The Company's prinragynational areas of operation
include Venezuela,
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Colombia, Ecuador, other South American countriebs Africa. The International operations have simdlarvices, have similar types of
customers, operate in a consistent manner anddiamiar economic and regulatory characteristiceréfore, the Company has aggregate
International operations into one reportable segnmiére Company also has a Real Estate segment vaipesations are conducted exclusiy
in the metropolitan area of Tulsa, Oklahoma. The&®as of operation include a shopping centersandral multi-tenant warehouses. Each
reportable segment is a strategic business unithwikimanaged separately. Other includes invessraard corporate operations. Consolidi
revenues and expenses reflect the eliminationl ofalerial intercompany transactions.

The Company evaluates segment performance basedame or loss from operations (segment operatingme) before income taxes wh
includes:

. revenues from external and internal customers
. direct operating costs

. depreciation and

. allocated general and administrative costs

but excludes corporate costs for other depreciatimome from asset sales and other corporate ia@nd expense.

General and administrative costs are allocateldségments based primarily on specific identificaand, to the extent that such
identification is not practical, on other methodsieth the Company believes to be a reasonable tigfteof the utilization of services
provided.

Segment operating income for all segments is a@AAP financial measure of the Company's performaasét excludes general and
administrative expenses, corporate depreciati@mone from asset sales and other corporate incothexpense. The Company considers
segment operating income to be an important supitshmeasure of operating performance for presgmtends in the Company's core
businesses. This measure is used by the Compdayilitate period-to-period comparisons in opergperformance of the Company's
reportable segments in the aggregate by eliminatimgs that affect comparability between periodse Tompany believes that segment
operating income is useful to investors becaupeoitides a means to evaluate the operating perfucenaf the segments and the Compan
an ongoing basis using criteria that are used bymernal decision makers. Additionally, it higitits operating trends and aids analytical
comparisons. However, segment operating incomdirnéations and should not be used as an alteredatiwperating income or loss, a
performance measure determined in accordance WAthFG as it excludes certain costs that may affeet@ompany's operating performance
in future periods.
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Summarized financial information of the Compangisartable segments for each of the years endeé@bpt 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004 is
shown in the following table:

Segment Additions
External Inter- Total Operating Total to Long-Lived
(in thousands) Sales Segment Sales Income (Loss) Depreciation Assets Assets
2006
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $ 829,06 $ — $ 829,06 $ 351,25! $ 66,127 $ 1,356,81 $ 560,66
U.S. Offshore 132,58( — 132,58 27,00° 11,36( 110,19: 18,55:
International 252,79: — 252,79: 57,17¢ 19,51: 311,60¢ 31,44¢
1,214,43. — 1,214,43. 435,43t 96,99¢ 1,778,61. 610,66
Real Estate 10,37¢ 783 11,16: 4,411 2,44¢ 30,62¢ 1,27¢
1,224,81. 78% 1,225,509 439,84 99,44 1,809,24i 611,94(
Other — — — — 2,14( 325,47. 2,33¢
Eliminations — (789 (789 — — — —
Total $ 1,224,811 $ — % 1,224,811 $ 439,84¢ $ 101,58 $ 2,134,71. 614,27
. _________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________]
2005
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $ 527,63 $ — 3 527,63 $ 164,65 $ 60,22: $ 809,40 $ 78,49¢
U.S. Offshore 84,92 — 84,92 17,70¢ 10,60z 95,10¢ 1,05¢
International 177,48( — 177,48( 18,97 20,107 239,08 12,43¢
790,03¢ — 790,03¢ 201,33 90,93: 1,143,59! 91,99¢
Real Estate 10,68¢ 761 11,44¢ 4,714 2,352 32,20: 1,517
800,72t 761 801,48 206,05: 93,28:¢ 1,175,80: 93,51
Other — — — — 2,991 487,54¢ 1,49¢
Eliminations — (767) (767) — — — —
Total $ 800,72¢ $ — $ 800,72¢ $ 206,05: $ 96,27¢ $ 1,663,35I 95,00
2004:
Contract Drilling
U.S. Land $ 346,01 $ — $ 346,01 $ 35,54 $ 56,52¢ $ 742,64. $ 68,68(
U.S. Offshore 84,23¢ — 84,23¢ (35,629 12,107 102,55° 1,517
International 148,78t — 148,78t 12,12¢ 20,53( 261,89¢ 9,51¢
579,04 — 579,04: 12,04: 89,16¢ 1,107,09. 79,70¢
Real Estate 10,01t 897 10,91: 3,19¢ 2,25 33,04 3,53¢
589,05t 897 589,95: 15,24 91,41¢ 1,140,13i 83,24:
Other — — — — 3,007 266,70¢ 5,72¢
Eliminations — (897) (897) — — — —
Total $ 589,05¢ $ — 3 589,05¢ $ 15,24. $ 94,42% $ 1,406,84. $ 88,97:
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The following table reconciles segment operatirgpime to income before taxes and equity in inconmeffdfate as reported on the

Consolidated Statements of Income (in thousands).

Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t 200¢
Segment operating incon $ 439,84 $ 206,05: $ 15,24
Income from asset sal 7,492 13,55( 5,371
Corporate general and administrative costs andocatp
depreciatior (30,05%) (26,84¢) (27,509
Operating income (los! 417,28t 192,75t (6,885
Other income (expens
Interest and dividend incon 9,83¢ 5,80¢ 1,96¢
Interest expens (6,649 (12,647 (12,695
Gain on sale of investment securit 19,86¢ 26,96¢ 25,41¢
Other 63¢ (235) 197
Total unallocated amoun 23,69t 19,90: 14,88t
Income before income taxes and equity in incomaffiifate $ 440,98: $ 212,65 $ 8,00(

The following table presents revenues from extecmatomers and long-lived assets by country basetelocation of service provided (in

thousands).
Years Ended September 30, 200¢ 200t 2004
Revenue:!
United State: $ 972,02: $ 623,24¢ $ 440,26¢
Venezuele 84,59 66,82 56,297
Ecuadot 88,70¢ 60,94¢ 43,36
Colombia 17,74¢ 12,79: 3,69¢
Other Foreigr 61,74 36,91¢ 45,43(
Total $ 1,224,81. $ 800,72¢ $ 589,05t¢

Long-Lived Assets
United State:
Venezuele
Ecuador
Colombia
Other Foreigr

Total

$ 1,284,23! $ 810,48 $ 799,20°
83,16( 84,46 85,33¢

42,85¢ 44,25( 46,80¢

9,79% 9,21: 9,33¢

63,08 33,55 57,98¢

$ 1,483,13 $ 981,96! $ 998,67+

Long-lived assets are comprised of property, pdeut equipment.

Revenues from one company doing business withdhtact drilling segment accounted for approximafiel.2 percent, 11.1 percent, and
11.4 percent of the total operating revenues duhieg/ears ended September 30, 2006, 2005, and g8@éctively. Revenues from another
company doing business with the contract drilliagraent accounted for approximately 7.1 percentp8tZent, and 11.3 percent of total
operating revenues in the years ended Septemb2086, 2005, and 2004, respectively. Collectiviig,
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receivables from these customers were approxim&udy3 million and $29.2 million at September 300& and 2005, respectively.
NOTE 16 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On November 16, 2006, the Company announced tteaetgrm contracts had been reached with thre@etjmin and production companies
to operate seven new FlexRigs. With these contrd@sCompany has now committed to build 73 newRigs, of which 24 had been
completed as of September 30, 2006.

Subsequent to September 30, 2006, the Company86|800 shares of an available-for-sale securgtyltiag in a gain of approximately
$26.2 million, $16.0 million after-tax. Proceedsrfr the sales were $30.2 million.

Subsequent to September 30, 2006, the Companyctegsed 681,900 shares of Company common stockagjgregate price of
$15.9 million, or an average share price of $2p&6common share.

On December 5, 2006, a cash dividend of $.045hemeswas declared for shareholders of record orugep15, 2007, payable March 1,
2007.

On December 5, 2006, the Board of Directors grai#8)525 nonqualified and incentive stock optiond 27,000 restricted stock awards to
employees and non-employee Directors under the R66§-Term Incentive Plan.

NOTE 17 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITE D)

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

2006 1S'Quarter 2" Quarter 3" Quarter 4 Quarter
Operating revenue 255,38t 290,83( 319,79¢ 358,79¢
Operating incom: 80,90¢ 100,25: 114,13 121,99:
Net income 50,81 64,57 79,97¢ 98,49¢
Basic net income per common sh .49 .62 7€ .94
Diluted net income per common shi A8 .61 75 .93
2005 1S'Quarter 2" Quarter 31 Quarter 4™ Quarter
Operating revenue 174,67¢ 185,45( 207,38" 233,21(
Operating incom: 41,73 38,557 51,42 61,04:
Net income 39,31( 22,35( 29,82 36,12
Basic net income per common sh .39 22 .28 235
Diluted net income per common shi .38 22 .28 .34

74




The sum of earnings per share for the four quanterg not equal the total earnings per share foy#ae due to changes in the average nu
of common shares outstanding.

The fourth quarter of fiscal 2006 includes adjustitedo deferred tax accounts in certain internafidocations resulting in an increase of
$0.12 per share, on a diluted basis.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2006, net incomelires an after-tax gain on sale of available-fde-sacurities of $1.7 million, $0.02 per share
on a diluted basis.

In the third quarter of fiscal 2006, net incomelimies an after-tax gain on sale of available-fde-sacurities of $5.8 million, $0.05 per share
on a diluted basis.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2006, net incomelinles an after-tax gain on sale of availables@le securities of $4.8 million, $0.05 per st
on a diluted basis.

In the first quarter of fiscal 2005, net incomelires an after-tax gain on sale of available-fde-sacurities of $16.0 million, $0.15 per share,
on a diluted basis.
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Stockholders' Meeting

The annual meeting of stockholders will be held on

March 7, 2007. A formal notice of the meeting, tihge
with a proxy statement and form of proxy will beited
to shareholders on or about January 26, 2007.

Stock Exchange Listing

Helmerich & Payne, Inc. Common Stock is tradedtm
New York Stock Exchange with the ticker symbol "H
The newspaper abbreviation most commonly used for
financial reporting is "HelmP." Options on the
Company's stock are also traded on the New YorkkSto
Exchange.

Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar

As of December 5, 2006, there were 758 record hslde
of Helmerich & Payne, Inc. common stock as listgd b
the transfer agent's records.

Our Transfer Agent is responsible for our shareéold
records, issuance of stock certificates, and Bistion of
our dividends and the IRS Form 1099. Your requests,
shareholders, concerning these matters are most
efficiently answered by corresponding directly withe
Transfer Agent at the following address:

UMB Bank

Security Transfer Division

928 Grand Blvd., 13th Floor

Kansas City, MO 64106

Telephone: (800) 884-4225
(816) 860-5000

Available Information

Quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, earnings releasas,
financial statements are made available on theshove
relations section of the Company's website. Alsaied

on the investor relations section of the Company's
website are certain corporate governance documents,
including the following: the charters of the comtedts

of the Board of Directors; the Company's Corporate
Governance Guidelines and Code of Business Conduct
and Ethics; the Code of Ethics for Principal Exeaut
Officer and Senior Financial Officers; certain Audi
Committee Practices and a description of the mbgns
which employees and other interested persons may
communicate certain concerns to the Company's Board
of Directors, including the communication of such
concerns confidentially and anonymously via the
Company's ethics hotline at 1-800-205-4913. Qulgrter
reports, earnings releases, financial statemertshan
various corporate governance documents are also
available free of charge upon written requ

Annual CEO Certification

The annual CEO Certification required by

Section 303A.12(a) of the New York Stock Exchange
Listed Company Manual was provided to the New York
Stock Exchange on or about March 23, 2006.

Direct Inquiries To:

Investor Relations
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.
1437 South Boulder Avenue
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74119
Telephone: (918) 742-5531

Internet Address: http://www.hpinc.com
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SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne, Ir

White Eagle Assurance Company (Incorporated in \éerty
Helmerich & Payne International Drilling Co. (Inparated in Delaware

Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne Internationalllidwg Co.
Helmerich & Payne (Africa) Drilling Co. (Incorpoeat in Cayman Islands, British West Indi
Helmerich & Payne (Colombia) Drilling Co. (Incor@ded in Oklahoma
Helmerich & Payne (Gabon) Drilling Co. (Incorpordia Cayman Islands, British West Indit
Helmerich & Payne (Argentina) Drilling Co. (Inconated in Oklahomse
Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Drilling Co. (Incorptea in Oklahoma
Helmerich & Payne (Australia) Drilling Co. (Incomaded in Oklahoma
Helmerich & Payne del Ecuador, Inc. (Incorporate@®klahoma’
Helmerich & Payne de Venezuela, C.A. (Incorporatedenezuela
Helmerich & Payne Rasco, Inc. (Incorporated in @&laa)
H&P Finco (Incorporated in Cayman Islands, Britidlest Indies’
H&P Invest Ltd. (Incorporated in Cayman IslandstiBin West Indies

Subsidiaries of Helmerich & Payne (Boulder) Driffi€o.
Helmerich and Payne Mexico Drilling, S. de R.L.@& . (Incorporated in Mexicc

The Space Center, Inc. (Incorporated in Oklahc
Helmerich & Payne Properties, Inc. (Incorporate@kiahoma
Utica Square Shopping Center, Inc. (Incorporate@kiahoma’

Subsidiary of Utica Square Shopping Center,
Fishercorp, Inc. (Incorporated in Oklahon
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Exhibit 23.1
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference is #ninual Report (Form 10-K) of Helmerich & Paynes.lof our report dated December 7,
2006, with respect to the consolidated financialeshents of Helmerich & Payne, Inc., included i 2006 Annual Report to Shareholders of
Helmerich & Payne, Inc.

We consent to the incorporation by reference infelewing Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-3493%gapeng to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 1996 Stockdntive Plan,
2 Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-631240apeng to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2000 Stackdntive Plan, and
3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-137144pjpeng to the Helmerich & Payne, Inc. 2005 LongrT Incentive Plan;

of our report dated December 7, 2006, with resfzettie consolidated financial statements of Helote& Payne, Inc. incorporated herein by
reference and our report dated December 7, 2006 respect to Helmerich & Payne, Inc. managemasssssment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting and thfeetiveness of internal control over financial ogfing of Helmerich & Payne, Inc., included
herein.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP
Tulsa, Oklahoma
December 7, 2006







Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION
I, Hans Helmerich, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Kefmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Company as of, andlfierperiods presented in this report;

4, The Company's other certifying officer and | argp@nsible for establishing and maintaining disalestontrols and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢e)1&nd internal control over financial reportifag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company hade:

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Company, including its consolidatetsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipar, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in at@oce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(©) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's discéocontrols and procedures and presented ineihést our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Comgaimgernal control over financial reporting thatomed during the
Company's most recent fiscal quarter that has ma#yeaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelyadffect, the Company's
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Company's other certifying officer and | havechbsed, based on our most recent evaluationtefrial control over financial
reporting, to the Company's auditors and the AGdinmittee of the Company's Board of Directors @nspns performing the
equivalent function):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraérofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Comyfsaability to record, process, summarize andntefpmancial information;
and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the Company's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 13, 20(
IS/ Hans Helmerich

Hans Helmerict
President and Chief Executive Offic
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Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION
I, Douglas E. Fears, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-Kefmerich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company");

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not com@ajnuntrue statement of a material fact or om#itéde a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$oéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the Company as of, andlfierperiods presented in this report;

4, The Company's other certifying officer and | argp@nsible for establishing and maintaining disalestontrols and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢e)1&nd internal control over financial reportifag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the Company hade:

€)) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresiused such disclosure controls and procedures tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the Company, including its consolidatetsidiaries, is made known
to us by others within those entities, particulahlying the period in which this report is beingpared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipar, or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in at@oce with generally accepted accounting princjples

(©) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Company's discéocontrols and procedures and presented ineihést our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Comgaimgernal control over financial reporting thatomed during the
Company's most recent fiscal quarter that has ma#yeaffected, or is reasonably likely to matelyadffect, the Company's
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The Company's other certifying officer and | havechbsed, based on our most recent evaluationtefrial control over financial
reporting, to the Company's auditors and the AGdinmittee of the Company's Board of Directors @nspns performing the
equivalent function):

(@  All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraérofmancial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the Comyfsaability to record, process, summarize andntefpmancial information;
and

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significdain the Company's
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: December 13, 20(
/S/ Douglas E. Fears

Douglas E. Feat
Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
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Exhibit 32

Certification of CEO and CFO Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Hefich & Payne, Inc. (the "Company") on Form 10eK the period ending September 30,
2006 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cmsion on the date hereof (the "Report”), Hans Helah, as President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, and Douglas EarBeas Vice President and Chief Financial Offafethe Company, each hereby certifies,
pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedipnt$o Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act @22@o the best of his knowledge, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with thejrgrements of Sections 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiegrExchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m
or 780(d)); and

(2) The information contained in the Retfairly presents, in all material respects, timafcial condition and result of operations of the
Company.

/sl Hans Helmericl /sl Douglas E. Fea
Hans Helmerict Douglas E. Feat
President an Vice President an

Chief Executive Office Chief Financial Officel
Date: December 13, 20( Date: December 13, 20(
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